
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, February 9, 2023 Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
 

HOLLISTER PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting 
February 9, 2023 

6:00 PM 
 

CITY OF HOLLISTER 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

375 FIFTH STREET 
 HOLLISTER, CA 95023 

(831) 636-4360 
www.hollister.ca.gov  

 
NOTICE TO PUBLIC 
 
Persons who wish to address the Planning Commission are asked to complete a Speaker’s Card and give 
it to the Secretary before addressing the Planning Commission. Those who wish to address the Planning 
Commission on an Agenda item will be heard when the presiding officer calls for comments from the 
audience. City related items not on the Agenda will be heard under the Public Input Section of the agenda. 
Following recognition persons desiring to speak are requested to advance to the podium and state their 
name and address. If you are joining us by Zoom, please click on the bottom of your screen to raise your 
hand. If you are joining us by Zoom using a cell phone, please press *9. After hearing audience comments, 
the public portion of the meeting will be closed, and the matter brought to the Planning Commission for 
discussion. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION NOTICE  
 
The public may watch the meeting via live stream at: 
 
Community Media Access Partnership (CMAP) at: 
http://cmaptv.com/watch/  
 
or 
 
City of Hollister YouTube Channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCu_SKHetqbOiiz5mH6XgpYw/featured   
 

http://www.hollister.ca.gov/
http://cmaptv.com/watch/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCu_SKHetqbOiiz5mH6XgpYw/featured


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, February 9, 2023 Page 2 of 4 
 

Public Participation: The public may attend meetings.  
 
NOTICE: The Planning Commission will hold its public meetings in person, with a virtual option for public 
participation based on availability. The City of Hollister utilizes Zoom teleconferencing technology for 
virtual public participation; however, we make no representation or warranty of any kind, regarding the 
adequacy, reliability, or availability of the use of this platform in this manner. Participation by members 
of the public through this means is at their own risk. (Zoom teleconferencing may not be available at all 
meetings.)  
 
If you wish to make a public comment remotely during the meeting, please use the zoom registration link 
below: 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_OjePIcLASn2r5XX0QYXDvw 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL  Commissioners: David Huboi, Kevin Henderson, Luke Corona, 

Steven Belong 
 
VERTIFCIATION OF AGENDA POSTING Friday, February 3, 2023 at 1:15PM 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  None 
 
PUBLIC INPUT 
 
This is the time for anyone in the audience to speak on any item not on the agenda and within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. Speaker cards are available in the lobby, and are to be 
completed and given to the Secretary before speaking. When the Secretary calls your name, please come 
to the podium, state your name and city for the record, and speak to the City Planning Commission. If you 
are joining us by Zoom, please click on the bottom of your screen to raise your hand. If you are joining us 
by Zoom using a cell phone, please press *9. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes with a 
maximum of 30 minutes per subject. Please note that state law prohibits the Planning Commission from 
discussing or taking action on any item not on the agenda. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6 for a Planned Unit Development, Site & 
Architectural Review 2021-4 Extension  –  1620 Buena Vista, LLC. – The applicant is requesting an 
extension of time to the previous approvals to subdivide an ~11.10-acre parcel into 130 multi-
family units across 48 duplex and triplex buildings. This project site is located within the Medium 
Density Residential Performance Overlay (R3-M/PZ) Zoning District at 1620 Buena Vista Road, 
further identified at San Benito County Assessor Parcel Number 052-410-001. CEQA: Mitigated 
Negative Declaration. 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_OjePIcLASn2r5XX0QYXDvw


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, February 9, 2023 Page 3 of 4 
 

2. Conditional Use Permit 2022-4 – Target Corporation – The applicant is requesting a conditional 
use permit to allow for the sale of beer, wine, and distilled spirits at the existing Target retail store. 
This project requires a finding of public convenience or necessity in addition to the Conditional 
Use Permit. The project site is located in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District at 1790 
Airline Highway, further identified as San Benito County Assessor Parcel Number 057-430-007. 
CEQA: Categorically Exempt. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. Occupancy Agreement between the City of Hollister and Prakash Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, 
LP. – Prakash Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP – The applicant is requesting approval of an 
Occupancy Permit Agreement for the approved Holiday Inn Hotel located at 391 Gateway Drive 
in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District to receive a Certificate of Occupancy from the City 
of Hollister despite not having completed all required Conditions of Approval for Site & 
Architectural Review 2019-17. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
STUDY SESSION ITEMS  
 

1. Zoning Ordinance Overhaul – City of Hollister – A discussion of how the City reviews development 
requests and the process from submittal to decision (part of Phase IIB of the Overhaul). 
 

2. Zoning Ordinance Overhaul – City of Hollister – A discussion of potential amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance related to Planned Developments (Section 17.24.200 of the Zoning Ordinance). 

 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the City of Hollister’s Planning Division at (831) 636-4360. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City to attempt to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting [28 CFR 2.102-35. 104 ADA Title II]. 
 
Materials related to an item of this agenda submitted to the Planning Commission after distribution of 
the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office at City Hall, 375 Fifth Street, 
Hollister, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to noon, 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. (closed between 12:00 and 
1:00 p.m.). Materials are also available at the Development Services Department office located 339 Fifth 
Street, Hollister, Monday through Thursday, 8:30 a.m. to noon, 1:00 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. (closed between 
12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m.).  
 
Notice to anyone attending any public meeting: The meeting may be broadcast live on Cable 17 and/or 
videotaped or photographed. Recent Planning Commission meetings may also be viewed at 
www.CMAP.com and periodically on Cable Channel 17.  

http://www.cmap.com/


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, February 9, 2023 Page 4 of 4 
 

The next Planning Commission Meetings are scheduled as follows:  
 
Regular Planning Commission Meeting – Thursday, February 23, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Planning Commission Study Session – Thursday, March 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.  



SUBJECT: Extension of Time – Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 
2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 Extension for the 
subdivision of an approximately 11.10-acre parcel into 48 lots, and the 
construction of 130 multi-family residential units, located at 1620 Buena 
Vista Road (APN 052-410-001).  

 
APPLICANT: 1620 Buena Vista LLC 
 
STAFF PLANNER: Mindy A. Davis, Senior Planner (909) 202-0533 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution approving a two-year extension of time for Vesting 

Tentative Map No. 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6 for a 
Planned Unit Development, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14.  

 2. Original Tentative Tract Map submittal package, which includes the 
Tentative Tract Map, Conceptual Perspective Renderings, Landscape 
Master Plan, Landscape Details and Planting Plan, Park Expansion 
Plan, Floor Plans, Building Elevations, and Color and Materials 
Schedule 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City of Hollister’s Planning Commission 

approve the applicant’s request; receive all written and oral testimony 
regarding the proposal; and make the following motion: 

  
1. Approve Resolution 2023-__; thereby, approving the requested two 

(2) year extension of time to Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, 
Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site and Architectural Review 
2012-14, extending the existing findings and conditions therein. 

 
             
              
 
Project description: 
The Applicant, 1620 Buena Vista LLC, is requesting a two (2) year extension for the previously approved 
Vesting Tentative Tract Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-
14, which was originally approved by the City of Hollister Planning Commission on May 27th, 2021, per 
Resolution 2021-16, Resolution 2021-17, and Resolution 2021-18. The original vesting Tentative Tract 
Map approval comprises of the subdivision of an approximately 11.10-acre parcel into 48 lots, which will 
consist of 14 duplexes (28 units) and 34 triplexes (102 units) for a total of 130 multifamily units. A Site and 
Architectural review for the construction and design of the duplex/triplex units, as well as a Conditional 
Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development was also included as part of the original approval.     

 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

February 9th, 2023 
Item 1 



Staff Report 
TM 2021-1, CUP 2021-6, S&A 2021-14 Extension of Time 
Page 2 of 4 
  
 
The approved project site is located within the Medium Density Residential Performance Overlay (R3-
M/PZ) Zoning District at 1620 Buena Vista Road, further identified as San Benito County, Assessor Parcel 
Number 052-410-001 (formerly 019-110-031).  
 
The requested extension does not propose any new and/or any revisions to the previously approved 
development.  And the approved project still meets numerous City of Hollister’s Municipal Code Sections, 
such as Section 17.18.060 Number of parking spaces required, Section 17.04.040 Residential open space 
requirements, and others. Additionally, the Conditional Use Permit for the Planned Unit Development 
approved for the overall project still gives the development flexibility to the general development and site 
layout standards while protecting the integrity and character of the residential areas within the City. While 
encouraging the innovation and development of affordable housing while ensuring the consistency with 
the City’s General Plan. As such the approved Planned Unit Development allows for variations within the 
approved development, such as minimum lot size, setbacks, as well as lot coverage.    
 
The multifamily residential units proposed as part of this approved development are still highly desired 
within the City of Hollister, as they will provided many benefits to the community, primarily needed rental 
units. Although affordable/low-income rental units are also greatly needed in the community, this 
approved project proposes a large quantity of market-rate rental units, another housing type needed 
within the community. As such, this project will help to offset some of the need within the community for 
this type of rental unit.      
 
General Plan Consistency: 
As previously determined in 2021, the City of Hollister’s 2005-2023 General Plan designates the project 
site as Medium Density Residential, which allows for multi-family developments. As outlined in the 
General Plan the housing density for the Medium Density Zoning District is 8 to 12 dwelling units per acre.  
Since the requested extension doesn’t propose any new and/or revisions to the proposed development, 
the project, as proposed, is still consistent with the density requirements within the General Plan and 
Zoning Code.  Further, the requested extension of time for two (2) years is pursuant to the City of 
Hollister’s Municipal Code Section 16.40.101 (B) Time limits to record a final map and Section 17.24.130 
(E)(2) Permit implementation, time limits, extensions and revocations, which allows for an applicant to 
request an extension of time to exercise the original approval of their project.       
  
California Environmental Quality Act: 
On February 16, 2016, a Mitigated Negative Declaration was adopted for Prezone 2013-2 for the prezone 
and annexation of the subject property.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS: 
  
The Planning Commission can choose one of the following options: 
 

1. Adopt a Resolution approving the two-year extension for the approved Vesting Tentative Map 
2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6 for a Planned Unit Development, and Site & 
Architectural Review 2021-14, subject to the existing Conditions of Approval (Attachment 1); 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution approving a two-year extension for the approved Vesting Tentative Map 



Staff Report 
TM 2021-1, CUP 2021-6, S&A 2021-14 Extension of Time 
Page 3 of 4 
  

2021-1 Conditional Use Permit 2021-6 for a Planned Unit Development, and Site & 
Architectural Review 2021-14, with existing Conditions of Approval as modified by the Planning 
Commission; 
 

3. Deny the Proposed Extension of Time; or 
 

4. Continue the hearing and direct Staff to provide additional information and/or clarification. 
 
It is Staff’s recommendation that the Planning Commission select Option 1 above and approve this item.  



Staff Report 
TM 2021-1, CUP 2021-6, S&A 2021-14 Extension of Time 
Page 4 of 4 
  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT:   1620 Buena Vista LLC 

3200 Danville Boulevard, Suite #200 
    Alamo, CA 94507 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Same as Applicant 
 
LOCATION:   1620 Buena Vista Road, Hollister, CA 
 
ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBER:   APN 052-410-001 
 
GENERAL PLAN 
DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential Performance Overlay  
 
ZONING DISTRICT:  (R3-M/PZ) Zoning District 
 
SURROUNDING USES:  
 

Location Zoning Designation General Plan Land Use Current use of 
Property 

APN 052-410-001 R3-M/PZ Medium Density 
Residential 

Mostly vacant with 
some residential 

North San Benito County Low Density Residential Vacant/Agriculture 

South R1 & R1 L/PZ Low Density Residential Residential 
East R3-M/PZ Medium Density 

Residential 
Residential 

West San Benito County Low Density Residential Mostly vacant with 
some residential 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF HOLLISTER APPROVING THE 
EXTENSION OF TIME FOR VESTING TENTATIVE MAP 2021-1, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 2021-6, AND SITE AND ARCHITECTURE REVIEW 2021-14 TO SUBDIVIDE 
AN APPROXIMATELY 11.10-ACRE PARCEL INTO 48 LOTS AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF 130 MULTI-

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS, LOCATED WITHIN THE MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL PERFORMANCE 
OVERLAY (R3-M/PZ) ZONING DISTRICT AT 1620 BUENA VISTA ROAD  

(1620 BUENA VISTA, LLC) 
APN 052-410-001 

 
 WHEREAS, under the provisions of Section 16.16.030 of Title 16 Subdivisions of the Hollister 
Municipal Code, the Planning Commission approved Resolution 2021-16 for Vesting Tentative Map 2021-
1, Resolution 2021-17 for a Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development, and Resolution 2021-
18 for a Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 during a duly noted public hearing on May 27th, 2021; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, under the provisions of Section 16.40.010 of Title 16 Subdivisions and Section 
17.24.130 of Title 17 Zoning of the Hollister Municipal Code, the Planning Commission may grant an 
extension to the approval not to exceed a total of two (2) additional years; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the applicant submitted a request for an additional two (2) year extension of the 
approval for Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development 2021-
6, and a Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 to subdivide an approximately 11.10-acre parcel consisting 
into 48 lots and the construction of 130 multi-family residential units, located within the Medium Density 
Residential Performance Overlay (R3-M/PZ) Zoning District at 1620 Buena Vista Road; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Planning Division received the applicant’s request and forwarded the request 
to the Development Review Committee to assess the proposal for compliance with all relevant 
regulations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Committee considerations were presented to the Planning 
Commission as part of the City staff report; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on February 9th, 2023 to 
consider the applicant’s request, review the City staff report, and receive written and oral testimony for 
and/or against the proposal; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, after closing the public hearing, the Planning Commission deliberated and determined 
to approve the applicant’s request in accordance with Section 16.40.010 Title 16 Subdivisions and Section 
17.24.130 Title 17 Zoning of the Hollister Municipal Code, and based on the facts as presented, and the 
code requirements as plainly stated. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Hollister does 
hereby approve the two (2) year Extension for Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit for 
a Planned Unit Development 2021-6, and Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 subject to the following 
findings. 
 
 



PC Resolution 2023-__ 
Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 
Extension / 1620 Buena Vista, LLC 
Page 2 of 5 
 
A. The proposed Project, as conditioned, will comply with the policies of the General Plan because: 

 
1. As previously determined in 2021, the City of Hollister’s 2005-2023 General Plan designates the 

project site as Medium Density Residential, which allows for multi-family developments. As 
outlined in the General Plan the housing density for the Medium Density Zoning District is 8 to 12 
dwelling units per acre.  Since the requested extension doesn’t propose any new and/or revisions 
to the proposed development, the project, as proposed, is still consistent with the density 
requirements within the General Plan and Zoning Code.  Further, the requested extension of time 
for two (2) years is pursuant to the City of Hollister’s Municipal Code Section 16.40.101 (B) Time 
limits to record a final map and Section 17.24.130 (E)(2) Permit implementation, time limits, 
extensions and revocations, which allows for an applicant to request an extension of time to 
exercise the original approval of their project.    

 
B. The proposed Project would not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of persons residing 

or working in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City because: 
 

1. As previously indicated, Resolution 2016-16 was approved by the City Council on February 16th, 
2016, adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the subject property.  The development, as 
proposed, on the project site have been determined to result in potentially significant 
environmental impacts, but these potentially significant impacts have been mitigated by 
appropriate mitigation measures as outlined in the adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration, as 
well as by the proposed conditions of approval. Previously approved Vesting Tentative Map 
Resolution 2021-16, Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development Resolution 2021-17, 
and Site and Architectural Review Resolution 2021-18, which incorporate the applicable 
requirements of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the previously approved 
project, issuance of building permit, and operations. The Mitigated Negative Declaration was 
completed in compliance with the intent and requirements of CEQA, State CEQA Guidelines, and 
the City CEQA process. 

 
2. As proposed, and approved, project provides connection to, as well as an expansion, of existing 

public facilities, open space, and roads, which will eliminate dead ends (Chariot Road), and 
provide through access for existing roads as well as nearby facilities such as Calaveras Elementary 
School. Furthermore, the project meets, and exceeds, the City of Hollister Municipal Code 
multifamily development requirements, as well as the medium density residential development 
requirements. The project’s conditions of approval will ensure that any fair share contributions to 
off-site improvements, and any project development impact fees, as required to accommodate 
the new development, shall be paid by the developer. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City Hollister hereby approves a two (2) 
year extension for Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development 
2021-6, and Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 subject to the following Conditions of Approval. 
    
 
 
 



PC Resolution 2023-__ 
Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 
Extension / 1620 Buena Vista, LLC 
Page 3 of 5 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
TM 2021-1, CUP 2021-6, S&A 2021-14 

 
General Conditions of Approval  

 
1. Approval. This approval is for a two (2) year extension for Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, 

Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development 2021-6, and Site and Architectural 
Review 2021-14 submitted by 1620 Buena Vista, LLC. The proposed development shall be in 
substantial conformance to Exhibit A (Project Plans) prepared by North Star Engineering Group, 
Inc. and dated “Received December 15, 2022” on file with the Planning Division, and other 
plans, text and diagrams relating to Vesting Tentative Map, Conditional Use Permit, and Site & 
Architectural Review, except as modified by the following conditions. The elevations and 
improvements shall strictly adhere to the approved set of plans unless prior approval is granted 
by the Director of Developments Services for any changes. 

 
2. Permit Expiration. In accordance with Sections 16.40.010(A) and 17.24.130(E)(1) of the 

Municipal Code, the Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit 
Development 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 shall expire on May 27, 2025, 
unless a Building Permit is obtained. 

 
3. Time Extension. In accordance with Sections 16.40.010(B) and 17.24.130(E)(2) of the Municipal 

Code, the Planning Commission may extend the time for an approved permit to be exercised 
upon the Applicant(s) written request from an extension of approval at least 30 days prior to 
expiration of the permit together with the filing fee. The application for an extension shall state 
the reasons for requesting an extension. A request for an extension may be approved, approved 
conditionally, or denied by the Planning Commission.  

 
4. Permit Validity. This Site and Architectural Review approval shall be valid for the remaining life 

of the approved structure so long as the operator of the subject property comply with the 
project’s conditions of approval. 

 
5. Appeal Period. The final map and improvement plan check package will be accepted for 

submittal after the completion of the 15-day appeal period for the project, unless the Director 
of Development Services authorizes the project developer to submit a signed statement 
acknowledging that the plan check fess will be forfeited in the event that the approval is 
overturned on appeal or that the design is significantly changed as a result of the appeal. In no 
case will a Final Map be approved or recorded, or a building permit issued until the appeal 
period has expired or a final action is taken appeal.   

 
6. Revocation of Permit. Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development 2021-6 and the 

Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 approval shall be revocable for cause in accordance with 
Section 17.24.350 of the Hollister Municipal Code. Any violation of the terms or conditions of 
this permit shall be subject to citation.   

 



PC Resolution 2023-__ 
Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 
Extension / 1620 Buena Vista, LLC 
Page 4 of 5 
 
7. Indemnification. The applicant/Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City 

of Hollister and its agents, officers, employees, advisory board from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the City of Hollister or its agents, officers, or employees to attach, set aside, 
void or annul an approval of the City of Hollister or its advisory agency, appeal board, Planning 
Commission, City Council, Director of Development of Services or any other department, 
committee, or agency of the City related to this project to the extent that such actions are 
brought within the time period required by Government Code Section 66499.37 or other 
applicable law; provided, however that the Applicant/Developer duty to so defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless shall be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the Applicant/Developer of 
any claim against the City and shall cooperate in the defense.   

 
8. Modifications. Modifications or changes to the Vesting Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use 

Permit for a Planned Unit Development 2021-6, and Site and Architectural Review 2021-14 may 
be considered by the Director of Development Services if the modifications or changes 
proposed comply with Section 17.24.130(F) of Municipal Code.   

 
9. Clarification of Conditions. In the event that there needs to be clarification to the Conditions of 

Approval, the Director of Development Services and the City Engineer have the authority to 
clarify the intent of these Conditions of Approval with the Developer without going to a public. 
The Director of Developments Services and City Engineer also have that authority to make minor 
modifications to these conditions without going to a public hearing in order for the Developer 
to fulfill needed improvements and/or mitigations resulting from impacts to this project. 

 
Project Extension Conditions of Approval 
 
10. Previously Approved Resolutions. All findings and conditions in Planning Commission 

Resolution 2021-16, Resolution 2021-17, and Resolution 2021-18 approving Vesting Tentative 
Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development 2021-6, and Site and 
Architectural Review 2021-14 shall apply to this project.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the City of Hollister Planning Commission held on this the 
9th day of February 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
              
       Chairperson of the Planning Commission 
       of the City of Hollister 
 
 
 
 



PC Resolution 2023-__ 
Tentative Map 2021-1, Conditional Use Permit 2021-6, and Site & Architectural Review 2021-14 
Extension / 1620 Buena Vista, LLC 
Page 5 of 5 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Adrianna Ortiz, Secretary 
 
 

Please Note 
 

It is the sole responsibility of the project applicant to comply with the conditions as approved, modified or 
added by the Planning Commission. It is recommended that the applicant review these conditions carefully 
and if any questions arise as to compliance with the conditions, please do not hesitate to contact the staff 
planner. Also, if you do not agree with the proposed conditions, you have an opportunity to present your 
case to the Planning Commission at their meeting. In addition, the City provides for a 15-day appeal period. 



CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

1620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

CITY SUBMITTAL
Planned Unit Development
for 130 Multi-Family Units

SHEET INDEX: 
 
SP.1			  Conceptual Site Plan
SP.2			  Cross Sections
SP.3			  Site Plan – Dimension Plan
SP.4			  Site Plan – Utility Plan
SP.5			  Grading & Drainage Plan
PR			  Conceptual Perspective Renderings - Buena Vista Road
L.0			   Landscape Master Plan
L.1			   Landscape Enlargement Plan
L.2			   Landscape Enlargement Plan
L.3			   Community Park Expansion
L.4			   Landscape Fence and Wall Details and Recomended Plant List
L.5			   Park Amenity Images 
A1.1 		  DUPLEX - Building 100A I Plan First Floor
A1.2		  DUPLEX - Building 100A I Plan Second Floor
A1.3		  DUPLEX - Building 100A I Exterior Elevations
A1.4 		  DUPLEX - Building 100B I Plan First Floor
A1.5		  DUPLEX - Building 100B I Plan Second Floor
A1.6		  DUPLEX - Building 100B I Exterior Elevations
A1.7		  DUPLEX - Building 100 I Roof Plans

A1.8 		  TRIPLEX - Building 200A I Plan First Floor
A1.9		  TRIPLEX - Building 200A I Plan Second Floor
A1.10		  TRIPLEX - Building 200A I Exterior Elevations
A1.11 		  TRIPLEX - Building 200B I Plan First Floor
A1.12		  TRIPLEX - Building 200B I Plan Second Floor
A1.13		  TRIPLEX - Building 200B I Exterior Elevations
A1.14		  TRIPLEX - Building 200 I Roof Plans
A1.15 		  TRIPLEX - Building 300A I Plan First Floor
A1.16		  TRIPLEX - Building 300A I Plan Second Floor
A1.17		  TRIPLEX - Building 300A I Exterior Elevations
A1.18 		  TRIPLEX - Building 300B I Plan First Floor
A1.19		  TRIPLEX - Building 300B I Plan Second Floor
A1.20		  TRIPLEX - Building 300B I Exterior Elevations
A1.21		  TRIPLEX - Building 300 I Roof Plans
A1.22		  Leasing Office I Floor Plan / Roof Plan
A1.23		  Leasing Office I Exterior Elevations
A1.23		  Maintenance Building I Exterior Elevations / Floor Plan                       
CM			   Color & Materials

DUPLEX - Building 100A TRIPLEX - Building 300B
TRIPLEX - Building 200A

OUR TEAM

Property Owner
Contact: Fernando Gonzales
1260 4th Street, Hollister CA 95023

Kiper Homes
Contact: Michael Kiper
3200 Danville Blvd, Suite 200,  Alamo, CA 94507
925.648.8888  |  www.kiperhomes.com  |  mkiper@kiperinc.com

WHA. Architects . Planners . Designers .
Contact: Bill Hezmalhalch
680 Newport Center Drive, Suite 300. Newport Beach, CA, 92660 
949.250.0607  |  www.WHAinc.com  |  bill@whainc.com

Note: Ar tist’s conception; colors, materials and application may vary



21620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

45
4

32
37

Conceptual Site Plan

SP.1



1

2

4

5

3

6

7

8

9

10

L27

L1

L4 L28

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11 L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L16

L17

L18L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L25

L26

L24

26'
26'

26'

26'

24'
24'

26'

26'

46'

24'

40'

40'

40'

40'

24'
24'

24'
24'

24'

24' 24' 24'

24'
24'

24'

24'

24'

24'

24'

24'

37'

84'

12'

PRIVATE DRIVE LOT S1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

BUENA VISTA ROAD

CARRIAGE ROAD

LEASING

MAINTENANCE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

L2

L3

L5

26'

30'

PARKPARK

11

12

13

14

15

16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26 27

2829

30 31 32

333435

36 37 38

39

40

41424344

45 46 47

48

46'

23'

NTS

P/L

2.0%

C/L

VERTICAL CURB, GUTTER AND
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

HOLLISTER STANDARDS (TYP.)

T/C

R/W
EX.
R/W

19'± 53'±

EX. C/L, P/L42'

84'

EX. IMPROVEMENTS

2.0%

42'

30'12'

12'
PARKING/BIKE LANE

NTS

20'

2.0%

T/C
23'

P/L

26'

13'

NTS

P/L

C/LT/C

2.0%

P/L

T/C

2.0%

13'

40'

12'

NTS

P/L

C/LT/C

2.0%

P/L

T/C

2.0%

12'

24'

12'

NTS

P/L

C/LT/C

2.0%

P/L

T/C

2.0%

8'
PARKING DRIVE LANE

8'
PARKINGDRIVE LANE

37'

19'

NTS

P/L

2.0%

C/L

VERTICAL CURB, GUTTER AND
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

HOLLISTER STANDARDS (TYP.)

T/C

2.0%

T/C
18'

P/L

5'
LSING

5'
S/W

13.8'±

5'
S/W

5'
S/W

PARK

SOUND
WALL

10'
LANDSCAPING

5'
S/W

2'

17'SOUND
WALL

10'
LANDSCAPING

5'
S/W

2'

17'

12'

F/C
EX. R/W

LANDSCAPING
WITH MEANDERING

WALK

3.8±
LSING

P/L

P/L

LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

6' OR 7' SOUNDWALL
SIZE TO BE DETERMINED BY

SEPARATE SOUND STUDY

3' 1'

STORM DRAIN
STORAGE

DRAINAGE SWALE

16'
BERM

2:1 MAX2:1 MAX

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

SHEET
NUMBER

D
A

TE
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.

JOB #:
DATE:
SCALE:
DRAWN:
DESIGN:
CHK'D:

PRELIM
INARY:

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

PL
OT

TE
D:

 0
5/

05
/2

02
1 

08
:3

9 
   

 P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 C
va

nd
er

ve
en

DW
GN

AM
E:

 F
:\2

0-
25

44
 H

ol
lis

te
r G

on
za

le
z P

ro
pe

rty
\P

la
nn

in
g\

TM
\T

M
1.

1_
SP

.2
.d

wg

SP.2
COPYRIGHT ©   2021  NORTHSTAR ENGINEERING GROUP, INC

20-2544

TPD
PMH/ CV
PMH

5/5/2021

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

,
16

20
 B

U
EN

A
 V

IS
TA

 M
U

LT
I-F

A
M

IL
Y



GM

EM

TP
MAIL

MAIL

ELC
ELC

JP

JP

JP
JP

JP

S
LB

SP

E
LP

SP

JP

ELP

52
'

52
'

52
'

53
'

52
'

52
'

98'

53
'

92
'

56'

82
'

13'

10
'

73'

56'

70
'

68'
13'

61
'

56'

61
'

49'

61
'

52'

61
'

51'

52'
52'

52'

52'

54'

55'

55'

89'

13'

75
'

64
'

92'

52
'

52
'

89'

13'

103'

52
'

52
'

79'

13'

64
'

64
'

13'

64
'

64
'

53' 19
'

19
'

57
'

61
'73

'

65' 65'

53' 53' 53' 53'

12' 12' 24'

29
'

16'
7'

69
'

64
'

52
'

52
'

64
'

64
'

54
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

52
'

19
'

18'

42
'

18'

35'

19'

127'90'

52
'

52
'

231'

20
' 256'

34' 34'
319'

295'

20
'

18'
44'

14'

39
'

10'

9'

46' 15'

6'

18
' 36'

19'

19'

48'

35'

16'

14'

30
' 48'

23'
10

3'

49'

26
'

13
6'

16'

22'

44'

74'

22
'

10
4'

47'

18
' 36'

18
'

30'

13
0'

20'
29'

8'

16
' 45'

14
'

16'

11
'

72
'

11'

14
'

15'
11'

11
'

11'

14
'

18'

11
'

72
'

11'

14
'

18'

10
'

10'

19
'

10'

14
'

30
'

24'

20
'44'

19' 10
' 72' 10' 19

' 19' 10
' 72' 10' 19

'

10'

168'
8'

31
'

10'

24
'

10'

14'

10'

24
'

10'

10
'

8' 31'

19
'

24
'

24
'

10
5'

10
5'

24
'

24
'

10
5'

10
5'

24
'

24
'

64
'

64
'

64
'

35'

35'

41
'

41
'

14'

11
'

48
'

11'

19
'

11
'

11
'

14'

10'

74'

10'

16
'

14
'

10'

72
'

10'

14'

19
'

12'

72
'

11'

18'

19
'

10'

72
'

10'

19'

27
7'

16
'

17
'

11'

72'

10
'

58'

12'

12
0'

11
'

36' 73'

33
'

PRIVATE DRIVE LOT S1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

BUENA VISTA ROAD

CARRIAGE ROAD

18
'

LEASING

MAINTENANCE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

INSTALL
BARRICADE

65'

51'

51'

89'

89'

52
'

52
'

52
'

84
'

12' 12'
10

3' 10
4'

54
'

54
'

54
'

93'

61' 66'

90' 61' 66'

65'61'90'

52
'

52
'

52
'

92
'

69
'

61
'

93' 67' 71'66'

74'

105'

105'

84'

91'

52
'

52
'

91'

91'

12
'

12
'

86'

90'

102'

90'

90'

92
'

26
'

92'

59
'

9'

5' 18
' 36'

18
'

4'

26
'

15'

10'

78'

33'

51
'

20'

7'

39'

41'

15'

53' 11
' 11' 38' 11

'

72'

11'

13
'

90'

52
'

12
'

12
'

12
'

12
'

10
'

11
'

24
'

11'

10
'

48'

89'

108'

90'

90'

12
'

12
'

12
'

12
'

12
'

12
'

12'

12
'

12
'

11'

41'

10
9'

11
0'

91
'

91
'11

0'

11
0'

99'

15'

72
'

52
'

52
'

91'

179'

4682 SF 3168 SF 3427 SF

3417 SF3168 SF4682 SF

4682 SF

4684 SF 4657 SF

5150 SF

5559 SF

5587 SF

5616 SF

5644 SF

6216 SF

4864 SF 4784 SF

5603 SF

5377 SF

5405 SF

5433 SF

3426 SF3168 SF4653 SF

6508 SF

5466 SF

5483 SF

5514 SF

5533 SF

5516 SF

5068 SF3557 SF

3165 SF

5328 SF
5304 SF

3156 SF

3401 SF

3961 SF
5571 SF

5057 SF
5070 SF 3407 SF 3441 SF 3686 SF

5782 SF 6004 SF 5992 SF 5748 SF

90' 89'

5'

102'

96'

55
'

52
'

66'

5' 5'

6' 6'

5'

5' 5'

8'

5'

8' 5'

8'

50
'

10
'

12
'

12'

11
'11'

7'

44
'

13
6'

14'10'

84
'

30145 SF

30145 SF

632 SF

686 SF

621 SF

622 SF

1651 SF
1364 SF

625 SF
639 SF640 SF

808 SF

640 SF616 SF

616 SF

2745 SF

474 SF

2764 SF

946 SF

3672 SF

6426 SF

470 SF

2745 SF

644 SF

2626 SF

40
'

1

2

4

5

3

6

7

8

9

10

L1

L4

L13

L15

L23

L28

L5

L6

L7

L8

L19

L18

L20

L9

L10

L11 L12
L14

L16

L16

L17

L21

L22

L24

L25

L26

L27

L2

L3

L5

11

12

13

14

15

16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26 27

2829

30 31 32

333435

36 37 38

39

40

41424344

45 46 47

48

52
'

52
'

4987 SF 6257 SF

INSTALL CONCRETE PAD AND PARKING
AREA AS REQUIRED BY ENGINEERING AND

MANAGEMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

SHEET
NUMBER

D
A

TE
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.

JOB #:
DATE:
SCALE:
DRAWN:
DESIGN:
CHK'D:

PRELIM
INARY:

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

PL
OT

TE
D:

 0
5/

05
/2

02
1 

09
:4

9 
   

 P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 C
va

nd
er

ve
en

DW
GN

AM
E:

 F
:\2

0-
25

44
 H

ol
lis

te
r G

on
za

le
z P

ro
pe

rty
\P

la
nn

in
g\

TM
\T

M
2.

1_
SP

.3
.d

wg

SP.3
COPYRIGHT ©   2021  NORTHSTAR ENGINEERING GROUP, INC

20-2544

TPD
PMH/ CV
PMH

5/5/2021

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

,
16

20
 B

U
EN

A
 V

IS
TA

 M
U

LT
I-F

A
M

IL
Y

BOUNDARY LINE

CENTERLINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PARCEL LINE

CURB, GUTTER, AND SIDEWALK

CURB AND EDGE OF PAVEMENT

VALLEY GUTTER

SIDEWALK

MASONRY WALL

LOT NUMBER

LOT SQUARE FOOTAGE

LOT DIMENSION

EXISTING CONTOUR (MINOR)

EXISTING CONTOUR (MAJOR)

NA

NA

72NA

NA

NA

NA

NA



CARRIAGE ROAD

BUENA VISTA ROAD

LEASING

MAINTENANCE

1

2

4

5

3

6

7

8

9

10

L1

L4

L13

L15

L23

L28

L5

L6

L7

L8

L19

L18

L20

L9

L10

L11 L12
L14

L16

L16

L17

L21

L22

L24

L25

L26

L27

L2

L3

L5

11

12

13

14

15

16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26 27

2829

30 31 32

333435

36 37 38

39

40

41424344

45 46 47

48

WV
WV

WV

WV

WV
WV

WV
WV

WV
WV

ICV

WV

Ex
"IR

R
Ex

"IR
R

Ex
"IR

R
Ex

"IR
R

Ex
"IR

R
Ex

"IR
R

S=0.0050

S
=

0.
00

35
S

=
0.

00
35

S
=

0.
00

35

S=0.0035

S=0.0035

S
=

0.
00

35S=0.0035

S
=

0.
00

50

S
=

0.
00

35

S=0.0035

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S
=

0.
00

50

S=0.0035

S
=

0.
00

35

S=0.0035

S=
0.

00
35

S
=

0.
00

35

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S=0.0035

S
=

0.
00

35

S=0.0050

S
=

0.
00

50

S=0.0050

S
=

0.
00

50

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S=0.0030

S
=

0.
00

20
S

=
0.

00
18

S=0.0018
S=0.0018

S
=

0.
00

18

S=0.0018

S=0.0018

S=0.0050

S=0.0020

S=0.0018

S=0.0018

8"W 8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W 8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"W8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W 8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W 8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

S=0.0050
S=0.0020

S=0.0020
S=0.0050S=0.0020

S=0.0050

S=0.0050

S
=

0.
00

20

12"SD

18
"S

D
18

"S
D

24
"S

D

24"SD 24"SD 24"SD

24"SD

18"SD

12"SD

24
"S

D

24"SD

18
"S

D

18"SD 18"SD

S
=

0.
00

18

6"
S

S

6"SS

6"
S

S

8"SS

6"
S

S

8"
S

S

6"SS

8"SS

6"SS

6"SS

8"
S

S

8"SS

8"
S

S

8"SS

8"
S

S

6"SS8"SS

6"
S

S

8"SS

6"
S

S

6"
S

S

6"SS

8"
S

S
8"

S
S

6"SS

8"
S

S

6"SS

8"
S

S

6"SS

8"
S

S

6"SS

6"
S

S

S=0.0035

SSMH
265.36FL(6")E

SSMH
264.87FL(6")W
264.87FL(6")N
264.67FL(8")S

SSMH
264.22FL(8")N
264.42FL(6")W
264.22FL(8")S

SSMH
263.77FL(8")N
263.97FL(6")W
263.77FL(8")S

SSMH

263.32FL(8")N
263.52FL(6")W

263.32FL(8")S

SSMH

263.22FL(8")N
263.22FL(8")S

263.12FL(8")E

SSMH

262.12FL(8")W
262.02FL(8")N

262.02FL(8")S

SSMH

261.77FL(8")N
261.67FL(8")E

SS CONNECT
258.29FL(8")W

SSMH

265.28FL(6")N
265.18FL(6")E

SSMH
266.07FL(6")S

SSMH

263.77FL(6")W
263.57FL(8")N

SSMH
264.06FL(6")N
263.86FL(8")E

SSMH
264.26FL(6")E

SSMH
264.01FL(6")E

SSMH
264.46FL(6")E

SSMH
264.91FL(6")E

SSMH
265.07FL(6")S

SSMH
264.52FL(6")S

SSMH

264.01FL(6")N
263.81FL(8")E

SSMH

263.36FL(8")W
263.46FL(6")N

263.26FL(8")S

SSMH

263.04FL(8")N
263.24FL(6")E

263.04FL(8")S

SSMH
262.93FL(8")N
263.13FL(6")W
262.93FL(8")S

SSMH
262.47FL(8")N
262.67FL(6")W
262.47FL(8")S

SSMH
263.90FL(6")E

SSMH
264.23FL(6")E

SSMH
263.09FL(8")W
263.29FL(6")N
263.09FL(8")E

SSMH
262.56FL(8")W
262.66FL(6")E
262.46FL(8")N

SSMH
261.54FL(8")W
261.64FL(8")S
258.54FL(8")E

SSCO
262.97FL(6")W

SSCO
263.76FL(6")S

SSCO
264.38FL(6")W

SSMH

263.89FL(6")E
263.79FL(6")N

263.79FL(6")S

SSMH
263.99FL(6")S

SSCO
263.73FL(6")W

265.00FL(12")W
SDCB264.22FL(12")E

263.72FL(18")S

SDCB

263.02FL(18")N
262.52FL(24")S

SDCB

262.24FL(24")N
262.14FL(24")E

SDCB

263.19FL(24")W
263.28FL(24")E
263.18FL(24")N

SDMH

263.12FL(24")S
SD STORAGE

261.36FL(24")W
SD STORAGE

SDMH
261.39FL(24")E

265.00FL(12")SW
SDCB

265.00FL(18")NW
SDCB

263.55FL(24")NE
263.45FL(24")W

SDMH

267.30FL(12")S
SDCB

267.26FL(12")N
266.76FL(18")E

SDCB

266.39FL(18")W
266.38FL(18")E
266.28FL(18")N

SDCB

267.30FL(12")S
SDCB

267.26FL(12")N
266.76FL(18")W

SDCB

261.56FL(24")N
261.46FL(24")W
266.22FL(18")S
261.46FL(24")E

SDMH

SDCB
267.00FL(12")E

261.88FL(24")N
266.93FL(12")W
266.84FL(12")E
261.88FL(24")S

SDMH

267.00FL(12")W
SDCB

263.37FL(18")N
263.37FL(18")S

SDCB

CHAMBER STORAGE SYSTEM
AREA = 3975 SF
STORAGE = 0.60 AC-FT

CHAMBER STORAGE SYSTEM
AREA = 6921 SF
STORAGE = 1.04 AC-FT
BASIN STORAGE = 0.06 AC-FT

CHAMBER STORAGE SYSTEM
AREA = 3135 SF
STORAGE = 0.47 AC-FT

S
=

0.
00

50

SSMH

264.18FL(6")W
264.08FL(6")N

S=0.0050

SSMH
263.55FL(8")W
263.75FL(6")S
263.55FL(8")E

S
=

0.
00

50

6"SS

6"
S

S

8"SS S=0.0035

SSMH
264.44FL(6")S

EX. WELL

8"
W

8"
W

8"
W

CONNECT TO
EXISTING WATER

CONNECT TO
EXISTING WATER

CONNECT TO
EXISTING WATER

S=0.0018

262.07FL(24")W
263.28FL(24")E
261.97FL(24")S

SDMH

SDCB

264.76FL(12")NE
264.90FL(18")SE

263.76FL(24")SW

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

SHEET
NUMBER

D
A

TE
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.

JOB #:
DATE:
SCALE:
DRAWN:
DESIGN:
CHK'D:

PRELIM
INARY:

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

PL
OT

TE
D:

 0
5/

05
/2

02
1 

11
:2

7 
   

 P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 C
va

nd
er

ve
en

DW
GN

AM
E:

 F
:\2

0-
25

44
 H

ol
lis

te
r G

on
za

le
z P

ro
pe

rty
\P

la
nn

in
g\

TM
\T

M
3.

1_
SP

.4
.d

wg

SP.4
COPYRIGHT ©   2021  NORTHSTAR ENGINEERING GROUP, INC

20-2544

TPD
PMH/ CV
PMH

5/5/2021

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

,
16

20
 B

U
EN

A
 V

IS
TA

 M
U

LT
I-F

A
M

IL
Y

BOUNDARY LINE

CENTERLINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PARCEL LINE

FIRE HYDRANT

CATCH BASIN

DRAIN INLET

WATER LINE

SANITARY SEWER

STORM DRAIN

IRRIGATION MAIN

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

SEWER MANHOLE

NA

NA

NA

NA

NTS



PRIVATE DRIVE LOT S1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

BUENA VISTA ROAD

CARRIAGE ROAD

LEASING

MAINTENANCE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E
 L

O
T 

S
1

1

2

4

5

3

6

7

8

9

10

L1

L4

L13

L15

L23

L28

L5

L6

L7

L8

L19

L18

L20

L9

L10

L11 L12
L14

L16

L16

L17

L21

L22

L24

L25

L26

L27

L2

L3

L5

11

12

13

14

15

16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26 27

2829

30 31 32

333435

36 37 38

39

40

41424344

45 46 47

48

EX. WELL

27
3.9

5F
L

27
3.4

6F
L

27
3.6

6F
L

27
3.2

3F
L

27
2.9

5F
L

27
3.2

4F
L

27
4.9

9F
L

27
4.7

4F
L

27
2.5

6F
L

27
2.4

0F
L

27
3.3

5L
IP

27
3.3

5L
IP

27
3.1

0F
L

27
2.7

8F
L

27
2.0

3F
L

27
2.2

7F
L

27
0.9

8F
L

271.47LIP

271.47LIP

27
1.1

8L
IP

27
1.0

7F
L

27
1.8

7F
L

271.40FL27
2.0

7F
L

27
2.7

4F
L

27
1.9

1F
L

27
1.9

9F
L

27
1.5

9F
L

27
2.1

0F
L

27
1.4

7F
L

27
1.7

9F
L

27
1.2

8F
L

27
0.9

6F
L

27
1.2

7F
L

27
1.7

8F
L

271.43FL

27
2.0

8F
L

27
2.7

7F
L

27
2.2

2F
L

27
2.3

5F
L

27
2.8

6F
L

27
2.7

3F
L

27
2.2

3F
L

27
2.0

9F
L

27
1.7

6F
L

27
2.0

7F
L

27
2.2

6F
L

27
2.5

9F
L

27
2.6

1F
L

27
2.7

0F
L

27
3.2

4F
L

27
2.8

6F
L

27
3.2

2F
L

27
3.6

4L
IP

273.94LIP

273.37LIP

272.48LIP27
2.

98
LI

P

272.58LIP

272.49LIP272.43LIP

27
3.3

7L
IP

27
3.9

0L
IP 274.00LIP

27
3.4

3F
L

27
3.6

9F
L

27
3.3

5F
L

27
2.7

0F
L

1.80%

0.67%

0.
40

%

0.43%

0.64%

0.
43

%

0.50%

0.4
3%

0.45%

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%

0.48%0.50% 0.48%

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%0.50%

0.50%

0.50% 0.50%

0.40%

0.50% 0.50%0.50%

0.
62

%

0.
50

%

0.
55

%

0.
50

%

0.59%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
55

%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.41% 0.40% 0.40% 0.41%

0.41%

0.60%

272.27FL

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

SHEET
NUMBER

D
A

TE
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.

JOB #:
DATE:
SCALE:
DRAWN:
DESIGN:
CHK'D:

PRELIM
INARY:

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

PL
OT

TE
D:

 0
5/

05
/2

02
1 

09
:5

2 
   

 P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 C
va

nd
er

ve
en

DW
GN

AM
E:

 F
:\2

0-
25

44
 H

ol
lis

te
r G

on
za

le
z P

ro
pe

rty
\P

la
nn

in
g\

TM
\T

M
4.

1_
SP

.5
.d

wg

SP.5
COPYRIGHT ©   2021  NORTHSTAR ENGINEERING GROUP, INC

20-2544

TPD
PMH/ CV
PMH

5/5/2021

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

,
16

20
 B

U
EN

A
 V

IS
TA

 M
U

LT
I-F

A
M

IL
Y

0.50%

BOUNDARY LINE

CENTERLINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PARCEL LINE

CATCH BASIN

DRAIN INLET

DIRECTION/ SLOPE OF FLOW

FLOW LINE ELEVATION

CONTOUR (MINOR)

COUNTOR (MAJOR)

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA



CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

1620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

Conceptual Perspective Renderings - Buena Vista Road Frontage

PR















A1.11620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

2'-0"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

2'-0"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

DUPLEX - Building 100A | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.21620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET
DN

24
68

2468

W D

26
68

2868

26
68

BI
-P

AS
S

60
68

BI-PASS6068

C HS

C HS

CHS

C
HS

2668

24
68

BDRM. 3  
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

SERV.
9'-0" CLG.
H.S.

BA. 2
9'-0" CLG.
H.S.

PRIMARY
BDRM.
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

PRIMARY
BATH
9'-0" CLG.
H,S,

W.I.C.
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

LOFT
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

BDRM. 2
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

17R

LinenSERV.
9'-0" CLG.
H.S.BA. 2

9'-0" CLG.
H.S.

W.I.C.
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

LOFT
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

BDRM. 3
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

BDRM. 2
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

W.I.C.
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

PRIMARY
BATH
9'-0" CLG.
H,S,

PRIMARY
BDRM.
9'-0" CLG.
CARPET

DN
17R

D

W

CHS

C
HS

5068 BI-PASS

2868

C HS

CHS

2468

26
68

2668

2468

26
68

24
68

24
68

Linen

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1.1

-

A1.1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

2'-0"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

DUPLEX - Building 100A | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.31620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

DUPLEX - Building 100A | Exterior Elevations

Rear

Front

"FARMHOUSE"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Exterior:	 Stucco / Fiber Cement Batts over Fiber Cement 		
	 Panel or Fiber Cement Lap Siding
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over / Fiber Cement Trim
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Post:	 Wood
Brace:	 Wood / Prefabricated
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

Right

Left

Note: Ar tist’s conception; colors, materials and application may vary

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 3Plan 3

Plan 4

Plan 3

Plan 4

Plan 4

Plan 3

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.41620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

DUPLEX - Building 100B | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.51620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

BDRM. 3  

SERV.
BA. 2

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 2

SERV.
BA. 2

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 3BDRM. 2

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATHPRIMARY

BDRM.

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1.5.1

-

A1.5.1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENDINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

54'-2"

27'-0"2"

1'-
0"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

22'-7"

54'-2"

4'-5" 2" 25'-0" 2'-0"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

DUPLEX PLANS 3, 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1537 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

DUPLEX - Building 100B | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.61620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

DUPLEX - Building 100B | Exterior Elevations

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 6

"CRAFTSMAN"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Outlooker/Brace:	 Wood or Prefabricated
Exterior:	 Stucco
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Potshelf / Corbel:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Post:	 Wood
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

Plan 3 Plan 3

Plan 4Plan 4

Plan 4

Plan 3 Rear

Front

Right

Left

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.71620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

602 CEMENTITIOUS TRIM  - SIZE PER DETAIL

603 CEMENTITIOUS CORNER TRIM - SIZE PER DETAIL

604 1X3 WOOD BATS -  SPACING PER ELEVATION

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER ELEVATION

644 HARDIEPANEL VERTICAL SIDING. FINISH: CEDARMILL (INSTALLATION PER
MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS) (1) LAYER15# BUILDING FELT (OR APPROVED
EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

650B FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING - 5/16" THICK 'HARDIPLANK' (OR EQUIVALENT). FINISH SELECT
CEDARMILL. EXPOSURE 6" INSTALLATION PER MANUFACTURER; INSTRUCTIONS.  (1)
LAYER15# BUILDING FELT (OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
LISTING

701 G.I. FLASHING

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.T.G.

T.G.T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

5:12 5:12

5:12 5:12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

5:12
6:12

6:12

6:
12

6:
12

RIDGE

RI
DG

E

RI
DG

E

RI
DG

E

RIDGE R

R

VALLEYVA
LL

EY

VALLEY

RI
DG

E

VALLEY

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VA
LL

EY

1'-0"

1'-
0"

3'-
9"

A1.4

-

A1.4

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. A ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

FARMHOUSE

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

591 DECORATIVE SHUTTER (SIZE AND STYLE PER ELEVATION)

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER ELEVATION

626 OUTLOOKER ASSEMBLY - WOOD (SIZE/SHAPE PER ELEVATION)

701 G.I. FLASHING

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.T.G.

T.G.T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT BUENA
VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

5:12 5:12

5:12 5:12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

5:12
6:12

6:12

6:
12

6:
12

RIDGE

RI
DG

E

RI
DG

E

RI
DG

E

RIDGE R

R

VALLEYVA
LL

EY

VALLEY

RI
DG

E

VALLEY

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VA
LL

EY

1'-0"

1'-
0"

3'-
9"

A1.6

-

A1.6

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. B ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

CRAFTSMAN

DUPLEX - Building 100 | Roof Plans

Building 100A | Farmhouse 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Slate Tile

Building 100B | Craftsman 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Shake Tile

0 	 4	 8                  16

Plan 4 Plan 4Plan 3 Plan 3



A1.81620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

KITCHENLIVING

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

2 CAR
GARAGE

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

22'-7" 4'-5"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

83'-10"

PORCH

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

KITCHENLIVING

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

2 CAR
GARAGE

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

22'-7" 4'-5"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

83'-10"

PORCH

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 200A | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.91620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

W.I.C.

SERV.

BA. 

JR. SUITE

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

TECH/
LOFT

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH

PRIMARY
BDRM.

BDRM. 3
BDRM. 2

SERV.

BA. 2

50
50

SL

SERV.
BA. 2

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 3

BDRM. 2
W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH PRIMARY

BDRM.

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.1

-

A1.1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

KITCHENLIVING

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

2 CAR
GARAGE

27'-0"

25
'-2

"

39
'-0

"

1'-
0"

22'-7" 4'-5"

6'-
4"

6'-
6"

31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

83'-10"

PORCH

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 200A | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.101620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

TRIPLEX - Building 200A | Exterior Elevations

Rear

Front

Right

Left

Note: Ar tist’s conception; colors, materials and application may vary

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 2Plan 2

Plan 3

Plan 1

Plan 1

Plan 2

Plan 3

Plan 3

Plan 2"FARMHOUSE"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Exterior:	 Stucco / Fiber Cement Batts over Fiber Cement 		
	 Panel or Fiber Cement Lap Siding
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over / Fiber Cement Trim
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Post:	 Wood
Brace:	 Wood / Prefabricated
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.111620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY
5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 27'-0"2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

79'-10"

21'-7" 9'-6" 21'-7" 22'-7"2" 4'-5"

39
'-0

"

25
'-2

"
6'-

4"
1'-

0"

7'-
1"

7'-
1"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

6'-
6"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

PORCH

4'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 27'-0"2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

79'-10"

21'-7" 9'-6" 21'-7" 22'-7"2" 4'-5"

39
'-0

"

25
'-2

"
6'-

4"
1'-

0"

7'-
1"

7'-
1"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

6'-
6"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

PORCH

4'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 200B | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.121620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

W.I.C.

SERV.

BA. 

JR. SUITE

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

TECH/
LOFT

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH

PRIMARY
BDRM.

BDRM. 3
BDRM. 2

SERV.

BA. 2

50
50

SL

SERV.
BA. 2

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 3 BDRM. 2

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH PRIMARY

BDRM.

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5.1

-

A151

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 27'-0"2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

79'-10"

21'-7" 9'-6" 21'-7" 22'-7"2" 4'-5"

39
'-0

"

25
'-2

"
6'-

4"
1'-

0"

7'-
1"

7'-
1"

1'-
0"

6'-
0"

6'-
6"

KITCHEN DINING GREAT RM.

ENTRY

2 CAR
GARAGE

COVD.
ENTRY

PWDR.

DINING 

PORCH

4'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 3

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 3
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 527 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 1005 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1532 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  431 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 40 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 48 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A15

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 200B | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.131620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

TRIPLEX - Building 200B | Exterior Elevations

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 5Plan 2

Plan 3

Plan 1Plan 2

Plan 3

Plan 3

Plan 2Plan 1 "CRAFTSMAN"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Outlooker/Brace:	 Wood or Prefabricated
Exterior:	 Stucco
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Potshelf / Corbel:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Post:	 Wood
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

Rear

Front

Right

Left

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.141620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

602 CEMENTITIOUS TRIM  - SIZE PER DETAIL

613 SHAPED 4x8 WOOD BEAM

627 KNEE BRACE ASSEMBLY - WOOD (SIZE /SHAPE PER ELEVATION)

650B FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING - 5/16" THICK 'HARDIPLANK' (OR EQUIVALENT).
FINISH SELECT CEDARMILL. EXPOSURE 6" INSTALLATION PER MANUFACTURER;
INSTRUCTIONS.  (1) LAYER15# BUILDING FELT (OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT) INSTALL
PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

701 G.I. FLASHING

T.G. T.G.

T.G. T.G.

T.G. T.G.T.G.

T.G. T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

5:12 5:12

5:12 5:12

RIDGE

1'-0"

1'-
0"

5:12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

5:12

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VALLEYVA
LL

EY

VALLEYVA
LL

EY
VA

LL
EY

5:
12

5:12

5:
12

1'-0"

A1.4

-

A1.4

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. A ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

FARMHOUSE

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

591 DECORATIVE SHUTTER (SIZE AND STYLE PER ELEVATION)

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER ELEVATION

626 OUTLOOKER ASSEMBLY - WOOD (SIZE/SHAPE PER ELEVATION)

701 G.I. FLASHING

T.G. T.G.

T.G. T.G.

T.G. T.G.T.G.

T.G.T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

5:12 5:12

5:12 5:12

RIDGE

1'-0"

1'-
0"

5:12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

5:12

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

VALLEYVA
LL

EY

VALLEYVA
LL

EY

VA
LL

EY

5:
12

5:12

5:
12

A1.6

-

A1.4

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. B ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

CRAFTSMAN

TRIPLEX - Building 200 | Roof Plans

Building 200A | Farmhouse 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Slate Tile

Building 200B | Craftsman 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Shake Tile

0 	 4	 8                  16

Plan 3 Plan 3Plan 1 Plan 1Plan 2 Plan 2



A1.151620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY
5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

27'-0"

27'-0"31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

85'-10"

2'-0"

2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

27'-0"

27'-0"31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

85'-10"

2'-0"

2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 300A | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.161620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

BDRM. 3  

SERV.
BA. 2

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 2

W.I.C.

SERV.

BA. 

JR. SUITE

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

TECH/
LOFT

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH

PRIMARY
BDRM.

BDRM. 3
BDRM. 2

SERV.

BA. 2

4050SL

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.1

-

A11

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

101 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM THE RESIDENCE AND ITS ATTIC BY
MEANS OF A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQUIVALENT, APPLIED TO THE GARAGE SIDE PER CRC
SECTION R302.6.

102 ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER STAIRS SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER STAIR SURFACE
AND ANY SOFFITS PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD PER CRC
SECTION R302.7

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

305 TANK LESS WATER HEATER. INSTALALTION PR MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CA, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

312 METAL FIREPLACE (GAS APPLIANCE) - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
MANUFACTURER, MODEL NUMBER AND APPROVAL LISTING PER PLAN OR APPROVED EQUAL

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

329 DUCT CHASE

335 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT TO OUTSIDE

336 5" DIA. DRYER VENT WITH APPROVED LINT TRAP  - VENT THROUGH ROOF

343 RANGE HOODS OR COMBINATION MICROWAVE/HOOD FANS RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A
MINIMUM OF 100 CFM.  EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE AIR.

351 REFRIGERATOR SPACE WITH RECESS COLD WATER BOX

355 SINK WITH GARBAGE DISPOSER

357 UTILITY SINK

359 DISHWASHER

362 SLIDE-IN RANGE/OVEN & EXHAUST HOOD WITH FAN AND LIGHT (EXHAUST VENT TO OUTSIDE)

372 WASHER SPACE WITH RECESSED WATER BOX AND DRAIN PAN

373 DRYER SPACE

380 TUB/SHOWER

381 CURTAIN ROD

382 SHATERPROOF SHOWER DOOR/ENCLOSURE

386 SHOWER - PREFABRICATED STALL - SIZE PER PLAN

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

410 LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

411 LINE OF FLOOR BELOW

414 LINE OF DROP BEAM - SIZE PER STRUCTURAL

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

441 GYP. BD. SHELF/LOW WALL - WIDTH AND HEIGHT PER PLAN

443 2x CRIPPLE WALL - SIZE PER PLAN

444 +34" - 38" HANDRAIL (SEE DETAIL 1G/D5.1)

445 +42" GUARD (SEE DETAIL 25/D5.1)

448 +42" GUARDRAIL WITH BALUSTERS - SEE DETAIL 1E/5.1

451 KITCHEN ISLAND - PROVIDE APPROVED UNDERGROUND CONDUIT FIR ELECTRIC SERVICE TO
ISLAND

453 PANTRY

456 LINEN (UPPER & LOWER)

457 LINEN (LOW ONLY)

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

463 SHELF AND DOUBLE POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

79'-10"

26'-6" 26'-0" 2"2"

38
'-0

"

13
'-1

1 2"
12

'-1
1 2"

12
'-9

"

2"

27'-0"

27'-0"31'-1"21'-7"

4'-0"

4'-0"

85'-10"

2'-0"

2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1

-

A1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 300A | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.171620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

TRIPLEX - Building 300A | Exterior Elevations

Rear

Front

Right

Left

Note: Ar tist’s conception; colors, materials and application may vary

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 1

"FARMHOUSE"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Exterior:	 Stucco / Fiber Cement Batts over Fiber Cement 		
	 Panel or Fiber Cement Lap Siding
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over / Fiber Cement Trim
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Post:	 Wood
Brace:	 Wood / Prefabricated
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

Plan 2

Plan 4

Plan 1

Plan 1

Plan 2

Plan 4

Plan 4

Plan 2

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.181620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY
5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

26'-6"

13
'-1

1 2"

38
'-0

"

26'-0" 27'-0"2" 2"

12
'-1

1 2"
12

'-9
"

79'-10"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

1'-
0"

21'-7"

79'-10"

9'-101
2" 21'-21

2" 25'-0" 2'-0"2"

4'-0"

4'-0" 2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A1.5

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

26'-6"

13
'-1

1 2"

38
'-0

"

26'-0" 27'-0"2" 2"

12
'-1

1 2"
12

'-9
"

79'-10"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

1'-
0"

21'-7"

79'-10"

9'-101
2" 21'-21

2" 25'-0" 2'-0"2"

4'-0"

4'-0" 2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A1.5

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 300B | Floor Plan First Floor



A1.191620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

BDRM. 3  

SERV.
BA. 2

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

LOFT

BDRM. 2

W.I.C.

SERV.

BA. 

JR. SUITE

PRIMARY
BDRM.

PRIMARY
BATH

W.I.C.

TECH/
LOFT

W.I.C.

PRIMARY
BATH

PRIMARY
BDRM.

BDRM. 3
BDRM. 2

SERV.

BA. 2

4050SL

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5.1

-

A1.5.1

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

005 CONCRETE GARAGE SLAB - SLOPE 1/8" PER FOOT MINIMUM IN DIRECTION INDICATED

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 36" DEEP AND 2" WIDER THAN THE DOOR OPENING - SLOPE 1/4" PER
FOOT MAXIMUM TO DRAIN IN DIRECTION INDICATED

104 GARAGE AND/OR CARPORT WITH HABITABLE ROOMS ABOVE SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM
THE RESIDENCE BY A MIN. 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD., OR EQ.  STRUCTURE(S) SUPPORTING THE
FLR./CLG. ASSEMBLY USED FOR SEPARATION SHALL BE A MIN. 1/2" GYP. BD., OR EQ. PER
CRC SEC. R302.6.

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER PLAN

VARIES

4" MIN.
6" MAX.

5"

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

KITCHEN

PWDR.

ENTRY

DININGGREAT RM.

STORAGE

DROP
ZONE

KITCHENLIVING

5"

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

PWDR.
ENTRY

DINING

2 CAR
GARAGE

PWDR.

GREAT RM. KITCHEN

PORCH ENTRY

5"

VA
RI

ES

4" 
MI

N.
7 3

/4"
 M

AX
.

5"

2 CAR
GARAGE

26'-6"

13
'-1

1 2"

38
'-0

"

26'-0" 27'-0"2" 2"

12
'-1

1 2"
12

'-9
"

79'-10"

32
'-0

"

39
'-0

"

6'-
0"

1'-
0"

21'-7"

79'-10"

9'-101
2" 21'-21

2" 25'-0" 2'-0"2"

4'-0"

4'-0" 2'-0"

TRIPLEX 'A' PLANS 2, 1, & 4

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 4
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 564 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 973 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1538 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  450 SQ. FT.

  COVERED ENTRY 11 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 2
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 470 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 934 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1404 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  473 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 46 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA TABLE PLAN 1
  LOWER FLOOR PLAN 479 SQ. FT.

  UPPER FLOOR PLAN 866 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 1345 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE  446 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 59 SQ. FT.

A1.5

-

A1.5

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

02-9-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 T
R

IP
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

2-
9-

21

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

TRIPLEX - Building 300B | Floor Plan Second Floor



A1.201620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

TRIPLEX - Building 300B | Exterior Elevations

Rear

Front

Right

Left

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

Scheme 4Plan 2

Plan 4

Plan 1

Plan 1

Plan 2

Plan 4

Plan 4

Plan 2"CRAFTSMAN"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Outlooker/Brace:	 Wood or Prefabricated
Exterior:	 Stucco
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Window:	 Vinyl
Shutter:	 Prefabricated
Potshelf / Corbel:	 Foam with Stucco Over
Post:	 Wood
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
29

'-0
''



A1.211620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

602 CEMENTITIOUS TRIM  - SIZE PER DETAIL

613 SHAPED 4x8 WOOD BEAM

627 KNEE BRACE ASSEMBLY - WOOD (SIZE /SHAPE PER ELEVATION)

650B FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING - 5/16" THICK 'HARDIPLANK' (OR EQUIVALENT).
FINISH SELECT CEDARMILL. EXPOSURE 6" INSTALLATION PER MANUFACTURER;
INSTRUCTIONS.  (1) LAYER15# BUILDING FELT (OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT) INSTALL
PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

701 G.I. FLASHING

T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

+12" +0"

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G. T.G.
T.G.T.G.

T.G. T.G. T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

5:
12

1'-0"

1'-
0"

5:12

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VA
LL

EY

VA
LL

EY5:12

5:
12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

5:12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

VALLEY

VA
LL

EY

VALLEY

VALLEY

R

R

6:12

6:12

6:
12

R

5:12

5:12

A1.4

-

A1.4

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. A ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

FARMHOUSE

ELEVATION KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

203 ADDRESS PANEL.  6" MIN. HIGH BUILDING ADDRESS CHARACTERS PLACED IN SUCH A
POSITION TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET.

207 COACH LIGHT LOCATION

308 TANK LESS WATER HEATER TERMINATION CAP - INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS (CO-AXIAL
VENT INTAKE & EXHAUST DIRECTLY FROM OUTSIDE)

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

521 STUCCO - 16/20 SAND FINISH -  (2) LAYERS BUILDING PAPER "GMC CRAFT 60" ICC# ESR
2376 (OR EQUIVALENT) INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S LISTING

525 STUCCO OVER RIGID FOAM TRIM - FOAM SHAPE PER DETAIL

591 DECORATIVE SHUTTER (SIZE AND STYLE PER ELEVATION)

610 WOOD POST - SIZE PER ELEVATION

626 OUTLOOKER ASSEMBLY - WOOD (SIZE/SHAPE PER ELEVATION)

701 G.I. FLASHING

T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

+12" +0"

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G. T.G.
T.G.T.G.

T.G. T.G. T.G.

ENHANCEMENTS AT
BUENA VISTA ROAD

T.G.

1'-0"

1'-
0"

5:12

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VA
LL

EY

VA
LL

EY5:12

5:
12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

6:
12

6:
12

RI
DG

E

VALLEY VA
LL

EY

5:12

5:12

5:12

5:12

RIDGE

VALLEY

VA
LL

EY

VALLEY

VALLEY

R

R

6:12

6:12

5:12

5:12

5:
12

A1.6

-

A1.6

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

2020232

03-02-21

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 D
U

P
LE

X
HO

LL
IS

TE
R,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

DA
NV

IL
LE

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 0

3-
02

-2
1

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2021   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

ELEVATION REFERENCE: BLDG. B ELEVATION STYLE:

ROOF MATERIAL STANDARD ROOF
DETAIL U.N.O.

FASCIA - BARGE - OVERHANG DIM. - U.N.O.
U.N.O. U.N.O. EAVE RAKE

ROOF PLAN SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

"EAGLE ROOFING" ICC# ESR-1900

ROOF PLAN NOTES
NOTE:  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLAR READY BUILDINGS PER CEnC SECTION 110.10.
1. SEE GENERAL NOTES FOR ROOF NOTES.
2. SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
3. ATTIC ACCESS PER CBC SECTION R807.
4. PROVIDE ATTIC & SOFFIT VENTILATION PER CBC SECTION R806.  PER CBC SECTION R806.2, THE MINIMUM NET FREE 4.

VENTILATING AREA SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE.  EXCEPTION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATION
AREA SHALL BE 1/300 OF THE VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS ARE MET:
· IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE

CEILING.
· NOT LESS THAN 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY

VENTILATORS LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE. UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE
LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE  REQUIRED VENTILATION PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE
LOCATION OF WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS,
INSTALLATION MORE THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED.

CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILE 12" 12"2X6 2X6
1

D1

CRAFTSMAN

TRIPLEX - Building 300 | Roof Plans

Building 300A | Farmhouse 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Slate Tile

Building 300B | Craftsman 

Eave 12''  |  Rake 12''
Concrete Shake Tile

0 	 4	 8                  16

Plan 4 Plan 4Plan 1 Plan 1Plan 2 Plan 2



A1.221620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

SHADE

PORCH

UNISEX ADA
RESTROOM

OFFICE #1

OFFICE #2

WORK

WAITING

201

201

GRAB BAR
W/ BACKING

AB C

33
"

1'-0"
MIN.

36" MIN.

2'-0"
MIN.

6"

44
" M

AX
.

17"-18"
CLR.

29
" M

IN
.

34
" M

AX
.

40
" M

AX
.

29
" M

IN
.

27
" M

IN
.

8"
MIN.

17"
MIN.

6"
MAX.

9" M
IN

.34
" M

AX
.

40
" M

AX
.

9'-
0"

9'-
0"

9'-
0"

36" MAX.

54" MIN.

1'-0"
MIN.2'-0"

MIN.

42" MIN.

7"-9"

19
"

M
IN

.

17
"-1

9" 33
"

INTERIOR ELEVATION - RESTROOM

009

012 011 013010 012

GRAB BAR
W/ BACKING

60" DIA.

TURNING CIRCLE

20 40 SH

30" x 48" CLR.
FLR. SPACE

60" x 48" CLR.
FLR. SPACE

010

013

012

011

1'-0"
MIN.

28"
MIN.

36" MIN.

2'-0"
MIN.

6"

1'-6"
MIN.

1'-
0"

M
IN

.
3'-

6"
 M

IN
.

4'-
6"

 M
IN

.

2'-
0"

M
IN

.

1'-6"
MIN.

4'-
0"

M
IN

.

AS0.1

C
HS

PROVIDE "INSTA-HOT"
ELECTRIC WATER
HEATER @ LAVATORY

SHADE

PORCH

UNISEX ADA
RESTROOM

OFFICE #1

OFFICE #2

WORK

WAITING

ACCESSIBLE TOILET SYMBOLS AND WALL SIGNAGE
DOOR REPRESENTATIONAL ONLY

1/4" THICK - BLUE

1/4" THICK - BLUE

1/4" THICK - BLUE
1/4" THICK - WHITE

UNISEX SIGN

MEN'S SIGN

WOMEN'S SIGN

6"
5" 5"

1"1"

1/
2"

6"

9"EQEQ

5'-
0"

5'-
0"

9"

WOMEN

WOMEN

MEN

UNISEX SYMBOL

WOMEN'S SYMBOL

MEN'S SYMBOL

1'-
0"

 D
IA

1'-
0"

 D
IA

UNISEX

1'-
0"

PICTORAL SYMBOL PER CBC
1117B.6

CHARACTERS PER CBC
1117B.5.4, AND 1117B.5.6

BRAILLE SYMBOLS CBC
1117B.5.2 AND CBC 1117B.5.6

SYMBOL NOTES:

1. IDENTIFICATION SYMBOLS SHALL BE PER CBC SECTION
1117.5 .1, ITEM 1 & 1115B.6.
2. CENTERLINE OF SYMBOL SHALL ALIGN WITH CENTER
OF DOOR.
3. CENTERLINE OF SYMBOL SHALL BE + 5'-0" ABOVE
FINISH FLOOR.
4. REFER TO SIGNAGE CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS FOR
SIGN MATERIALS.

SIGNAGE NOTES:

1. IDENTIFICATION SIGNS SHALL BE PER CBC SECTION
1117B.5.
2. CENTERLINE OF SIGN SHALL BE 9" FROM THE LATCH
SIDE OF DOOR
3. CENTERLINE OF SIGN SHALL BE + 5'-0" ABOVE FINISH
FLOOR.
4. BRAILLE AND RAISED LETTERING ON SEPARATE SIGN
ADJACENT TO THE LATCH SIDE OF THE DOOR
5. REFER TO SIGNAGE CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS FOR
SIGN MATERIALS AND REQUIRED COLORS.

SUBMIT FULL SIZE SAMPLES OF ALL SIGNS TO
THE ARCHITECT AND SIGNAGE CONSULTANT
FOR APPOVAL.

WHITE

WHITE

BLUE

BLUE PROFILE
ON WHITE
BACKGROUND

(A) SYMBOL PROPORTIONS

INTERNATIONAL
ACCESSIBILITY

SYMBOL

WHITE PROFILE
ON BLUE
BACKGROUND

THIS DIAGRAM ILLUSTRATES THE SPECIFIC
REQUIREMENTS OF THESE REGULATIONS AND
IS INTENDED ONLY AS AN AID FOR BUILDING
DESIGN AND CONST.

(B) DISPLAY CONDITIONS

1. PER C.B.C. 1127A.1, WHEN PROVIDED, COMMON USE AREAS AND FACILITIES IN COVERED MULTIFAMILY HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS SHALL
BE ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. COMMON USE FACILITIES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, LOBBIES, TOILET AND
BATHING FACILITIES, LAUNDRY FACILITIES, COMMUNITY ROOMS, CLUBHOUSES, HEALTH AND FITNESS FACILITIES, GAME ROOMS AND
PORTIONS OF COMMON USE TENANT STORAGE. ALL ENTRANCES, DOORS, FIXTURES AND CONTROLS SHALL BE ON AN ACCESSIBLE
ROUTE. NOTE: FOR PUBLIC USE FACILITIES, REFER TO C.B.C. CHAPTER 11B.

2. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11.1, IF FIXED STORAGE FACILITIES (SUCH AS CABINETS, SHELVES, CLOSETS OR DRAWERS) ARE PROVIDED
WHERE ACCESS IS REQUIRED, AT LEAST ONE OF EACH TYPE OF FACILITY PROVIDED SHALL COMPLY WITH THE ACCESSIBILITY
REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMON USE STORAGE, PER SECTION 1127A.11. ADDITIONAL STORAGE MAY BE PROVIDED OUTSIDE OF THE REACH
RANGES SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3.

3. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11.2, A CLEAR FLOOR SPACE AT LEAST 30" BY 48", COMPLYING WITH THE SPACE ALLOWANCES OF C.B.C.
SECTION 1138A.1.4, THAT ALLOWS EITHER A FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH BY A PERSON USING A WHEELCHAIR, SHALL BE
PROVIDED AT ACCESSIBLE STORAGE FACILITIES.

4. PER C.B.C. 1127A.11.3, ACCESSIBLE STORAGE SPACES AND CLOTHES RODS SHALL BE WITHIN AT LEAST ONE OF THE REACH RANGES
SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3 AND FIGURES 11A-1J AND 11A-1I.

5.

6. HARDWARE FOR ACCESSIBLE STORAGE FACILITIES SHALL COMPLY WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4 "CONTROLS AND OPERATING
MECHANISMS" (SEE NEXT SECTION  ON THIS SHEET.) TOUCH LATCHES AND U-SHAPED PULLS ARE ACCEPTABLE.

COMMON USE FACILITIES (C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11) CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS

1. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS IN ACCESSIBLE SPACES, ALONG ACCESSIBLE ROUTES OR AS PART OF
ACCESSIBLE ELEMENTS SHALL COMPLY WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4:
1. PROVIDE A CLEAR FLOOR SPACE COMPLYING WITH C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.1.4 (SEE "SPACE ALLOWANCES"

REQUIREMENTS ABOVE) THAT ALLOWS A FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH BY A PERSON USING A
WHEELCHAIR AT ALL CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS.

2. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE LOCATED NO HIGHER THAN 48" AND NO LOWER THAN 15"
ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR MEASURED TO THE CENTER OF THE GRIP. IF THE REACH IS OVER AN
OBSTRUCTION, CONTROLS ADN OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE LOCATED WITH THE REACH RANGES
SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3 (SEE "REACH RANGES" REQUIREMENTS ABOVE.) CONTROLS AND
OPERATING MECHANISMS THAT DO NOT SATISFY THESE SPECIFICATIONS ARE ACCEPTABLE, PROVIDED THAT
COMPARABLE MECHANISMS, CONTROLS OR OUTLETS, THAT PERFORM THE SAME FUNCTIONS, ARE PROVIDED
WITHIN THE SAME AREA AND ARE ACCESSIBLE.

3. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE OPERABLE WITH ONE HAND AND SHALL NOT REQUIRE
TIGHT GRASPING, PINCHING OR TWISTING OF THE WRIST. THE FORCE REQUIRED TO ACTIVATE CONTROLS AND
OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 5 POUNDS (22.2N).

(C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4) SPACE ALLOWANCES 
1. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1137A, THE SPACE ALLOWANCES AND REACH RANGES SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A AS

FOLLOWS APPLY TO FEATURES AND FACILITIES OF COMMON USE AREAS ON ACCESSIBLE FLOORS OR SITES AND ARE
NOT APPLICABLE TO DWELLING UNITS, UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.

2. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3, THE SPACE REQUIRED FOR A WHEELCHAIR TO MAKE A 180-DEGREE TURN SHALL BE
EITHER A CIRCULAR CLEAR SPACE OR A T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE COMPLYING WITH THE FOLLOWING
REQUIREMENTS:
1. THE CIRCULAR CLEAR TURNING SPACE SHALL BE 60" DIAMETER MINIMUM, PER C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.1.3 AND

FIGURE 11A-1D.
2. THE T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE SHALL BE WITHIN A 60" SQUARE MINIMUM WITH ARMS AND BASE 36"

MINIMUM WIDE. EACH ARM OF THE T SHALL BE CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS 12" MIN. IN EACH DIRECTION AND
THE BASE SHALL BE CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS 24" MINIMUM, PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3.1 AND FIGURE
11A-1D.

3. THE CIRCULAR TURNING SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INCLUDE KNEE AND TOE CLEARANCE COMPLYING
WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.2. THE T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INCLUDE KNEE AND
TOE CLEARANCE COMPLYING WITH C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.2 ONLY AT THE END OF EITHER THE BASE OR ONE ARM.

4. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3.2, SURFACES OF TURNING SPACES FOR WHEELCHAIRS SHALL BE STABLE, FIRM,
SLIP RESISTANT. CHANGES IN LEVEL ARE NOT PERMITTED. SLOPES NOT STEEPER THAN 1:48 SHALL BE
PERMITTED.

3. PER C.B.C SECTION 1138A.1.4.1, THE MINIMUM CLEAR FLOOR OR GROUND SPACE FOR WHEELCHAIRS SHALL BE 30"
BY 48" AND MAY BE POSITIONED FOR FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH TO AN OBJECT. CLEAR FLOOR OR GROUND
SPACE MAY BE PART OF THE KNEE AND TOE SPACE REQUIRED UNDER SOME OBJECTS UNLESS OTHERWISE
SPECIFIED.

(C.B.C. SECTIONS 1138A.1 & 1138A.2)
PROJECT INFORMATION

R-3 / U

TYPE VB

NOT APPLICABLE

NOT REQUIRED -
FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 3'-0" FROM PROPERTY LINE TO FACE OF
WALL (FINISH SURFACE) PER 2019 CRC TABLE R302.1(2)

PROJECTIONS (NOT FIRE RESISTANT  RATED) ALLOWED -
MINIMUM FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE OF 3'-0" TO PROPERTY LINE PER 2019 CRC TABLE
R302.1(2), OR 2'-0" TO PROPERTY LINE IF PROTECTED AT UNDERSIDE OR IF FIRE-BLOCKING IS
PROVIDED BETWEEN TOP PLATE AND ROOF SHEATHING.

2019 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE, PART 2.5 (2018 IRC)
2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, PARTS 2, 8 & 10 (2018 IBC) 2019
CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, PART 3 (2017 NEC)
2019 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE, PART 4 (2018 UMC)
2019 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, PART 5 (2018 UPC)
2019 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE, TITLE 24 PART 6 2019 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,
TITLE 24 PART 9 (2018 IFC)
2019 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CALGREEN)          
CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 PART 11

SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CRC SECTION R313 OR
NFPA 13-D.

BUILDING OCCUPANCY GROUP :

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION     :

APPLICABLE CODES :

FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE    :

PROJECTIONS           :

EXTERIOR WALLS /
OPENING PROTECTION    :

SPRINKLER SYSTEM     :

A.

B.

F.

E.

E.

D.

C.

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

 FLOOR AREA TABLE LEASING OFFICE PLAN
  FLOOR PLAN 767 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 767 SQ. FT.

 PORCH  73 SQ. FT.

  SHADE 207 SQ. FT.

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

425 WOOD SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

432 STUCCO SOFFIT.  HEIGHT  PER EXTERIOR ELEV.

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

510 STUCCO OVER 2 LAYERS OF FOAM FURRING

LOW WALL

2 x 6 STUD WALL

2 x 4 STUD WALL

WALL SYMBOLS

AS0.1

MM

ASO.1

ADDITIONAL GENERAL NOTES

INDICATES EXIST. STUD WALL

NEW 2 x 4 STUD WALL

NOTE: SHADED WALLS INDICATE AREAS THAT ARE DIFFERENT THAN
THE BASE FLOOR PLAN. NOTE: REFER TO CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE
DWG'S. BY OTHERS, FOR ALL DRIVEWAYS AND SIDEWALK LOCATIONS.

NEW 2 x FURRING WALL

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES

UTILITY PLAN KEYNOTES

WALL KEY

Name NOTE
201 EXISTING UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND 200 AMP ELECTRICAL SERVICE PANEL -

VERIFY LOCATION

Name NOTE
002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 60" DEEP - SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MINIMUM TO DRAIN IN
DIRECTION INDICATED

009 1/4" GLASS MIRROR

010 42" MIN. LONG X 1 1/4" DIAMETER GRAB BAR

011 36" MIN. LONG X 1 1/4" DIAMETER GRAB BAR

012 ADA/CBC COMPLIANT WALL HUNG TOILET

013 ROLL TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

421 GYP. BD. CEILING: HEIGHT PER PLAN

1/
2

M
AX

.

SEALANT OVER 3/8" THK. 

FINISH SURFACE - SEE 
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

2% MAX. SLOPE AT LANDING
AND MUST COMPLY WITH
C.B.C. 1132A

ASPHALT EXPANSION BOARD

THRESHOLD AT SLAB
AT ADAPTABLE /ACCESSIBLE UNIT

3"=1'-0"

TH-THRESH-ADA

CONCRETE SLAB

SL.

DOOR FRAME BEYOND

WEATHERSTRIP BASE

FINISH FLOOR

SOLID CORE WOOD DOOR

1
2

MAX.

C.R. METAL THRESHOLD  W/ BEVELED
EDGES SET IN CONTINUOUS BED OF
MASTIC. PROVIDE 2-INCH CAULK DAM
BETWEEN JAMB AND  WALL FRAMING.

T.O.SLAB
T.O. FLOORING

SL.

4"

1. DOORS IN THE 'MEANS OF EGRESS' (MOE) SHALL BE OPENABLE FROM THE INSIDE WITHOUT
USE OF KEY OR ANY SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE OR EFFORT. (SEC. 1003.3.1.8).

2. ALL DOOR HARDWARE SHALL BE OF A DESIGN WHICH COMPLIES W/ C.B.C. 1133B.2.6 FOR
DISABLED ACCESS.

NEW 2 x 6 STUD WALL

GROUND FAULT

WATERPROOF
DUPLEX OUTLET

JUNCTION BOX
ELECTRICAL

ALARM
SMOKE DETECTOR/

USB

INTERRUPTER

DETECTOR/ ALARM
CARBON MONOXIDE

DIMMER
ELECT SWITCH

THREE WAY
ELECT SWITCH

ELECT SWITCH

OCCUPANCY SENSOR
ELECT SWITCH

(WITH BATTERY BACK-UP)

J

GF
I

W
P

3
D

O.
S.

SA
SA

/C
OD

TEL./ CABLE

ELEC. METER

GAS METER
(VERIFY
LOCATION)

(VERIFY
LOCATION)

(VERIFY
LOCATION)

200 AMP.

DUPLEX OUTLET

COMBINATION SMOKE/

UTILITY LEGEND

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

RECESSED
DOWNLIGHT LED -
14 WATT (75W EQ.)
SOFT WHITE
(2700K) BR30 LED
FLOOD LIGHT BULB
(DIMMABLE)

EXHAUST FAN  W/ MIN.
CAPACITY OF 50 CFM.
(CAPABLE OF PROVIDING
FIVE AIR EXCHANGES PER
HOUR, TYP.)

1 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  FRENCH DR.TEMP. GLASS, LT.

2 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  FRENCH DR. TEMP. GL.

DOOR/WINDOW SCHEDULE

3 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  WOOD HOLLOW

5 8'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  SLIDING DOOR TEMP. GL.

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

-

-

2020232

10-13-20

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 L
E
A

S
IN

G
 O

FF
IC

E
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

AL
AM

O,
 C

AL
IF

OR
NI

A
TR

AC
T 

NU
M

BE
R

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 1

0-
13

-2
0

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2020   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

4 2'-4" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  WOOD HOLLOW

SHADE

PORCH

UNISEX ADA
RESTROOM

OFFICE #1

OFFICE #2

WORK

WAITING

201

201

GRAB BAR
W/ BACKING

AB C

33
"

1'-0"
MIN.

36" MIN.

2'-0"
MIN.

6"

44
" M

AX
.

17"-18"
CLR.

29
" M

IN
.

34
" M

AX
.

40
" M

AX
.

29
" M

IN
.

27
" M

IN
.

8"
MIN.

17"
MIN.

6"
MAX.

9" M
IN

.34
" M

AX
.

40
" M

AX
.

9'-
0"

9'-
0"

9'-
0"

36" MAX.

54" MIN.

1'-0"
MIN.2'-0"

MIN.

42" MIN.

7"-9"

19
"

M
IN

.

17
"-1

9" 33
"

INTERIOR ELEVATION - RESTROOM

009

012 011 013010 012

GRAB BAR
W/ BACKING

60" DIA.

TURNING CIRCLE

20 40 SH

30" x 48" CLR.
FLR. SPACE

60" x 48" CLR.
FLR. SPACE

010

013

012

011

1'-0"
MIN.

28"
MIN.

36" MIN.

2'-0"
MIN.

6"

1'-6"
MIN.

1'-
0"

M
IN

.
3'-

6"
 M

IN
.

4'-
6"

 M
IN

.

2'-
0"

M
IN

.

1'-6"
MIN.

4'-
0"

M
IN

.

AS0.1

C
HS

PROVIDE "INSTA-HOT"
ELECTRIC WATER
HEATER @ LAVATORY

SHADE

PORCH

UNISEX ADA
RESTROOM

OFFICE #1

OFFICE #2

WORK

WAITING

ACCESSIBLE TOILET SYMBOLS AND WALL SIGNAGE
DOOR REPRESENTATIONAL ONLY

1/4" THICK - BLUE

1/4" THICK - BLUE

1/4" THICK - BLUE
1/4" THICK - WHITE

UNISEX SIGN

MEN'S SIGN

WOMEN'S SIGN

6"
5" 5"

1"1"

1/
2"

6"

9"EQEQ

5'-
0"

5'-
0"

9"

WOMEN

WOMEN

MEN

UNISEX SYMBOL

WOMEN'S SYMBOL

MEN'S SYMBOL

1'-
0"

 D
IA

1'-
0"

 D
IA

UNISEX

1'-
0"

PICTORAL SYMBOL PER CBC
1117B.6

CHARACTERS PER CBC
1117B.5.4, AND 1117B.5.6

BRAILLE SYMBOLS CBC
1117B.5.2 AND CBC 1117B.5.6

SYMBOL NOTES:

1. IDENTIFICATION SYMBOLS SHALL BE PER CBC SECTION
1117.5 .1, ITEM 1 & 1115B.6.
2. CENTERLINE OF SYMBOL SHALL ALIGN WITH CENTER
OF DOOR.
3. CENTERLINE OF SYMBOL SHALL BE + 5'-0" ABOVE
FINISH FLOOR.
4. REFER TO SIGNAGE CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS FOR
SIGN MATERIALS.

SIGNAGE NOTES:

1. IDENTIFICATION SIGNS SHALL BE PER CBC SECTION
1117B.5.
2. CENTERLINE OF SIGN SHALL BE 9" FROM THE LATCH
SIDE OF DOOR
3. CENTERLINE OF SIGN SHALL BE + 5'-0" ABOVE FINISH
FLOOR.
4. BRAILLE AND RAISED LETTERING ON SEPARATE SIGN
ADJACENT TO THE LATCH SIDE OF THE DOOR
5. REFER TO SIGNAGE CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS FOR
SIGN MATERIALS AND REQUIRED COLORS.

SUBMIT FULL SIZE SAMPLES OF ALL SIGNS TO
THE ARCHITECT AND SIGNAGE CONSULTANT
FOR APPOVAL.

WHITE

WHITE

BLUE

BLUE PROFILE
ON WHITE
BACKGROUND

(A) SYMBOL PROPORTIONS

INTERNATIONAL
ACCESSIBILITY

SYMBOL

WHITE PROFILE
ON BLUE
BACKGROUND

THIS DIAGRAM ILLUSTRATES THE SPECIFIC
REQUIREMENTS OF THESE REGULATIONS AND
IS INTENDED ONLY AS AN AID FOR BUILDING
DESIGN AND CONST.

(B) DISPLAY CONDITIONS

1. PER C.B.C. 1127A.1, WHEN PROVIDED, COMMON USE AREAS AND FACILITIES IN COVERED MULTIFAMILY HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS SHALL
BE ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. COMMON USE FACILITIES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, LOBBIES, TOILET AND
BATHING FACILITIES, LAUNDRY FACILITIES, COMMUNITY ROOMS, CLUBHOUSES, HEALTH AND FITNESS FACILITIES, GAME ROOMS AND
PORTIONS OF COMMON USE TENANT STORAGE. ALL ENTRANCES, DOORS, FIXTURES AND CONTROLS SHALL BE ON AN ACCESSIBLE
ROUTE. NOTE: FOR PUBLIC USE FACILITIES, REFER TO C.B.C. CHAPTER 11B.

2. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11.1, IF FIXED STORAGE FACILITIES (SUCH AS CABINETS, SHELVES, CLOSETS OR DRAWERS) ARE PROVIDED
WHERE ACCESS IS REQUIRED, AT LEAST ONE OF EACH TYPE OF FACILITY PROVIDED SHALL COMPLY WITH THE ACCESSIBILITY
REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMON USE STORAGE, PER SECTION 1127A.11. ADDITIONAL STORAGE MAY BE PROVIDED OUTSIDE OF THE REACH
RANGES SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3.

3. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11.2, A CLEAR FLOOR SPACE AT LEAST 30" BY 48", COMPLYING WITH THE SPACE ALLOWANCES OF C.B.C.
SECTION 1138A.1.4, THAT ALLOWS EITHER A FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH BY A PERSON USING A WHEELCHAIR, SHALL BE
PROVIDED AT ACCESSIBLE STORAGE FACILITIES.

4. PER C.B.C. 1127A.11.3, ACCESSIBLE STORAGE SPACES AND CLOTHES RODS SHALL BE WITHIN AT LEAST ONE OF THE REACH RANGES
SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3 AND FIGURES 11A-1J AND 11A-1I.

5.

6. HARDWARE FOR ACCESSIBLE STORAGE FACILITIES SHALL COMPLY WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4 "CONTROLS AND OPERATING
MECHANISMS" (SEE NEXT SECTION  ON THIS SHEET.) TOUCH LATCHES AND U-SHAPED PULLS ARE ACCEPTABLE.

COMMON USE FACILITIES (C.B.C. SECTION 1127A.11) CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS

1. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS IN ACCESSIBLE SPACES, ALONG ACCESSIBLE ROUTES OR AS PART OF
ACCESSIBLE ELEMENTS SHALL COMPLY WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4:
1. PROVIDE A CLEAR FLOOR SPACE COMPLYING WITH C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.1.4 (SEE "SPACE ALLOWANCES"

REQUIREMENTS ABOVE) THAT ALLOWS A FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH BY A PERSON USING A
WHEELCHAIR AT ALL CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS.

2. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE LOCATED NO HIGHER THAN 48" AND NO LOWER THAN 15"
ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR MEASURED TO THE CENTER OF THE GRIP. IF THE REACH IS OVER AN
OBSTRUCTION, CONTROLS ADN OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE LOCATED WITH THE REACH RANGES
SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.3 (SEE "REACH RANGES" REQUIREMENTS ABOVE.) CONTROLS AND
OPERATING MECHANISMS THAT DO NOT SATISFY THESE SPECIFICATIONS ARE ACCEPTABLE, PROVIDED THAT
COMPARABLE MECHANISMS, CONTROLS OR OUTLETS, THAT PERFORM THE SAME FUNCTIONS, ARE PROVIDED
WITHIN THE SAME AREA AND ARE ACCESSIBLE.

3. CONTROLS AND OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE OPERABLE WITH ONE HAND AND SHALL NOT REQUIRE
TIGHT GRASPING, PINCHING OR TWISTING OF THE WRIST. THE FORCE REQUIRED TO ACTIVATE CONTROLS AND
OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 5 POUNDS (22.2N).

(C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.4) SPACE ALLOWANCES 
1. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1137A, THE SPACE ALLOWANCES AND REACH RANGES SPECIFIED IN C.B.C. SECTION 1138A AS

FOLLOWS APPLY TO FEATURES AND FACILITIES OF COMMON USE AREAS ON ACCESSIBLE FLOORS OR SITES AND ARE
NOT APPLICABLE TO DWELLING UNITS, UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.

2. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3, THE SPACE REQUIRED FOR A WHEELCHAIR TO MAKE A 180-DEGREE TURN SHALL BE
EITHER A CIRCULAR CLEAR SPACE OR A T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE COMPLYING WITH THE FOLLOWING
REQUIREMENTS:
1. THE CIRCULAR CLEAR TURNING SPACE SHALL BE 60" DIAMETER MINIMUM, PER C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.1.3 AND

FIGURE 11A-1D.
2. THE T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE SHALL BE WITHIN A 60" SQUARE MINIMUM WITH ARMS AND BASE 36"

MINIMUM WIDE. EACH ARM OF THE T SHALL BE CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS 12" MIN. IN EACH DIRECTION AND
THE BASE SHALL BE CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS 24" MINIMUM, PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3.1 AND FIGURE
11A-1D.

3. THE CIRCULAR TURNING SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INCLUDE KNEE AND TOE CLEARANCE COMPLYING
WITH C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.2. THE T-SHAPED TURNING SPACE SHALL BE PERMITTED TO INCLUDE KNEE AND
TOE CLEARANCE COMPLYING WITH C.B.C. SEC. 1138A.2 ONLY AT THE END OF EITHER THE BASE OR ONE ARM.

4. PER C.B.C. SECTION 1138A.1.3.2, SURFACES OF TURNING SPACES FOR WHEELCHAIRS SHALL BE STABLE, FIRM,
SLIP RESISTANT. CHANGES IN LEVEL ARE NOT PERMITTED. SLOPES NOT STEEPER THAN 1:48 SHALL BE
PERMITTED.

3. PER C.B.C SECTION 1138A.1.4.1, THE MINIMUM CLEAR FLOOR OR GROUND SPACE FOR WHEELCHAIRS SHALL BE 30"
BY 48" AND MAY BE POSITIONED FOR FORWARD OR PARALLEL APPROACH TO AN OBJECT. CLEAR FLOOR OR GROUND
SPACE MAY BE PART OF THE KNEE AND TOE SPACE REQUIRED UNDER SOME OBJECTS UNLESS OTHERWISE
SPECIFIED.

(C.B.C. SECTIONS 1138A.1 & 1138A.2)
PROJECT INFORMATION

R-3 / U

TYPE VB

NOT APPLICABLE

NOT REQUIRED -
FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 3'-0" FROM PROPERTY LINE TO FACE OF
WALL (FINISH SURFACE) PER 2019 CRC TABLE R302.1(2)

PROJECTIONS (NOT FIRE RESISTANT  RATED) ALLOWED -
MINIMUM FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE OF 3'-0" TO PROPERTY LINE PER 2019 CRC TABLE
R302.1(2), OR 2'-0" TO PROPERTY LINE IF PROTECTED AT UNDERSIDE OR IF FIRE-BLOCKING IS
PROVIDED BETWEEN TOP PLATE AND ROOF SHEATHING.

2019 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE, PART 2.5 (2018 IRC)
2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, PARTS 2, 8 & 10 (2018 IBC) 2019
CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, PART 3 (2017 NEC)
2019 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE, PART 4 (2018 UMC)
2019 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, PART 5 (2018 UPC)
2019 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE, TITLE 24 PART 6 2019 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,
TITLE 24 PART 9 (2018 IFC)
2019 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CALGREEN)          
CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 PART 11

SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CRC SECTION R313 OR
NFPA 13-D.

BUILDING OCCUPANCY GROUP :

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION     :

APPLICABLE CODES :

FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE    :

PROJECTIONS           :

EXTERIOR WALLS /
OPENING PROTECTION    :

SPRINKLER SYSTEM     :

A.

B.

F.

E.

E.

D.

C.

NOTE: SQUARE FOOTAGE MAY VARY DUE TO METHOD OF CALCULATION

 FLOOR AREA TABLE LEASING OFFICE PLAN
  FLOOR PLAN 767 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 767 SQ. FT.

 PORCH  73 SQ. FT.

  SHADE 207 SQ. FT.

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
Name NOTE

003 CONCRETE WALK (BY OTHERS)

004 CONCRETE PORCH SLAB (BY OTHERS) SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MAXIMUM IN DIRECTION
INDICATED

110 PROVIDE SOLID WOOD DOOR, OR SOLID OR HONEYCOMB CORE STEEL DOORS, NOT LESS
THAN 1-3/8" THICK, OR 20 MINUTE FIRE RATED DOOR.  DOORS SHALL BE SELF CLOSING AND
SELF LATCHING PER CRC SECTION R302.5.1.

201 UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PANELS - VERIFY LOCATION

212 SERVICE/FIRE RISER

321 AIR CONDITIONING CONDENSER LOCATION - PAD SUPPORTING COMPRESSOR/ CONDENSER
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3" ABOVE GRADE PER CMC 1106.2.

322 FORCED AIR UNIT (FAU) ATTIC INSTALLATION

393 TOILET - PROVIDE MINIMUM 24"x30" CLEAR FLOOR AREA IN FRONT OF TOILET

416 30"x30" ATTIC ACCESS - DIMENSIONS ARE CLEAR. PER CEnC 150.0(a)1, ATTIC ACCESS
DOORS SHALL HAVE PERMANENTLY ATTACHED INSULATION USING ADHESIVE OR
MECHANICAL FASTENERS AND THE ATTIC ACCESS SHALL BE GASKETED TO PREVENT AIR
LEAKAGE

421 STUCCO CEILING : HEIGHT PER PLAN

422 STUCCO SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

425 WOOD SOFFIT : HEIGHT PER PLAN

432 STUCCO SOFFIT.  HEIGHT  PER EXTERIOR ELEV.

459 BASE CABINET

460 UPPER CABINET

462 SHELF & POLE

464 SHELF OR SHELVES

468 COATS CLOSET

510 STUCCO OVER 2 LAYERS OF FOAM FURRING

LOW WALL

2 x 6 STUD WALL

2 x 4 STUD WALL

WALL SYMBOLS

AS0.1

MM

ASO.1

ADDITIONAL GENERAL NOTES

INDICATES EXIST. STUD WALL

NEW 2 x 4 STUD WALL

NOTE: SHADED WALLS INDICATE AREAS THAT ARE DIFFERENT THAN
THE BASE FLOOR PLAN. NOTE: REFER TO CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE
DWG'S. BY OTHERS, FOR ALL DRIVEWAYS AND SIDEWALK LOCATIONS.

NEW 2 x FURRING WALL

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES

UTILITY PLAN KEYNOTES

WALL KEY

Name NOTE
201 EXISTING UTILITY EQUIPMENT AND 200 AMP ELECTRICAL SERVICE PANEL -

VERIFY LOCATION

Name NOTE
002 CONCRETE DRIVE (BY OTHERS)

006 CONCRETE STOOP - 60" DEEP - SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MINIMUM TO DRAIN IN
DIRECTION INDICATED

009 1/4" GLASS MIRROR

010 42" MIN. LONG X 1 1/4" DIAMETER GRAB BAR

011 36" MIN. LONG X 1 1/4" DIAMETER GRAB BAR

012 ADA/CBC COMPLIANT WALL HUNG TOILET

013 ROLL TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER

401 INTERIOR SOFFIT(S)/ DROPPED CEILING(S): HEIGHT PER PLAN

421 GYP. BD. CEILING: HEIGHT PER PLAN

1/
2

M
AX

.

SEALANT OVER 3/8" THK. 

FINISH SURFACE - SEE 
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

2% MAX. SLOPE AT LANDING
AND MUST COMPLY WITH
C.B.C. 1132A

ASPHALT EXPANSION BOARD

THRESHOLD AT SLAB
AT ADAPTABLE /ACCESSIBLE UNIT

3"=1'-0"

TH-THRESH-ADA

CONCRETE SLAB

SL.

DOOR FRAME BEYOND

WEATHERSTRIP BASE

FINISH FLOOR

SOLID CORE WOOD DOOR

1
2

MAX.

C.R. METAL THRESHOLD  W/ BEVELED
EDGES SET IN CONTINUOUS BED OF
MASTIC. PROVIDE 2-INCH CAULK DAM
BETWEEN JAMB AND  WALL FRAMING.

T.O.SLAB
T.O. FLOORING

SL.

4"

1. DOORS IN THE 'MEANS OF EGRESS' (MOE) SHALL BE OPENABLE FROM THE INSIDE WITHOUT
USE OF KEY OR ANY SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE OR EFFORT. (SEC. 1003.3.1.8).

2. ALL DOOR HARDWARE SHALL BE OF A DESIGN WHICH COMPLIES W/ C.B.C. 1133B.2.6 FOR
DISABLED ACCESS.

NEW 2 x 6 STUD WALL

GROUND FAULT

WATERPROOF
DUPLEX OUTLET

JUNCTION BOX
ELECTRICAL

ALARM
SMOKE DETECTOR/

USB

INTERRUPTER

DETECTOR/ ALARM
CARBON MONOXIDE

DIMMER
ELECT SWITCH

THREE WAY
ELECT SWITCH

ELECT SWITCH

OCCUPANCY SENSOR
ELECT SWITCH

(WITH BATTERY BACK-UP)

J

GF
I

W
P

3
D

O.
S.

SA
SA

/C
OD

TEL./ CABLE

ELEC. METER

GAS METER
(VERIFY
LOCATION)

(VERIFY
LOCATION)

(VERIFY
LOCATION)

200 AMP.

DUPLEX OUTLET

COMBINATION SMOKE/

UTILITY LEGEND

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

RECESSED
DOWNLIGHT LED -
14 WATT (75W EQ.)
SOFT WHITE
(2700K) BR30 LED
FLOOD LIGHT BULB
(DIMMABLE)

EXHAUST FAN  W/ MIN.
CAPACITY OF 50 CFM.
(CAPABLE OF PROVIDING
FIVE AIR EXCHANGES PER
HOUR, TYP.)

1 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  FRENCH DR.TEMP. GLASS, LT.

2 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  FRENCH DR. TEMP. GL.

DOOR/WINDOW SCHEDULE

3 3'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  WOOD HOLLOW

5 8'-0" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  SLIDING DOOR TEMP. GL.

DATE

REVISIONS
NO. DESCRIPTION

PROJECT MANAGER :

DESIGNER :

DRAWN BY :

REVIEWED BY :

1ST BLDG. DEPT. SUBMITTAL :

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION :

JOB NUMBER :

CAD FILE NAME :

DATE: SHEET:

MM

BH/AM

-

-

-

2020232

10-13-20

H
O

LL
IS

T
E
R

 L
E
A

S
IN

G
 O

FF
IC

E
HO

LL
IS

TE
R 

, C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A

KI
PE

R 
HO

M
ES

AL
AM

O,
 C

AL
IF

OR
NI

A
TR

AC
T 

NU
M

BE
R

20
20

23
2 

- P
RO

GR
ES

S 
SE

T 
- 1

0-
13

-2
0

DO           NOT           SCALE           PLANS

2020   WILLIAM   HEZMALHALCH   ARCHITECTS,   INC. dba WHA

WHA EXPRESSLY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW COPYRIGHT AND OTHER
PROPERTY RIGHTS IN THESE PLANS. THESE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED, CHANGED, OR COPIED IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER, NOR ARE THEY TO BE ASSIGNED TO A THIRD PARTY
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE WRITTEN PERMISSION AND CONSENT
OF  WHA IN THE EVENT OF UNAUTHORIZED REUSE OF THESE PLANS BY A
THIRD PARTY, THE THIRD PARTY SHALL HOLD WHA HARMLESS.

C

4 2'-4" 8'-0" 1 3/4"  WOOD HOLLOW

Leasing Office | Floor Plan / Roof Plan

Roof Plan Floor Plan

28
'-0

"

30'-0" 11'-6"

N



A1.231620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

Leasing Office| Exterior Elevations

Rear

Front

Right

Left Scheme 3

"FARMHOUSE"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Exterior:	 Stucco / Fiber Cement Batts over Fiber Cement Panel
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over / Fiber Cement Trim
Window:	 Vinyl
Post:	 Wood
Brace:	 Wood / Prefabricated
Entry Door:	 Decorative Front Entry Door

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl

 +
18

'-0
''



A1.241620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

0 	 2	 4	 8

CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

Maintenance Building| Exterior Elevations / Floor Plan

Rear

Front

Right

Floor Plan

Left Scheme 3

"FARMHOUSE"  MATERIALS

Roof:	 Concrete Slate Tile
Fascia:	 2X Wood
Barge:	 Wood Barge Board
Exterior:	 Stucco / Fiber Cement Batts over Fiber Cement Panel 
Window / Door Trim:	 Foam with Stucco Over / Fiber Cement Trim
Garage Door:	 Metal Sectional Garage Door

8'
-0

'' 
H

dr

20
'-0

"

12'-0"

 9
'-1

'' 
Pl



CITY SUBMITTAL
© 2021 WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.  |  2020232  |  05-07-21

1620 BUENA VISTA MULTI-FAMILY 
HOLLISTER, CA

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 1 OF 6 ‘A’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, FARMHOUSE

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Slate Tile

1FECY4070
Sea Pearl Blend

Ref: .27  Emi: .93  A.SRI: 28
CRRC: 0022-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color SW 6198
Sensible Hue

Sherwin Williams

Siding Color (applied to):
Board and Battens
Corner Boards
Lap Siding

SW 6207
Retreat

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Posts
Secondary Doors
Trim

SW 7011
Natural Choice

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 6090
Java

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 4 OF 6 ‘B’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, CRAFTSMAN

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Shake Tile

1FBCF1132
Charcoal Brown Blend

Ref: .18  Emi: .91  A.SRI: 19
CRRC: 0005-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color SW 6150
Universal Khaki

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #1 (applied to):
Trim

SW 7008
Alabaster

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #2 (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Corbels
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Outlookers
Posts
Pot Shelves
Secondary Doors

SW 7047
Porpoise

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 6172
Hardware

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 2 OF 6 ‘A’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, FARMHOUSE

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Slate Tile

1FACS1430
Charcoal Blend

Ref: .17  Emi: .91  A.SRI: 17
CRRC: 0072-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color SW 7658
Gray Clouds

Sherwin Williams

Siding Color (applied to):
Board and Battens
Corner Boards
Lap Siding

SW 2819
Downing Slate

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Posts
Secondary Doors
Trim

SW 7009
Pearly White

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 6055
Fiery Brown

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 5 OF 6 ‘B’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, CRAFTSMAN

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Shake Tile

1FBCJ2010
Oceana

Ref: .18  Emi: .93  A.SRI: 18
CRRC: 0197-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color
SW 7043

Worldly Gray
Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #1 (applied to):
Trim

SW 7005
Pure White

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #2 (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Corbels
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Outlookers
Posts
Pot Shelves
Secondary Doors

SW 7019
Gauntlet Gray

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 9163
Tin Lizzie

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 3 OF 6 ‘A’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, FARMHOUSE

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Slate Tile

1FACS3184
Rustic Brown Blend

Ref: .18  Emi: .92  A.SRI: 20
CRRC: 0185-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Posts
Secondary Doors
Stucco
Trim

SW 7012
Creamy

Sherwin Williams

Siding Color (applied to):
Board and Battens
Corner Boards
Lap Siding

SW 6047
Hot Cocoa

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 7020
Black Fox

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

HOLLISTER ANNEX PROPERTY
Hollister, California
KIPER HOMES
February 12, 2021  |  2020232

Exterior Color & Materials
SCHEME 6 OF 6 ‘B’ ELEVATIONS ONLY, CRAFTSMAN

Material Color Manufacturer

Roofing:
Concrete Shake Tile

1FBCJ4072
Sahara Quar tz Blend

Ref: .19  Emi: .94  A.SRI: 24
CRRC: 0190-0942

Boral

Gutters & Downspouts Match Adjacent Color TBD

Vinyl Windows (factory finish) White TBD

Stucco Color
SW 7672

Knitting Needle 
Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #1 (applied to):
Trim

SW 7009
Pearly White

Sherwin Williams

Trim Color #2 (applied to):
Barge Boards
Braces
Corbels
Eaves
Fascia
Garage Doors
Outlookers
Posts
Pot Shelves
Secondary Doors

SW 6083
Sable

Sherwin Williams

Accent Color (applied to):
Shutters
Unit Doors

SW 7505
Manor House

Sherwin Williams

Garage Door Weather Strip 
(factory finish)

Match Garage Door Color TBD

NOTE: Notify WHA if any variation occurs between these 
schemes and the construction documents prior to purchase.  
Contact Starla Duffy or Donna Aldrich (949) 250-0607.

© 2021  WILLIAM HEZMALHALCH ARCHITECTS, INC. DBA WHA.

Color & Materials

CM



Staff Report 
CUP 2022-4 
Page 1 of 5 
 

 
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit No. 2022-4 to allow for the sale of beer, wine, 

and distilled spirits at an existing Target retail store, located at 1790 
Airline Highway (Assessor’s Parcel Number 057-430-007) within the 
General Commercial (GC) Zoning District.  

 
STAFF PLANNER: Liz Gagliardi, Associate Planner; (831) 636-4360 

    
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution recommending City Council approve Conditional Use 

Permit 2022-4  
 2.  Resolution recommending to the City Council that the determination 

of Public Convenience or Necessity would be served with the 
issuance of a Type 21 Off-Sale General ABC License at 1790 Airline 
Highway 

 3. Memo from City of Hollister Police Department, RE: Public 
Convenience or Necessity Determination  

 4.  ABC 245 Form 
 5. Alcohol Sales Display examples 
 6. Applicant Statement of Justification 
 7. CUP 2022-4 Plan Set 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution recommending approval of CUP 2022-4 to the City 

Council to allow off-site sale of alcohol at the existing target retail store 
located at 1790 Airline Highway. 

             
              
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the sale of beer, 
wine, and distilled spirits at the existing Target retail store located at 1790 Airline Highway (APN 057-430-
007). This parcel has a General Plan Land Use Designation of General Commercial and is located in the 
General Commercial (GC) Zoning District.  
 
A vicinity map is included below as Figure A. 
  

 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

February 9, 2023 
Item 2 



Staff Report 
CUP 2022-4 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Permit Requirements:  
 
This project requires a Conditional Use Permit, which is tied to the issuance of a license from the California 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC). For this permit, ABC also requires a finding of Public 
Convenience or Necessity (PCN). Each of these permit requirements is outlined below. 
 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
 
Per Hollister Municipal Code (HMC) Section 17.22.070 Alcohol Uses, the off-site and on-site sale of alcohol 
is a permitted use, subject to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). An exception to this code states 
that the requirement for a CUP for alcohol sales does not apply to restaurants with kitchen facilities that 
offer on-site dining, and a bar area that does not exceed 30 percent of the gross floor area of the premises. 
Target does not meet this exception, thus requiring a Conditional Use Permit to authorize alcohol sales.  

 
Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) License: 
 
The California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) regulates the manufacturing and sale of 
alcoholic beverages. In addition to the City of Hollister requirement for a Conditional Use Permit, a license 
from ABC is also required for alcohol sales in the State of California. Currently, Target is permitted to sell 
wine and beer under a Type 20 Off-Sale Beer & Wine License from ABC. With their Conditional Use Permit 
application, Target is seeking to surrender their existing active Type 20 Off-Sale Beer & Wine License, and 
apply for a Type 21 Off-Sale General License, which allows for the sale of distilled spirits in addition to 
beer and wine, for consumption off the premises where sold.  
 
Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN):  
 
In their review of the application for a Type 21 Off-Sale General License for Target, ABC has issued a Type 
245 Form, requiring that the City make a finding of Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) prior to issuance 

Figure A 
 

Project Site 
 



Staff Report 
CUP 2022-4 
Page 3 of 5 
 
of the required ABC License. PCN findings are required when ABC finds that there is an over concentration 
of alcohol outlets within the subject area.  
 
“Over concentration” can refer to a case where the subject property is located in a high crime reporting 
district, and/or a case where the subject property is in a census tract where the number of off-sale licenses 
exceeds a number established by ABC. This number is calculated based on the ratio of off-sale licenses to 
population in the census tract, as compared to the ratio of off-sale licenses to population in the County 
where that census tract is situated.  
 
In this case, ABC has reported that the property where Target is located is not in a high crime reporting district. 
However, the census tract where Target is located is over concentrated with licenses, as defined by ABC. In 
census tract 7.02, which includes the property where Target is located, ABC allows up to four (4) Off-Sale 
licenses without PCN findings. There are currently nine (9) Off-Sale licenses existing in Census Tract 7.02. 
Therefore, ABC requires that the Local Governing Body make a determination that either public convenience 
or determination would be served by the issuance of the Type 21 Off-Sale General license. In the City of 
Hollister, the Local Governing Body is the City Council. In this case, since the Conditional Use Permit for off-
site alcohol sales is tied to the PCN determination, the role of the Planning Commission is to offer a 
recommendation on to the City Council on the project as a whole.  
 
General Plan Consistency: 
 
The City of Hollister 2005-2023 General Plan designates the project site as General Commercial. Per, the 2005-
2023 General Plan, “General Commercial areas should support Downtown Hollister and neighborhood-
serving mixed-use districts by offering products and services that vary from those found elsewhere. Larger 
chain stores, supermarkets or other automobile-oriented retailers are appropriate development types in 
General Commercial Districts.  
 
Land Use and Design Element Policy LU10.3 is to “provide for economic development that assures the 
availability and diversity of resident-serving goods and services”  
 
The existing Target retail store provides a variety of retail and grocery items, and is a popular shopping 
destination for nearby residents, consistent with the General Commercial land use designation. The proposed 
Conditional Use Permit to allow for off-sale general alcohol sales at the existing Target store is consistent with 
the existing use, and will allow for residents to conveniently access a larger variety of products in at this retail 
area, consistent with Policy LU10.3. 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA): 
 
The proposed project does not include any construction or expansion of the existing Target retail store 
building. Section 15301, Class 1, Categorically Exempts projects from further review under CEQA for Existing 
Facilities, with the key consideration being whether the project involves negligible or no expansion of use.  
 
Given that this project proposes a negligible expansion of use to change an existing ABC License from Type 
20 (Off-Sale Beer & Wine) to a Type 21 (Off-Sale General), and proposes no construction or physical expansion 
of the structure, no further CEQA review is required.  
 



Staff Report 
CUP 2022-4 
Page 4 of 5 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The applicant is seeking a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the sale of beer, wine, and distilled spirits 
at the existing Target retail at 1790 Airline Highway. This proposal would not change the existing site plan or 
building façade, and would allow for the expansion of alcohol sales from the currently permitted sale of beer 
and wine to also include distilled spirits. This proposal meets the Goals and Policies of the General Plan and 
the Zoning Ordinance. Conditions of Approval have been included to ensure that the project will continue to 
comply with all City of Hollister regulations and will not negatively impact the surrounding area. 
 
PLANNING COMMMISSION OPTIONS: 
 

The Planning Commission can choose one of the following options regarding Conditional Use Permit 2022-4. 

1. Adopt a Resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council approve Conditional Use 
Permit 2022-4 (Attachment 1); 

 
2. Adopt a Resolution approving a recommendation that the City Council deny Conditional Use Permit 

2022-4, with findings as provided by the Planning Commission; or 
 

3. Continue the hearing and direct Staff to provide additional information or clarification.  
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission choose Option 1 for the CUP. 

 

The Planning Commission can choose one of the following options regarding the finding of Public 
Convenience or Necessity (PCN). 

1. Adopt a Resolution recommending that the City Council make a determination that the City Council 
make the determination that Public Convenience or Necessity would be served with the issuance of 
Type 21 Off-Sale General ABC License at 1790 Airline Highway (Attachment 2); 

 
2. Adopt a Resolution recommending that the City Council make a determination that the City Council 

not make the determination that Public Convenience or Necessity would be served with the issuance 
of Type 21 Off-Sale General ABC License at 1790 Airline Highway; or 
 

3. Continue the hearing and direct Staff to provide additional information or clarification.  

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission choose Option 1 for the finding of Public Convenience or 
Necessity. 

  



Staff Report 
CUP 2022-4 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT:   Target Corporation 
    Business Licensing 
    P.O. 9471, TPS-3010 
    Minneapolis, Minnesota 55440 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Same as above 
 
LOCATION:   1790 Airline Highway 
    Hollister, California 95023 
 
GENERAL PLAN 
DESIGNATION:   General Commercial 
 
ZONING DISTRICT:  General Commercial (GC) 
 
SURROUNDING USES: 
 

Location Zoning Designation General Plan Land Use Current use of 
Property 

Project Site GC General Commercial Commercial (Target) 
North GC General Commercial Commercial 
South R1 Low Density Residential Residential 
East CO / GC General Commercial Office / Commercial 
West R1 Low Density Residential Residential 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF HOLLISTER RECOMMENDNG 
APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 2022-4 TO THE CITY COUNCIL TO ALLOW OFF-SITE SALE OF 

ALCOHOL AT THE EXISTING TARGET RETAIL STORE LOCATED AT 1790 AIRLINE HIGHWAY 
APN 057-430-007 

 
 WHEREAS, under the provisions of Section 17.24.200 of Title 17 Zoning of the Hollister Municipal 
Code, the Planning Commission is charged with receiving, investigating, and taking action on Conditional 
Use Permit applicant; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant, Target Corporation, has filed a Conditional Use Permit application to 
authorize off-site sales of beer, wine, and distilled spirits in a +/- 105,904 SF existing Target retail store 
located at 1790 Airline Highway in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, in conjunction with a 
request to issue a determination that Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) would be served by the 
issuance of a Type 21 Off-Sale General License by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC); 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Planning Division received the applicant’s plans and forwarded the request to 
the Development Review Committee to assess the proposal for compliance with all relevant regulations; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Committee considerations were presented to the Planning 
Commission as part of the City staff report; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Hollister Municipal Code Section 17.22.070 Alcohol Uses requires the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit for the off-site and on-site sale of alcohol; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the ABC has determined that there is an “undue concentration” in relation to the 
number of alcohol-related licenses that currently exist in this area of the City (Census Tract 7.02’), thus 
requiring a determination of Public Convenience or Necessity; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the ABC has determined that there is an “undue concentration” in relation to the 
number of alcohol-related licenses that currently exist in this area of the City (Census Tract 7.02’), thus 
requiring a determination of Public Convenience or Necessity; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a determination of Public Convenience or Necessity must be made by the City Council 
of the City of Hollister; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on February 9, 2023 to 
consider the applicant’s request, review the City staff report, and receive written and oral testimony for 
and against the proposal; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, after closing the public hearing, the Planning Commission determined to recommend 
to the City Council that a determination be made that Public Convenience or Necessity would be served 
by the issuance of a Type 21 Off-Sale General ABC License to Target Corporation located at 1790 Airline 
Highway, and the approval of a Conditional Use Permit for such use; and, 
 



PC Resolution 2023- 
CUP 2022-4/Target Corporation 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED, that the City of Hollister Planning Commission does hereby 
recommend approval of Proposed Conditional Use Permit 2022-4 with the determination that Public 
Convenience or Necessity would be served by the issuance of a Type 21 Off-Sale General License by the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control to Target Corporation at 1790 Airline Highway, with the 
following findings and conditions: 
 
CEQA FINDINGS: 
 
1. Finding: The approval of Conditional Use Permit 2022-4 is Categorically Exempt from 

environmental review per Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the State’s Guidelines to 
Implement CEQA. 
 
Evidence: The project is located within an existing Target retail store and does not expand upon 
an existing or former use. No exterior changes are proposed to the site.  
 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDINGS: 
 
1. Finding: The proposed use is conditionally allowed within the subject zoning district and complies 

with all applicable provisions of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Evidence: The proposed use is conditionally allowed within the subject zoning district with the 
approval of a conditional use permit and compiles with all applicable provisions of this Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. Finding: The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan. 
 
Evidence: The proposed use is consistent with the City of Hollister’s 2005-2023 General Plan use 
designation of General Commercial, which supports Downtown Hollister and neighborhood serving 
mixed-use districts by offering products and services that vary from those found elsewhere. Larger 
chain stores, supermarkets or other automobile-oriented retailers are appropriate development types 
in General Commercial Districts.  
 

3. Finding: The approval of the Conditional Use Permit is in compliance with California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Evidence: The approval of Conditional Use Permit 2022-4 is Categorically Exempt from 
environmental review per Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the State’s Guidelines to Implement 
CEQA. 
 

4. Finding: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 
compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity. 
 
Evidence: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 
compatible with the existing and future lands uses in the vicinity. This use is within an existing 
Target store located within the City of Hollister’s General Commercial (GC) Zoning District. The use 



PC Resolution 2023- 
CUP 2022-4/Target Corporation 
Page 3 of 5 

 
of a general merchandise and grocery retailer, including sales of beer, wine, and distilled spirits is 
compatible with the existing and future land use in the vicinity. 
 

5. Finding: The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of persons 
residing or working in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City. 
 
Evidence: The proposed project has been reviewed by the City of Hollister Development Review 
Committee (DRC). Given the nature of the business, a general merchandise retailer and grocery 
store, no evidence has been found to indicate that this use would pose an undue risk to the 
community.  
 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
1. Approval. This application is for the approval of Conditional Use Permit 2022-4 to authorize off-

site sales of beer, wine, and distilled spirits in a +/- 105,904 SF existing Target retail store located 
at 1790 Airline Highway in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, in conjunction with a 
request to issue a determination that Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) would be served by 
the issuance of a Type 21 Off-Sale General license by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage 
Control (ABC). 
 

2. Permit Expiration. This approval expires within one year from the date of approval (February 9, 
2024), if not implemented, unless an extension is approved by the Planning Commission in 
compliance with Section 17.24.170. If implemented, this approval shall be valid during the 
continued operation of the existing retail store described in Condition 1 above, by the Applicant, 
Target Corporation. Should the operation cease to exist, so shall this approval. 
 

3. Transferability of Conditional Use. This permit is issued solely to the Applicant for the operations 
described and on file with the Planning Division of the City of Hollister. This permit shall not be 
transferrable to any other entity. 
 

4. Indemnification. The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Hollister, 
any agent, officer or employee of the City, and any advisory board of the City, against any claim, 
suit, action judgement, costs and attorney’s fees arising out of this approval or any assertions that 
this approval, including the environmental determination made herein, is invalid, illegal, 
unconstitutional or otherwise contrary to law. The City shall promptly notify the applicant of any 
claim against the City and shall cooperate fully in the defense.  
 

5. Appeal Period. No entitlements that rely upon this approval shall be granted during the 15-day 
appeal period. In the case of an appeal being filed, no entitlements shall be granted until final 
action is taken on the appeal. 
 

6. ABC License Type. This Conditional Use Permit limits alcohol sales to off-site sales of beer, wine, 
and distilled spirits, under a Type 21 Off-Sale General license from the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC). Any changes to the ABC license type shall require an amendment to this 
conditional use permit. 



PC Resolution 2023- 
CUP 2022-4/Target Corporation 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
7. Hours of Operation. The hours of operation may be between 8:00 AM and 11:00 PM seven days 

a week. Off-site sales of beer, wine, and distilled spirits shall only occur during the hours of 
operation.  

 
8. Modification of Conditions. Any condition imposed by the City Council in granting this Conditional 

Use Permit may be modified or eliminated, or new conditions may be added, provided that the 
City Council shall first conduct a public hearing in the same manner as required for the granting 
of the original permit. No such modification shall be made unless the Council finds that such 
modification is necessary to protect the public interest and/or neighboring properties, or, in the 
case of the deletion of an existing condition, that such action is necessary to permit reasonable 
operation and use under the Conditional Use Permit. 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT  
 
9. Security System. Within 60 days of approval of this conditional use permit, the applicant shall 

submit for review and approval a security system plan that includes video & audio surveillance of 
all public areas as required to the City of Hollister Police Department. The security system shall be 
installed and maintained by the Applicant. The system shall remain operational and actively 
recording 24/7; contacts provided to the Police Department; and Police Department approval of 
the system given. The recordings shall be made available to law enforcement in any criminal 
investigations. 

 
10. Lighting. The applicant shall provide adequate exterior lighting to the satisfaction of the Chief of 

Police and/or his/her designee. The lighting shall be downward casting and compliant with the 
City’s Dark Sky Ordinance. Coverage of the exterior lighting shall include but is not limited to the 
entry and exit points of the building, the property’s perimeter and other areas surrounding near 
the building, and parking lots. 

 
11. Security Contact Person. The property owner shall provide three security contact persons to the 

City of Hollister Police Department.  
 
12. Graffiti. The applicant shall maintain the facility and graffiti free. All graffiti must be removed or 

painted within 48 hours of it appearing. According to the City of Hollister Municipal Code 8.32.060, 
Prohibited Activities and Unlawful Conditions, Section 15, Graffiti is considered a public nuisance 
and is a violation of the City codes. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Hollister 

held this 9th day of February 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINED: 
ABSENT: 
 

  



PC Resolution 2023- 
CUP 2022-4/Target Corporation 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
________________________________ 
Chairperson of the Planning Commission  

                                                                                                 of the City of Hollister 
ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________ 
Christy Hopper, Secretary  

 
Please Note 

It is the sole responsibility of the project applicant to comply with conditions as approved, modified or added by 
the Planning Commission. It is recommended that the applicant review the conditions carefully and if any 
questions arise as to compliance with the conditions, please do not hesitate to contact the staff planner. Also, 
if you do not agree with the proposed conditions, you have an opportunity to present your case to the Planning 
Commission at their meeting. In addition, the City provides for a 15-day appeal period. 



PLANNING COMMSION RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF HOLLISTER RECOMMENDING THAT 
THE CITY COUNCIL MAKE THE DETERMINATION THAT PUBLIC CONVENIENCE OR NECESSITY WOULD BE 
SERVED WITH THE ISSUANCE OF TYPE 21 OFF-SALE GENERAL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL LICENSE 

AT 1790 AIRLINE HIGHWAY 
APN 057-430-007 

 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, Target Corporation, has applied for a Type 21 Off-Sale General License 

with the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) to authorize the sale of beer, wine, 
and distilled spirits for off-site consumption at 1790 Airline Highway; and,    

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined by ABC staff, and verified by the City of Hollister Police 

Department, that the premises are not located in a high crime reporting district; and, 
 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by ABC staff that there is an “undue concertation” in relation 
to the number of alcohol related licenses that currently exist in the area of the City (Census Tract 7.02.’); 
and,  
 

WHEREAS, as a result of the undue concentration, California Code Section 23958.4 requires that 
“the local governing body of the area in which the applicant premises are located, or its designated 
subordinate office or body, determines within 90 days of notification of a completed application that 
public convenience or necessity would be served by the issuance; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the City’s governing body and has the ability to make a 
determination of Public Convenience or Necessity; and, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends to the City 
Council of the City of Hollister the determination that Public Convenience would be served by the issuance 
of a Type 21 Off-Site General ABC license for Target Corporation at 1790 Airline Highway based on the 
following findings. 

 
1. Finding: The existing Target retail store located at 1790 Airline Highway is consistent with the 

City of Hollister’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance as it pertains to the use. Target is a 
popular retail destination where customers can purchase groceries and other household 
items. Allowing sales of beer, wine, and distilled spirits at this location would provide a public 
convenience for customers looking to purchase these goods, and the City of Hollister has 
reviewed this proposed project and determined it will not be detrimental to the health, 
safety, and welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood or to the general 
welfare of the City.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Hollister 

on this 9th day of February 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINED: 
ABSENT: 



PC Resolution 2023- 
Determination of Public Convenience or Necessity/Target Corporation  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
              
       Chairperson of the Planning Commission 
       of the City of Hollister 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Christy Hopper, Secretary 

Please Note 
 

It is the sole responsibility of the project applicant to comply with conditions as approved, modified, or 
added by the Planning Commission. It is recommended that the applicant review the conditions carefully 
and if any questions arise as to compliance with the proposed conditions, please do not hesitate to contact 
the staff planner. Also, if you do not agree with the proposed conditions, you have an opportunity to 
present your case to the Planning Commission at their meeting. In addition, the City provides for a 15-day 
appeal period. 
 

















Sheet #1: Title Sheet 
(Rev. 10/28/22)

TITLE SHEET 

Project Information: 

Project Name:  Target 

Project Address:  1790 Airline Hwy, Hollister, CA 95023 

Project Description:  Conditional Use Permit for the sale of beer, wine and distilled spirits for off-premises consumption 

Applicant / Property Owner: 

Target Corporation 

Target Corporation, c/o Business Licensing 

P.O. Box 9471, TPS-3010 

Minneapolis, MN 55440 

Applicant / Property Owner Representative: 

Beth Aboulafia 

Hinman & Carmichael LLP 

260 California St., Ste. 700 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

(415) 362-1215 x104

aboulafia@beveragelaw.com

Plan Set: 

Sheet #1: Title Sheet 

Sheet #2: Site Plan 

Sheet #3: Floor Plan 

Sheet #4: Building Photographs 

mailto:aboulafia@beveragelaw.com


(Rev. 10/28/22)



CEILING HEIGHT

STOCK ROOM:

* INPUT "MULTIPLE" IF CEILING HEIGHT VARIES

* USE HEIGHT TO BOTTOM OF STRUCTURE

SOFTLINES CEILING:

HARDLINES CEILING:

'-14 0 "

14 0'- "

0 0'- "

YesSEISMIC:

3
4
'-

5
"

1
1
'-

4
"

NOTICE

-NOTIFY THIS OFFICE OF ANY VARIATIONS

-ALTERNATE USE OF THIS DRAWING MUST

 BE APPROVED BY THIS OFFICE

-VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS

SHEET NO.

SCALE:

PROJECT

TITLE

STORE

NO.

PLOT DATE: 13-OCT-2021 02:37

PLAN TYPE

ISSUE DATE:

1000 NICOLLET MALL

MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA 55403

NAME

TARGET CORPORATION,  PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Target Corporation is strictly forbidden."

specific prior written authorization from

Reproduction, disclosure or use without

or sell anything it may describe.

disclose its contents or to produce, use

not convey any rights to reproduce,

The possession of this document does

propietary information of Target Corp.

of the Target Corporation and contains

"This document is  the exclusive property

                      

                      

1/16"=1'-0"        

                      

Hollister              

Hollister, CA          

T-0941
FIXTURE PLAN           

                       

S293       

P19        FW1   

           

EXISTING   

PLANNER:

5' -11" 

1
3
' 
-
9
" 

BSK

W
H

E
E

L

C
H

A
I
R

5
4
 

R
E

D

5
4
 

R
E

D

5
4
 

R
E

D

5
4
 

R
E

D

MF0099

M
F
0
1
0
1

3
'
1
4

3
'5

4
 

R
E

D

16

3
'
1
4

3
'5

4
 

R
E

D

16

16

1
4

3
'

3
'
1
4

3
'5

4
 

R
E

D

16

14
3
'

5
4
 

R
E

D

16

3
'
1
4

3
'5

4
 

R
E

D

16

16

1
4

3
'

3
'
1
4

3
'5

4
 

R
E

D

16

16

1
4

3
'

14
3
'

5
4
 

R
E

D

16

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
4
6
4

V
F
0
4
6
4

V
F
0
4
6
4

V
F
0
4
6
4

V
F
0
4
6
4

V
F
0
7
5
6

V
F
0
7
5
6

V
F
0
7
5
6

V
F
0
7
5
6

V
F
0
7
5
6

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

V
F
0
0
9
3

W.C.

BASK

1
2
' 
-
2
" 

8'-11"

VF0464

4'-10"

5
'-

0
"

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

5
'-

0
"

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

A
X
5
7
5
6

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

M
F
0
4
4
1

4'-10"4'-10"4'-10"4'-10"8'-4"

4'-10"4'-10"4'-10"4'-10"5'-10"

4
'-

0
"

11'-5"

8
'-

0
"

5
'-

9
" W

H
E

E
L

C
H

A
I
R

K
I
C

K

R
G

CARTS (94)

5
4
 

R
E

D

2
'

16
2
'

16
2
'

16

R
I
G

H
T
 

H
A

N
D
 

R
U

N

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

24

FE0115FE0115FE0115FE0115

FE0115 FE0115 FE0115 FE0115 FE0115

SC1 F
E
0
1
1
2

A
X
5
3
7
4

A
X
6
5
8
1

SC2 F
E
0
1
1
2

A
X
5
3
7
4

A
X
6
5
8
1

SC3 F
E
0
1
1
2

A
X
5
3
7
4

A
X
6
5
8
1

SC4 F
E
0
1
1
2

A
X
5
3
7
4

A
X
6
5
8
1

FE0115

01

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

1

02

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

2

03

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

3

04

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

4

05

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

5

06

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

6

07

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

7

08

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

8

09

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
0

9

10

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
10

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1C

K
0

11

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1C

K
0

16

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
17
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1C

K
0

18

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1C

K
0

19

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
2

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
2

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
12

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
13

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
2

0

5' -11" 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1C
K

0
2

3

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

T
E

M
P

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

T
E

M
P

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

T
E

M
P

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

T
E

M
P

2
2

5
4

BULLSEYES PG

W
F
3
8
6
7

5' -0" 5' -0" 4' -10" 5' -5" 5' -0" 

5' -0" 5' -0" 

6
' 
-
8
" 

3' -10" 

5' -0" 

PERSONAL CARE HEALTHCARE

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3'-7"

S
N

A
C

K
S
/

B
E

V
/

C
A

N
D

Y
D

R
Y

5
'-

3
"

5'-10"

3'-6"

6'-0"

5'-6"

8'-0"

3'-4"

5'-10"

5'-7"

6'-1"

5'-4"

3'-0"

5
' 
-
1
" 

4
' 
-
1
1
" 

5' -2" 5' -0" 4' -10" 5' -4" 5' -1" 4' -10" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 4' -10" 4' -10" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -3" 

4
' 
-
1
0
" 

5
' 
-
1
1
" 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9'-2"12'-0"

VF0013
RUGS

E
N

T

4' -10" 5' -0" 

4
' 
-
8
" 

4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 

5
' 
-
0
" 

TOYSSPORTING GOODS

W
F
2
5
2
7

5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 5' -2" 4' -11" 4' -11" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 

5
' 
-
5
" 

5
' 
-
5
" 

5
' 
-
5
" 

WF2527

BEAUTY 

5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 

PAPER & PLASTICS

4' -10" 4' -10" 

6
'-

4
"

7
'-

1
1
"

6
' 
-
8
" 

6
' 
-
8
" 

MINI SEASONAL

5
' 
-
9
" 

F
R

O
Z

E
N

D
A
I
R

Y

D
A
I
R

Y
D

R
Y

F
R

O
Z

E
N

6' -4" 5' -2" 5' -2" 6' -4" 

94

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

4
' 
-
1
0
" 

4'-10" 4'-10"

5
'-

0
"

4
'-

1
0
"

P
E
G
/
P
E
G

5
4

PEG/SLD

7
'-

6
"

R
E

D

5
' 
-
4
" 

5
' 
-
1
" 

DOMESTICS

5' -1" 5' -0" 4' -10" 4' -11" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 5' -0" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 

DECORATIVE HOME DOMESTICS

8'-1"

E
N

T

 
 

5
' 
-
0
" 

8'-1"

MF1872

5
' 
-
4
" 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

ELECTRONICS 

4'-10"

4
'-

3
"

5'-0" 5'-0"

4
'-

0
"

4'-10"

4'-11"
5'-2"

OF0013 OF0013 OF0013

4'-10"6'-0"4'-10"4'-10"

4
'-

8
"

4' -10" 5' -0" 4' -10" 4' -10" 4' -10" 

4'-10"

4'-10"

3
' 
-
1
1
" 4
' 
-
0
" 

STOOL

SERVICE

4
' 
-
5
" 

5' -0" 

4' -10" 4' -10" 

5' -2" 

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

5' -5" 5' -2" 

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

5' -3" 

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

5' -3" 5' -5" 5' -5" 5' -3" 5' -3" 5' -2" 5' -2" 5' -2" 5' -2" 

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

C L

5
'-
0
"

4
'-
6
"

4
'-
8
"

5
'-
6
"

6
'-

9
"

6
'-

9
"

6
'-

2
"

HL FOCAL

4
'-
10
"

6
'-

4
"

5
'-
7
"

7
'-0

"

C
L

H
L
 
F

O
C

A
L

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

4
'-
1"

5
'-

0
"

7
' 
-
7
" 

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

5' -4" 5' -4" 

4'-9"2'-9"3'-1"3'-5"

5
' 
-
1
" 

4
' 
-
1
0
" 

3'-7" 2'-9" 3'-1" 4'-3"

4
' 
-
1
0
" 

4'-3"3'-3"2'-8"3'-7"

5
' 
-
0
" 

4
'-

1
0
"

4'-3"3'-11"

6
' 
-
8
" 

6
' 
-
4
" 

6
' 
-
4
" 

6
' 
-
8
" 

3' -2" 4' -3" 

C
L

C L
C L

CL
CL

CL

7
'-

7
"

HL FOCAL

H
L
 
F

O
C

A
L

H
L
 
F

O
C

A
L

HL FOCAL

HOUSEHOLD COMMODITIES

5' -0" 

4
'-

2
"

3
'-

7
"

5' -0" 

2' -10" 

LUGGAGE 

PETS ENTERTAINMENT 

STATIONERY 

5
' 
-
1
" 

A
D

U
L

T
 

B
E

V

DELI

   +5
TV WALL WASH LIGHTS

S
P

O
R

T
I
N

G
 

G
O

O
D

S

30" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5
NOTCH 30" W6 30" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6 NOTCH 30" W3NOTCH 30" W230" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W430" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6 30" W1NOTCH

30" W1
NOTCHNOTCH

30" W2
NOTCH

30" W3
NOTCH

30" W4
NOTCH

30" W5
NOTCH

30" W630" W1
NOTCHNOTCH

30" W2
NOTCH

30" W3
NOTCH

30" W4
NOTCH

30" W5
NOTCH

30" W630" W1
NOTCHNOTCH

30" W2
NOTCH

30" W3
NOTCH

30" W4
NOTCH

30" W5
NOTCH

30" W630" W1
NOTCHNOTCH

30" W2
NOTCH

30" W3
NOTCH

30" W4

30" W1
NOTCHNOTCH

30" W2
NOTCH

30" W3
NOTCH

30" W4
NOTCH

30" W5
NOTCH

30" W630" W1
NOTCH

NOTCH
30" W2

NOTCH
30" W3

NOTCH
30" W4

NOTCH
30" W5

NOTCH
30" W630" W1

NOTCHNOTCH
30" W2

NOTCH
30" W3

NOTCH
30" W4

NOTCH
30" W5

NOTCH
30" W630" W1

NOTCHNOTCH
30" W2

NOTCH
30" W3

30" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6 30" W1NOTCH
NOTCH 30" W3NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6 30" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6 30" W1NOTCH NOTCH 30" W2 NOTCH 30" W3 NOTCH 30" W4 NOTCH 30" W5 NOTCH 30" W6

KICK

RG

KICK

RG

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

CL

6' -0" 

3' -3" 

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

K
I
C

K

R
G

K
I
C

K

R
G

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

C
L

C
L

4' -11" 

GIFTWALL POWERGIFTWALL POWERGIFTWALL POWER

126

4
' 
-
7
" 

HEALTHCARE

94

CONN HOME

3'

CONN HOME

3'

L
I
G

H
T
I
N

G
 

P
O

W
E

R

L
IG

H
T
IN

G
 
P

O
W

E
R

L
IG

H
T
IN

G
 
P

O
W

E
R

KICK

RG

WF3946

M
F
3
3
6
1

1
6

6
0

W
H
IT

E

18

18

1
8

6
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

W
F
3
7
8
3

MF3369

M
F
3
3
6
1

M
F
3
3
6
1

13

13

6
0

B
L

A
C

K

1
6

18

18

1
8

6
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

24

18

1
8

6
4

24

24

PEG/PEG

18

1
8

8
4

24

PEG/PEG

24

PEG/PEG

18

1
8

8
4

24

PEG/PEG

1
8

18

24

4
9

PEG/PEG

18

1
8

8
4

24

B
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

EB
E

A
U

T
Y
 

L
E

D
 

V
A

L
A

N
C

E

24

PEG/PEG

18

1
8

8
4

24

PEG/PEG

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

24

18

1
8

6
4

18

24

18

1
8

6
4

18

24

18

1
8

7
2

18

24

18

1
8

7
2

24

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

24

2
2

1
8

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

8
4

H
C

2
2

3
3

PEG/HC

24

PEG/HC

24

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

94

22

9
4

H
C

3
3

3
'

94HC

33

22

94

22

94

22

94

22

94

3'

24

18

18

8
4

18

24

1
8

18

8
4

18

18

1
8

24

4
9

PEG/PEG

1
8

18

8
4

18

24
1
8

18

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

72

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

2
2

24

2
2

4
9

PEG/PEG

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

1
8

18

24

4
9

PEG/PEG

18

1
8

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

1
8

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

2
2

24

2
2

4
9

PEG/PEG

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

22

22

114

114

159159

P
E
G
/
S
L
D

22

22

7
2

114

159 159

P
E

G
/

S
L

D2222

2222 2
4

2
4

2
2

24

2
2

4
9

PEG/PEG

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

1
8

2
2

8
4

18

SOLID/NO SLOTS

48

2
2

2
2

8
4

3
'

3
'

SOLID/NO SLOTS

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

1
8

2
2

8
4

18

2
2

24

2
2

4
9

PEG/PEG

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

2
2

1
8

6
4

6
3
"H

I
N

F
I
L

L
 

P
A

N
E

L
 

K
I
T

6
3
"H

I
N

F
I
L

L
 

P
A

N
E

L
 

K
I
T

6
3
"H

I
N

F
I
L

L
 

P
A

N
E

L
 

K
I
T

6
3
"H

I
N

F
I
L

L
 

P
A

N
E

L
 

K
I
T

BASEDECK 36"

3
0

H
B

A
S

E
 

C
A

B
I
N

E
T

3
0

H
B

A
S

E
 

C
A

B
I
N

E
T

3
0

H
N

E
S

T
I
N

G
 

T
A

B
L

E

3
0

H
N

E
S

T
I
N

G
 

T
A

B
L

E

30H
NESTING TABLE

3
5

H
P

A
R

S
O

N
S
 

T
A

B
L

E

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

48

2
2

2
2

8
418

2
2

1
8

8
4

18

P
E

G
/

S
L

D

2
4

30

BIKES

22

114

BIKES BIKES BIKES

159

BIKES BIKES BIKES BIKES S
O
L
ID
/

N
O
 
S
L

O
T
S

114" PEG WHITE 114" PEG 45" SOLID WHITE 114" PEG WHITE

114" PEG WHITE 114" PEG 45" SOLID WHITE 114" PEG WHITE 2
4

22

22

114159

S
O

L
I
D
/

N
O
 

S
L

O
T

S

P
E

G
/

S
L

D

114114 159

18

1
8

18

6
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

24

1
8

18

8
4

24

RHS

18

1
8

3
'18

3
' 6

4

18

24

1
8

18

6
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

TOWER

BOOK

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

8
4

H
C

3
3

2
2

PEG/HC

24

PEG/HC

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

2
2

24

2
2

4
9

PEG/PEG

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

24

54

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

24

54

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

24

E
L

E
C

T
R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E

R
E

F
R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

D
U

A
L
-

T
E

M
P

Y
E

1
1
5
5

R
L

N
2

S
O
L
ID
/

N
O
 
S
L

O
T
S 22

22

114

S
O

L
I
D
/

N
O
 

S
L

O
T

S

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

2

24

1
8

18

6
4

24

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
0

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
10

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
11

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
12

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
13

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
16

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
17

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
19

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
2

9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
3

0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
3

1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
3

2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
3

3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

0
3

4

84HC

33

22

SOLID BACKPANELS

P
E

G
/

H
C

2
4

P
E
G
/
H
C

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

119

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
6

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

12
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

13
0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

13
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

13
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

13
3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

0

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

2

8
4

H
C

2
2

3
3

PEG/HC

24

PEG/HC

24

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
10

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
11

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
12

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
13

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
16

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
17

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
19

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
2

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
3

0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
3

7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
2

3
8

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L
 

B
E

A
C

O
N

7
8

1
0
1

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

1

7
8

9

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

2

7
8

9

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

7

24

1
8

18

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

8

24

1
8

18

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
0

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
10

24

1
8

2
2

6
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
11

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
12

24

2
2

2
2

6
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
13

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
16

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
17

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
18 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
19

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
3

7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
3

3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
3

3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
3

4
0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
0

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
10

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
11

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
12

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
13

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
14

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
15

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
16

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
17

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
18

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
4

19

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

0

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

1

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

2

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

3

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

4

24

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

5

24

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

7

24

18

1
8

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

8

18

1
8

8
4

18

1
8

18 4
9

72

PEG/PEG

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
2

9

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

0

24

18

1
8

8
4

24

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

1

24

2
2

1
8

8
4

24

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

2 18

1
8

8
4

18

1
8

18 4
9

72

PEG/PEG

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

4
3

6

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
4

3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
4

3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
4

3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

13
2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

2
0

1

1
4

18 8
4

24

WF3945

5'-6"

5
'-

4
"

8'-6"

6'-0"

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

3
2

5

Y
E

1
5
0
5

O
A

C
3

X
L

8
4

H
C

18

3
3

24

24

22 3'

94

14
9

2
4

14
9

" 
H
L
 

P

E
R
IM

E
T
E
R
 
F

O
C

A
L

22

94

3'

94HC

33

22

94 104

22

2
2

9
4

3
'

9
4

H
C

3
3

S
O

L
I
D
 

B
A

C
K

P
A

N
E

L
S

Y
E

1
1
6
5

R
M

N
4

R
E

F
-

L
O

C
K

R
E

F
R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

E
L

E
C

T
R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E

Y
E

1
1
6
6

R
M

N
5

R
E

F
-

L
O

C
K

R
E

F
R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

E
L

E
C

T
R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E

R
E

F
R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

R
M

N
3

Y
E

1
1
6
0

R
E

F
R

E
F

R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

E
L

E
C

T
R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E

F
R

Z

Y
E

1
1
5
3

R
L

N
4

(
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
)

J
U

N
C

T
I

O
N
 

B
O

X

N
5

N
G

N
3

A

Y
E

0
5
9
0

(
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
)

J
U

N
C

T
I

O
N
 

B
O

X

N
5

N
G

N
4

A

Y
E

0
5
8
9

(
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
)

J
U

N
C

T
I

O
N
 

B
O

X

N
5

N
G

N
4

A

Y
E

0
5
8
9

E
L

E
C

T
R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L
 

S
E

R
V
IC

E

R
E

F
R
IG

E
R

A
N

T
 

O
U

T
L

E
T

D
U

A
L
-

T
E

M
P

Y
E

1
1
5
6

R
L

N
3

3
3

9
4

H
C

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
5

VF0812

1
8

18

6
4

SOLID/NO SLOTS

MEAT

STORAGE/UTILITY

KITCHEN KITCHEN

S
/

U

CORNER

24

1
8

18

8
4

24

LHS

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-9" 

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-9" 

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-7" 

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-7" 

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-7" 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

BUILT

PER AS 

5' 

B
U
I
L

T

P
E

R
 

A
S
 

6
' 

BUILT

PER AS 

4'-11" 

BUILT

PER AS 

4'-10" 

BUILT

PER AS 

4'-10" 

& DISPLAY
TV WALL

S
T

A
R

D
U

S
T
 

W
I
R

E
 

T
O
 
1
2
6
"

V
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

M
O

U
N

T
E

D
 

A
T
 
1
1
4
"

2
2

STRDST WIRE

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

E
D

W
F
3
8
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R

Y
D

A
I
R

Y
D

R
Y

F
R

O
Z

E
N

A
D

U
L

T
 

B
E

V

DELIMEAT

B
U
I
L

T

P
E

R
 

A
S
 

6
' 

Coffin

E
.C
.

S
B

C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8
'-

0
"

6
'-

5
"

6
'-

8
"

5
'-

9
"

D
R

Y

5
'-

1
0
"

5
'-

1
0
"

5
'-

9
"

5
'-

9
"

5
'-

9
"

2
'-

1
0
"

 
PAPER & PLASTICS

7
'-

1
0
"

5
'-

2
"

3
'-

0
"

2
'-

5
"

2
'-

5
"

FROZEN

FROZEN

M
E

A
T

D
A
I
R

Y
D

R
Y

F
R

O
Z

E
N

BMPR

HG 

MEAT DAIRY

DRY

WF3985

W
F
3
9
8
5

WF3985

WF3985

WF3985

A
D

U
L

T
 

B
E

V

7
'-

8
"

7
'-

8
"

6
'-

9
"

5'-10"

PRODUCE

F. MEAT

DAIRY

3
'-

1
0
"

P
R

O
D

U
C

E

WF3985

 7'-0"

5
'-

3
"

5
'-

3
"

6
'-

9
"

B
A

K
E

R
Y

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

26"
WF6004

26"
WF6004

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

3
0
"

W
F
6
0
0
1

26"
WF6004

3
4
"

W
F
6
1
0
2

2
8
"

W
F
6
1
0
1

2
2
"

W
F
6
1
0
0

3
4
"

W
F
6
1
0
2

2
8
"

W
F
6
1
0
1

2
2
"

W
F
6
1
0
0

O
W

E
Z

Y
E

0
4
3
1

2
2

3
'

3
'

3
4

YE0429

OWIZ-8

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

YE1303

O5M-12

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

REFRIGERANT OUTLET DUAL-TEMP

YE1156

RLN3

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

DUAL-TEMP

YE1158

RLN5

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

DUAL-TEMP

YE1158

RLN5

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

DUAL-TEMP

YE1158

RLN5

WF3985

3
4

8
4

3
'

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

FRZ

YE1154

RLN5

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

FRZ

YE1154

RLN5

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

REFRIGERANT OUTLET
FRZ

YE1152

RLN3

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

FRZ

YE1154

RLN5

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

FRZ

YE1154

RLN5

ELECTRICAL SERVICEELECTRICAL SERVICE

REFRIGERANT OUTLET FRZ

YE1152

RLN3

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

N5FGN5A

YE0595

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

N5FGN5A

YE0595

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

REFRIGERANT OUTLET
FRZ

YE1152

RLN3

REFRIGERANT OUTLET

ELECTRICAL SERVICE ELECTRICAL SERVICE

FRZ

YE1154

RLN5

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

N5FGN5A

YE0595

(STANDARD)

JUNCTION BOX

N5FGN5A

YE0595

S
O
L
ID
/

N
O
 
S
L

O
T
S

S
O
L
ID
/

N
O
 
S
L

O
T
S

84

22

2
4

18

18

84

2
4

1
8

18

18

84

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
7

2
4

22

22

84

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
9

2
4

18

18

84

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

110

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

111

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

112

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

113

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

114

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

115

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

116

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

117

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1H

L
118

22

18

64

22

18

84

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
6

S
O

L
I
D
/

N
O
 

S
L

O
T

S

S
O

L
I
D
/

N
O
 

S
L

O
T

S

84

22

FROZEN MEAT

FRITOS

Y
E
1
7
6
0

8
4
"

I
D
5

N
M

Y
E
1
7
6
0

8
4
"

I
D
5

N
M

ED

WF3875

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
4

2
4

22

22

84

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
3

2
4

22

22

84

2
4

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

H
&

H
 

P
A

N
E

L
S
 

+
 

D
E

C
K

S
/
2
2

D
x
2
0
' 

L
O

N
G O

N
E
 

S
I
D

E

8
4
" 

P
A

N
E

L

O
N

E
 

S
I
D

E

8
4
" 

P
A

N
E

L

O
N

E
 

S
I
D

E

8
4
" 

P
A

N
E

L

O
N

E
 

S
I
D

E

8
4
" 

P
A

N
E

L

O
N

E
 

S
I
D

E

8
4
" 

P
A

N
E

L

WF4526

3
0

H
B

A
S

E
 

C
A

B
I
N

E
T

3
0

H
B

A
S

E
 

C
A

B
I
N

E
T

  AB  
4
8

22

28

84

3'

3'

14

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1H
L

10
8

18

1
8

24

4
9

PEG/PEG

1
8

18

6
4

24

MF1676

BENCH

SERVER

3-DRW 5-DRW 5-DRW

2 SHELVES 2 SHELVES

T
R

A
S

H
3
-D

R
W

P
R
IN

T

S
C

A
L
E

F
A

X
 
(
E

X
T
.)

3'-0"

4
8

4
8

4
8

4
8

4
8

4
8

3'-0" 3'-0"

(RELO) 

PRINTER

 COMP
SCAN #1

(RELO)

QA#1

(RELO)

WAITING SCRIPTS WAITING SCRIPTS OTC/PSE OTC/PSE

 COMP
SCAN #

(RELO)

QA#2

(RELO)
 COMP

PROD#3

(RELO)
 

 

 

 

(RELO) 

SAFE

(RELO) 

SAFE

(RELO)

COMP 

PROD1 

(RELO)

COMP 

PROD2 

(RELO)

SCAN 1

(RELO) 

DRAWER

(RELO) 

STORAGE

(RELO) 

WASTE

(RELO) 

PRINTER

(RELO) 

DRAWER

(RELO) 

DRAWER

(RELO) 

DRAWER

(RELO) 

PRINTER

PRT

TAB

RX PICKUP

W
E

L
L

B
A

G
 

K
E

E
P
 

C
L
E

A
R

C
L
E

A
R
 

S
P

A
C

E
 

3
6
"
x
2
4
"

PRT

TAB

RX PICKUP

W
E

L
L

B
A

G
 

K
E

E
P
 

C
L
E

A
R

C
L
E

A
R
 

S
P

A
C

E
 

3
6
"
x
2
4
"

PRT

TAB

RX PICKUP

W
E

L
L

B
A

G
 

U
N
IT

P
O

S
 

T
A

R
G

E
T
 

R
E

L
O

K
E

E
P
 

C
L
E

A
R

C
L
E

A
R
 

S
P

A
C

E
 

3
6
"
x
2
4
"

R
E

A
D

E
R

C
A

R
D
 

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R
 

R
E

L
O

(NEW) (NEW) (NEW)

U
N
IT

P
O

S
 

T
A

R
G

E
T
 

R
E

L
O

R
E

A
D

E
R

C
A

R
D
 

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R
 

R
E

L
O

U
N
IT

P
O

S
 

T
A

R
G

E
T
 

R
E

L
O

R
E

A
D

E
R

C
A

R
D
 

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R
 

R
E

L
O

3
0
" x
 4

8
" C

L
E

A
R
 S

P
A

C
E

3
0
" x
 4

8
" C

L
E

A
R
 S

P
A

C
E

ADA

 MILLWORK TOP

5'-4" x 12"

(NEW)

REF.

(NEW)

OPEN

ADA
AREA

DROP-OFF

36"

QMI GRILL LANDING ZONE

3
0
"
 
x
 
4
8
"
 

C
L
E

A
R
 

S
P

A
C

E

3
0
"
 
x
 
4
8
"
 
C
L
E

A
R
 
S
P

A
C
E (NEW)

(NEW) QMI GRILL

 

 

R
E
F
R
IG

S
2
3

G
-

D
J
A

P
H
-

A
B
T
-

R
E
F

R
IG

F
IR

E
 E

X
T
.

F

S
IN

KC

F
IL

L

M
S
T
R

FLV RX FILL+

SCNMSTR

SHELVES

PANEL

RED VALANCE / RAIL COVERS
CSE

4
'-

3
"

4'-0"

4'-11"

4'-6"

4'-4"

R
T

W

4'-9"

C
O

R
E
 
J
/

A
S

E
A

S
O

N
A

L
B

R
A

N
D
 

A
A

V
A
/

V
I
V

R
T

W

O
F
0
1
6
0

3

RESHOP

2
4
x
4
8

7'-10"

(5
)S

H
E

L
V

E
S

9
4

72" TABLE

MIRROR

LOUNGE

TABLE

RENO

C
H

A
IR

L
O

U
N

G
E

4
'-

0
"

MIRROR

L

FRT LT MIRFRT LT MIRFRT LT MIRFRT LT MIR

ACC

L

MIRROR

M
I
R

R
O

R

FRT LT MIR

ACC

FRT LT MIRFRT LT MIR

M
I
R
 

W
/

L
T

5

4

32

6

7
1

STOOL

S
T

O
O

L

S
T

O
O

L

S
T

O
O

L

O
T

T
O

M
A

N

C
H

A
I
R

L
O

U
N

G
E

T
A

B
L

E

R
E

N
O

STOOL

D
E

N
I

M
 
(B

R
A

N
D
 

C
)

3'-9"

3'-9"

3'-10"
55

55

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

0
"

4
'-

1
"

4
'-

4
"

4
'-

0
"

4
'-

6
"

3'-8"3'-10"

5'-4"5'-1"

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

5
"

4'-0"

MENS

4'-0"

5'-4"

553'-2"

WF3543

WF3540

WF3543

3'-3"

3
'-

5
"

55

55

3
'-

3
"

55

3'-5"

3'-5"

3'-0"

3'-10"

MENS

3'-10"

3'-3"

55

55

55

3
'-

1
0
"

3
'-

0
"

2
'-

1
0
"

2
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

4
"

55
3'-2" 3'-4" 4'-0"

4
'-

1
"

4
'-

2
"

4
'-

5
"

4
'-

5
"

3
'-

5
"

3'-5"

S
T

O
O

L

W
F
3
5
4
4

2
'-

9
"

2
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

1
0
"

4' -11" 4' -11" 4' -11" 4' -11" 4' -11" 4' -11" 

5
' 
-
0
" 

4' -11" 

5' -0" 

5' -6" 

BABY

 
 
 
 

4'-7"

5
'-

1
0
"

B
M

P
R

H
G
 

PERFORMANCE

INTIMATE SLEEPWEAR

2' -9" 

4'-0"

2
'-

8
"

2'-8" 2'-9"

2
'-

8
"

3
'-

4
"

4
'-

2
"

3'-6"

NIT

STOOLSTOOL

C

C

C

55/C

3'-11" 4'-0" 4'-0"

2
'-

8
"

2'-9"

NIT(BOY)NIT(GIRL)

3'-7"

2'-8"

5
5
/

C
5
5
/

C

5
'-

0
"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

3
"

3
'-

2
"

4
'-

0
"

2
'-

8
"

5
'-

0
"

3'-5"

3'-4"

6

MATERNITY

5555

4
'-

0
"

4
'-

3
"

4'-6"2'-8"

3'-0"3'-8"

55C

C

C 55/C

4'-5"

4'-0"

RTW

55/C

C
C

C

2
'-

8
"

C

C

3'-0"

3'-8"

2
'-

8
"

5
'-

0
"

2
'-

8
"

2
'-

8
"

4'-0"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

5
"

5
'-

3
"

4
'-

0
"

2
'-

8
"

C

2
'-

8
"

60/C 60/C

60/C 60/C

60/C 60/C

B
/

G
 

B
A

S
I
C

S

4
' 
-
6
" 

4
' 
-
6
" 

4
' 
-
6
" 

4'-0"

4
'-

6
"

3'-2"

W
F
3
5
4
5

R
E

T
R

O
F
I
T
 

K
I
T

R
U

N
W

A
Y

A
K
1
0
2
2

MIRROR

4'-0"

3
'-

9
"

4
'-

4
"

3
'-

7
"

5'-0"

5'-7"

55

55

2
'-

8
"

3
'-

1
1
"

5'-7"

4'-0" 4'-0"

4'-0"

4'-0"

55

55

3'-9" 3'-5"

5'-11"

3
'-

4
"

4
'-

1
"

2
'-

8
"

55

4'-0" 4'-0"

3'-3"

55

3
'-

8
"

3'-8"

5'-7"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

0
"

2'-10"

3
'-

8
"

2
'-

8
"

2
'-

8
"

2
'-

8
"

3
'-

5
"

4'-0" 4'-1"

4'-0"

3'-9"3'-5"3'-5"

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

55

55

3'-3"

3'-1"

2'-9" 3'-4"

4'-6"

55

55

4'-2" 4'-6"

4'-1"

55 55

4
'-

2
"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

2
"

3
'-

0
"

4'-6"

4
' 
-
7
" 

WF3543

WF3542

5555

55

BOYS

GIRLS

4'-0"

4'-9"

3
'-

9
"

3'-2"3'-3"

2
'-

8
"

W
F
3
5
4
52
'-

8
"

3
'-

1
1
"

3'-8"

4
'-

7
"

55

H
U
R

D
L
E
 
B

A
S
E

H
U
R

D
L
E
 
B

A
S
E

12

12

2
4

2
4

2
4

2
4

12

12

2
4
 

O
P
E

N

2
4
 

O
P
E

N

4'-3"

4'-8"4'-6" 4'-9"

2
'-

8
"

55

2
'-

8
"

55

2
'-

8
"

5
5

2'-8" 2'-8"

4'-0"

6 6 6

3
'-

6
"

2
'-

1
0
"

5
5

W
F
3
5
4
5

R
E

T
R

O
F
I
T
 

K
I
T

R
U

N
W

A
Y

A
K
1
0
2
2

2' -11" 

3'-4"

3'-1"

3
'-

1
0
"

2
'-

1
0
"

3
'-

0
"

3
'-

6
"

3
'-

8
"

3
'-

1
0
"

3
'-

5
"

3
'-

9
"

3
'-

1
"

3
'-

2
"

2'-9"

B
U

N
K

E
R

S
H

O
R

T

B
U

N
K

E
R

S
H

O
R

T

3' -0" 

4'-7"

4'-7"

HURDLE BASE

66

HURDLE BASE

3
' 
-
8
" 

3
' 
-
8
" 

M
I
R

R
O

R

3
'-

5
"

5
5

4'-0"

2
'-

8
"

3'-2"4'-1"

3
' 
-
4
" 

3
'-

1
"

3
'-

4
"

3
'-

1
0
"

2
'-

4
"

2
'-

1
1
"

2
'-

8
"

3'-0"
3'-0" 3'-0" 4'-7"

3
' 
-
8
" 

3
'-

8
"

4
'-

0
"

3
'-

4
"

2
'-

1
0
"

3'-9" 3'-4" 3'-10"

4'-0"

3'-1"
4'-6"

2'-10" 3'-2"

H
U

R

D

L
E
 

B

A

S
E

6

4'-6"

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

3
'-

5
"

4
'-

0
"

5
5

3
'-

0
"

STOOL

STOOL

5
5

5
5

2'-10"

5
5

5
5

3
'-

6
"

2
'-

1
1
"

3
' 
-
2
" 

2
' 
-
1
1
" 

4'-6"

H
U
R

D
L
E
 
B

A
S
E

6

2
'-

1
1
"

4
'-

3
"

STOOL

M
I
R

R
O

R
M
I
R

R
O

R

3'-1"

2
'-

9
"

5
5

2
'-

8
"

MIRROR

5
'-

2
"

C
L

E
A

R
A

N
C

E

4'-5"

5
5

5
5

5
5

2'-9"

5
5

3
'-

4
"

5
5

5
5

5
5

3
'-

4
"

3'-0" 3'-2"

3
'-

4
"

M
I
R

R
O

R

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

0
"

4
'-

9
"

H
O

S
I
E

R
Y

S
H

O
E

S

SHOES

4
'-

1
0
"

4
'-

1
0
"

OTTOMAN

OTTOMAN

WHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAK

60"

O
A

K

O
A

K

WHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAK

60"

O
A

K

O
A

K

B
E

N
C

H
B

O
O

K
C

A
S

E

5'-0"

2
'-

8
"

3
'-

1
"

3
'-

2
"

1'-0"

3
'-

1
"

3
'-

1
"

3'-11"

3
'-

5
"

3'-5"3'-5"

3
'-

1
"

4'-5"

3
'-

3
"

4'-5"

3
'-

0
"

3
'-

0
"

2
'-

8
"

3'-7"

4'-0" 4'-3" 1'-6"

3'-10"

6

12

W
F

3
5

4
4

5
5

5
5

5
5

6 6

60/C

60/C

60/C

60/C

(5
)S

H
E

L
V

E
S

9
4

S
M

A
L

L
 

P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 

A

WHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAKWHITE OAK

60"

O
A

K

O
A

K

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

10
9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

110

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

111

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

112

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

113

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

114

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

115

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

116

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

117

2
8
"h

4
5
"/

4
5
" C

L
R

M
F
4
5
1
0

2
8
"h

4
5
"/

4
5
" C

L
R

M
F
4
5
1
0

E
C

8
4
"

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

WALL

43"h

43"h

6
6
/

C
6
6
/

C

E
C

8
4
"E

C
8
4
"

WALLWALL

WALL

T-FRAMET-FRAME

T-FRAME

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALLWALL

M

F

0
14

3

6
0
/

C

C C

M

F

0
14

3

6
0
/

C

M

F

0
14

3
W

A
L

L
W

A
L

L
W

A
L

L

M
F
0

14
3

6
0
/
C

M
F
0

14
3

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

C C

MF0143

6
0
/

C

7
2

STRDST GRAY CRPT

STRDST GRAY CRPT

44

34

34

+30

S
O

L
I
D
/

N
O
 

S
L

O
T

S

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

24

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

18

18

1
8

8
4

18

18

2
2

2
2

8
4

18

18

18

3
4

8
4

18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

118

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
0

1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
0

2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
0

4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
0

5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
0

6

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

10

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
11

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
12

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
13

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
16

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
17

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
18

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
19

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
2

0

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
2

1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
2

2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
2

7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

2
9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
3

0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

3
1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

2
3

2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
2

3
4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
0

0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

0
3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
0

4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
0

5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

0
6

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
0

7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
0

8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

0
9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
10

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

11
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
12

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
13

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
14

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
15

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
16

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
17

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
18

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
3

2
3

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
2

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
2

8

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
2

9

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
3

0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
3

1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
3

2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

3
3

3

N/I/T

S
T

Y
L

E

5
5

55 55

SHORT TABLE SHORT TABLE

SHORT TABLE

T
A

L
L
 

T
A

B
L

E

E
C

8
4
"

WALL WALL

TALL

TALL TABLE

T
A

L
L
 

T
A

B
L

E

B
U

N
K

E
R

S
H

O
R

T

T
A

L
L
 

T
A

B
L

E

B
U

N
K

E
R

S
H

O
R

T

5
5

SHORT TABLE

T
A

L
L
 

T
A

B
L

E

TALL TABLE

E
C

8
4
"

WALL WALL

WALL WALL WALL WALL

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
0

4
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S

L

0
0

5

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

1S
L

0
0

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
0

7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

10

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

11

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

12

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

13

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

14

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 1S

L
0

15

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 1S
L

0
16

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

17

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

18
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

19

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

L
0

2
4

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
2

5

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
2

6

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
2

7

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
2

8

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
2

9

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
3

0

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
3

1

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
3

2

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
L

0
3

3

BUILT

PER AS 

5'-2" 

   BUNKER
2FT

   BUNKER
2FT

   BUNKER
2FT

   BUNKER
2FT

   BUNKER
4FT 

   BUNKER
4FT 

   BUNKER
4FT 

   BUNKER
4FT 

M

S

6

2
'-

1
1
"

2
4
 

O
P

E
N

6

3
'-

0
"

4'-0" 3'-9"

3
'-

0
"

3'-0"

3
'-

4
"

3
'-

3
"

6
6

1'-0"

3
'-

5
"

5'-5"

3
'-

5
"

3
'-

3
"

3
'-

0
"

5
5

W
F
3
5
4
2

55

4'-7"
S

3'-0"

MIRROR

3'-4"

MIRROR

M

S S

2
'-

1
1
"

2
'-

1
1
"

5'-0"

3'-5"

4'-3"

1
2

3
'-

1
1
"

4
'-

3
"

4'-0"

3
'-

0
"

4'-0"

4'-4"

3'-5"

4'-0"

3'-1"

1'-0"

1'-0"

2
'-

8
"

3'-7"

3
'-1"

4'-0" 3'-2" 2'-8"

3'-0" 3'-1"

3
'-

5
"

2'-11"5
5

5
5

2'-8"2'-8"

3'-1"

3
'-

5
"

3
'-

7
"

3
'-

5
"

3
'-

6
"

3
'-

6
"

2'-10"

3'-1"

2
'-9

"

5
5

55

WALLWALL

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

T
-
F

R
A

M
E

T
-
F

R
A

M
E

MIRROR

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

WF3543

WF3542

T
-
F

R
A

M
E

T
-
F

R
A

M
E

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

WALL WALL

S
T

A
R

D
U
S
T
 
S

O
L
ID
 
T

O
 
7
2
" -
 
S
T

A
R

D
U
S
T
 

W
IR

E
 

A
B

O
V
E

S
T

A
R

D
U

S
T
 

W
I
R

E
 

T
O
 
1
1
4
"

3
4

STRDST WIRE

STRDST WIRE

WALLWALL E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

EC 84"

EC
84"

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

E
C

8
4
"

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

EC
84"

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

EC
84"

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

T-FRAMET-FRAME

E
C

8
4
"

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

E
C

8
4
"

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

E
C

8
4
"

E
C

8
4
"

WALLWALL

W
A

L
L

W
A

L
L

S
T

R
D

S
T
 

W
I
R

E

114

114" WIRE - STARDUST SILVER

114" WIRE - STARDUST SILVER

S
T
R

D
S
T
 

W
IR

E

7
2
" 

S
T

A
R

D
S

T

WIRE

WIRE

W
I
R

E
W
I
R

E

7
2
" 

S
T

A
R

D
S

T

WIRE

WIRE

W
I
R

E
W
I
R

E

7
2
" 

S
T

A
R

D
S

T

WIRE

WIRE

W
I
R

E
W
I
R

E

STRDST WIRE

1
1
4

114
" W

IR
E
 
-
 
S

T
A

R
D

U
S

T
 
S
IL

V
E

R

1
1
4
" 

W
I
R

E
 
-
 
S

T
A

R
D

U
S

T
 

S
I
L

V
E

R

STRDST WIRE

F
S

W
F
3
8
7
8

FS

WF3878

I
N

T
I

M
A

T
E

S
 
I
S

M

9
4

E
C

6
6
"E

C
6
6
"

60/C 60/C60/C60/C60/C60/C

E
L

M
6
6
"

E
L

M
6
6
"

E
C

8
4
"E

C
8
4
" WALLWALLWALLWALLWALLWALL

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1H
L

5
0

5

5
'-

0
"

5
5

WALLWALLWALLWALL

W
A

L
L

4
'-

3
"

3'-4"

3
'-

4
"

3
'-

0
"

 
 
 
 
 
 

F
S

0

4

4

5

 
 
 

 

 

 

BA

FRZ

FS0054

F
S
0
3
5
3

F
L

O
O

R
 

S
IN

K
2
"
 
IW

W
A

S
T

E
/

V
E

N
T

ƒ
"
 

C
W

ƒ
"
 

H
W

2-TR 2-TR

NCR

C/R

120V/1
VARIES AFF

120V/1
72" AFF

NEMA 5-20R
SINGLE

39" TALL

ICEU200

ICE MAKER

"C"

WATER

SBC

W
A

S
T

E
/

V
E

N
T

•
"
 

C
W

•
"
 

H
WS

B
0
3
0
8

SB0317

clear

3'-0"

REFRIG

3
' 
-
1
0
" 

OF0047

OF0050

OF0041

OF0051

OF0048

OF0050

OF0050

O
F
0
0
5
0

O
F
0
0
5
0

OF0051OF0051OF0051

OF0051OF0051OF0051

W
X
-
1

1
8
"

8
T

8
6

3
6
"

NCR

C/R

S
T

A
R

B
U

C
K

S

OF0047

OF0050

OF0047

OF0050

R
E

F
R
I
G

WASHER
DISH-

O
F
0
0
5
8

O
F
0
0
5
8

O
F
0
0
5
8

O
F
0
0
5
8

O
F
0
0
5
9

O
F
0
0
5
9

SB1161SB1162SB1163SB1164SB1165

S
B
1
1
5
5

S
B
1
1
5
6

S
B
1
1
5
7

S
B
1
1
5
8

S
B
1
1
5
9

S
B
1
1
6
0

COOLER

RACK
SNACK 

120V/1
80" AFF

F
R

E
E

Z
E

R

SB1139

 
 

SB1167

S
C

R
I
B

E

SB1134SB1116

SB1100SB1100

WX-1

18"

8T 86

36"

WX-1

18"

8T 86

36"

W
X
-
1

1
8
"

8
T

8
6

3
6
"

W
X
-
1

1
8
"

8
T

8
6

3
6
"

SB1169 SB1154

S
C

R
I
B

E

S
C

R
I
B

E

S
B
1
1
7
0

SB1138

S
B
1
1
3
0

SB1274

OF0051

3
' 
-
7
" 

13' -8" 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

C
0

0
1

B
O

X
F
I
L

L

T
A

N
KC
O
2

SB1672 SB1591
SB1549

S
B
1
6
7
3

T
A

P

S

B

15

9
1

 
 
 
 

S

B

16

7
2

 
 
 
 

S
B

15

4
9

 

 

 

 
S

B

16
7

3

 

 
 
 

BALER

ELECTRICAL

WATER 

9
' 
-
4
" 

TOP OF LOWER PALLET BEAM OVER CONVEYOR TO BE SET @ 96"

ROLLER CONVEYOR SET AT  - 34" H

H.L. ZONE STAGING12 PALLET ZONES

7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"7'-0"

STOCK ROOM LIGHTING SPACING

NOTE:

BACK-TO-BACK LIGHT DUTY SHELVING

TO HAVE 22 GA. SHEET METAL BARRIERS

WHERE INDICATED BY HEAVY LINES

7'-0" 7'-0"7'-0"

ALL LIGHT DUTY SHELVING

TO BE SET AT PROFILE "B"

NOTE:

STORE TEAM TO SET OTHER SHELVES

 SIGN STORAGE  FIXTURE STORAGE

5' -7" 5' -1" 7' -11" 

3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -0" 3' -2" 
3' -1" 3' -1" 3' -1" 3' -1" 3' -1" 3' -1" 

8
' 
-
2
" 

7
' 
-
1
0
" 

7' -10" 

1
2
' 
-
9
" 

7' -10" 

3
' 
-
1
" 

4' -4" 

8
' 
-
1
" 

7' -5" 

(E) ELECTRONICS STOCK

(E) FIXTURE STORAGE

7
' 
-
6
" 

7
' 
-
6
" 

16' -4" 

9
' 
-
9
" 

7
' 
-
1
0
" 

88" No Gut Frame

4' -0" 

7' -1" 7' -1" 7' -2" 7' -1" 7' -1" 7' -0" 7' -1" 7' -1" 4' -8" 2' -8" 

3' -1" 4' -1" 

F
L

E
X
 

T
R

A
C

K

3' -0" 3' -9" 3' -1" 

WF1722

WF2742WF2742

OF0153

2
OF0153

2
OF0153

2

10'OF016610'OF016610'OF0166

T
R

A
S

H

O
F
0
1
6
1

T
R

A
S

H

O
F
0
1
6
1

TRASH

OF0161

TRASH

OF0161

OF0075

4L

OF00461

OF0033

10'OF0166

5' STACKER
CROWN

WORKCENTER
CHARGEBACK

VENDOR RETURN
SUPPLIES/

TRUCKER LINE

AS DASHED

  PURCHASED BY CONSTRUCTION
NOTE:  SINGLE ROW OF 1" O.D.PIPE

MISC CLOSET
(E) JANITORS

OF0186

DESK

DOCK

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

 

W
A

S
T

E
/

V
E

N
T

•
"
 

C
W

•
"
 

H
W

48"

 

M
I
L

K
 

F
L

A
T

S

LOCATION

PALLET

2
' 
-
0
" 

2' -6" 2' -6" 

2
"
 
IW

F
L

O
O

R
 

S
IN

K

ƒ
"
 

C
W

ƒ
"
 

H
W

W
A

S
T

E
/

V
E

N
T

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

5
T

8
6

W
C
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
C
-
1

2
4
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

W
A
-
2

1
8
"

8
6

7
T

1
8
"

W
B
-
3

8
6

7
T

1
8
"

W
B
-
3

8
6

7
T

1
8
"

W
B
-
3

8
6

7
T

1
8
"

W
B
-
3

867T

WB-118"

86 7T

WB-1 18"

867T

WB-118"

86 7T

WB-1 18"

867T

WB-118"

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

M
E

A
T
 

C
O

O
L

E
R

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
 

C
O

O
L

E
R

DRY PRODUCE/LABELING

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
 

F
R

E
E

Z
E

R

D
A
I
R

Y
 

C
O

O
L

E
R

8
6

7
T

W
B
-
1

2
4
"

8
6

7
T

W
B
-
1

2
4
"

8
6

7
T

W
B
-
2

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
C
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
C
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
C
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
D
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
D
-
1

2
4
" 8

6
7

T

W
B
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
D
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
D
-
1

2
4
"

5
T

8
6

W
D
-
1

2
4
"

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

LOCATION

PALLET

2' -4" 2' -4" 2' -4" 2' -3" 

LOCATION

PALLET

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

W
X
-
1

6
3

4
T

2
1
"

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N

P
A

L
L

E
T

86 7T

WB-1 18"

86 7T

WB-1 18"

867T

WB-118"

2
' 
-
0
" 

7
' 
-
6
" 

6' -5" 

7' -6" 

3
' 
-
5
" 

3
' 
-
1
" 

3
' 
-
1
" 

3
' 
-
9
" 

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

2
4

10
'C

3

10
'

2
4

10
'C

3 10
'

SSS

10
'

10
'

SSS

10
'

XX

10'C

12

10'C

12

X
X

2
4

1
0
'C

3

1
0
'

X X

3

1
0
'

3

1
0
'

X X1
0
'

1
0
'

X X1
0
'

6' -2" 

2
4

10
'C

10
'

XX 10
'

10
'

XX 10
'

10
'

XX

2
4

1
0
'C

3

1
0
'

2
4

1
0
'C

3

1
0
'

SSS

1
0
'

1
0
'

SSS

1
0
'

1
0
'

SSS

2
4

1
0
'C

2
4

1
0
'C

SSS

EJECTOR
SEWAGE

5' -2" 

96" GUIDE RAIL120"' GUIDE RAIL

144" GUIDE RAIL

V
A

C
. 

P
U

M
P

E
L

E
C
 

R
O

O
M
/

MAINT.
DAY

MAINTENANCE
(NIGHT

STORAGE
FOOD

5
' 
-
8
" 

7
' 
-
1
0
" 

4
' 
-
6
" 

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

3'-6" to 3'-9"

Ladder Width

12' H

3'-6" to 3'-9"

Ladder Width

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

12' H

U
n
v
s
l U

n
v
s
l

3'-0" to 3'-5"

Ladder Width

1
2
' 

H

Unvsl

Unvsl

3
'-

0
" 
t
o
 
3
'-

5
"

L
a
d
d
e
r
 

W
i
d
t
h

AREA
ASSY.

BIKE

1
2
'

3

1
2
'

X X

3

1
2
'

3

1
2
'

X X

PANELS
ELECT. 

10
'

XX 10
'

10
'

XX

5
'-

2
"

24

12'C

3

12'

24

12'C

3

12'

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

24

12'C

24

12'C

SSS

18

8'C

18

8'C

SS

18

8'C

SS

2
4

1
2
'C

3

1
2
'

SSS

3

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

SSS

2
4

8
'C8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

2
4

8
'C8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

2
4

8
'C8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

2
4

8
'C8
'

SS

8
'

SS

8
'

SS

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

148 (S)

148 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

148 (S)

148 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

148 (S)

148 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

96

96

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

3
6
-12

0

R
 
(S
)

144

144

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

96

96 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

100

100 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

100

100 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

2
4

8
'C8
'

SS

8
'

SS

W
I
D

E
S

P
A

N

1
2
0

1
0
2

144

144

W
I
D

E
S

P
A

N

1
2
0

1
0
2

144

144

144

144

W
I
D

E
S

P
A

N

1
2
0

1
0
2

144

144

144

144

W
I
D

E
S

P
A

N

1
2
0

1
0
2

144

144

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

18

14'C

3

12'

24

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

12'12'

SSS

18

14'C

3

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

12'

SSS

24

14'C

3

12'

X
X

24

12'C

24

12'C

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

14'C

12
3

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

12'

12'

X
X

3
'-

1
"

3
'-

1
"

2
4

8
'C

8
'

X

8
'

8
'

X

2
4

8
'C

96

96

W
I
D

E
S

P
A

N

1
2
0

1
0
2

96

96

18

8'C

3

8'

SS

3

18

8'C

SS

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
2

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
K

0
0

3

HD9903

BENCH

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1S
K

0
0

4

120"' GUIDE RAIL96" GUIDE RAIL

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
6

H
D
9
9
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
7

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

10

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1S

K
0

11

2
4

12
'C

312
'

X X

BLD UPDATE - SEE SURVEY

2
4

8
'C

2
4

8
'C

X

2
4

8
'C8
'

X

8
'

8
'

X

8
'

8
'

X

2
4

8
'C

1
8 8
'C

8
'SS

8
'SS

8
'SS

8
'SS

3

1
8 8
'CSS

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

144

144 (F)

4
8
-
1
2
0

R
 
(S
)

2
4

14
'C

2
4

12
'CXX

48-120

R (S)

9
6

9
6
 
(F
)

48-120

R (S)

9
6

9
6
 
(F
)

48-120

R (S)

2
4

1
2
'C

3

1
2
'

2
4

1
2
'C

3

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

1
2
'

SSS

1
2
'

1
2
'

SSS

2
4

12
'C

312
'

X X

12
'

12
'

X X

12
'

12
'

X X

UPDATE BLD AS PER SURVEY

SHIP FROM STOREPLACEHOLDER

SHIP FROM STORE 

FLEX FULFILLMENT

HD, 

STOCKROOM

24

8'C

8'

X

24

8'C

TABLE

PACK

CART

BOXCART

PREP

VENDING

MACHINES
BY OWNER

A
T

M

1
3
' 
-
2
" 

O
F
0
12

6

M
.W
.

OF0125

REFRIG

M
F
1
1
3
9 M

F
1
1
3
9

CLOCK

TIME

TERMINAL BLOCKS

TELEPHONE

Recyc

Recyc

5'-6"

3
0
x
4
8

S
L

L
S

S
L

L
S

S
L

SHELF

3
0
x
4
8

WF3763

3'-8" 5'-6" S
L

3
0
x
4
8

L
S

5'-0"

3
0
x
4
8

L
S

M
F
3
3
5
6

H
I
G

H
 

T
O

P
 

T
A

B
L

E
 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E
 

L
O

U
N

G
E
 

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

3'-8" 3'-3"

M
F
3
3
5
2

S
S
 

P
R

E
P
 

T
A

B
L

E
 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E
 

L
O

U
N

G
E
 

W
F
3
6
4
5

O
F
0
12

6

M
.W
.

O
F
0
12

6

M
.W
.

O
F
0
12

6

M
.W
.

O
F
0
12

6

M
.W
.

L
H

M
F
3
3
5
0

A
C

C

LOUNGE (30)

3
'-

3
"

SHELF

18x30/2D18x30/2D

18x60

(12)

TRAINING

WF3763

24x36x84

OPU 

P
C

W
K

S
T

N
 

C
D

OF8270

14x72

3
0
x
6
6

O
F
8
1
5
0

20x42

PRINTER

OF830118x30/2D

O
F
8
0
0
0

O
F
8
3
0
5

1
8
x
3
6
/
5

D

ETL-HR

P
C

W
K
S
T

N
 

C
D

OF8270

14x72

3
0
x
6
6

O
F
8
1
5
0

20x42

OF830118x30/2D

O
F
8
0
0
0

O
F
8
3
0
5

1
8
x
3
6
/
5

D

STL
CONFS

S

COPY
OF0032

24x36 OF8307

OF830218x36/2D

24x36 OF8303

13x58 OF8308

18x60 OF8304

OF830118x30/2DOF830118x30/2D

PC

WKSTN 
OF8151

30x60 30x3630x60

OF8002OF8002

6-T

OF0310

3-T

OF0311

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

6-T

OF0310

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

3-T

OF0311

LOCKERS (144)

C
O

A
T

S
 
(1

6
 

L
F
)

8
'-

5
"

OF0086

4'-0"

(5)SHELVES

84

EQUIP

O
F
8
0
0
1

3"

3
"

OF8001

4
'-

0
"

3
'-

1
0
"

1
3
'-

0
"

KEY CABINET

1
3
'-

0
"

2
4
x
5
4

2
3
x
1
5
/
2

D

4'-0" P
C

W
K
S
T

N
 

3
-
T

O
F
0
3
11

3
-
T

O
F
0
3
11

3
-
T

O
F
0
3
11

3
-
T

O
F
0
3
11

3
-
T

O
F
0
3
11

4
'-

8
"

O
F
8
3
5
1

ETL /TL (6)

TEAM SERVICE CENTER

5'-0"

2
4
x
4
8

P
C

W
K

S
T

N
 

1
4
x
4
8

WF3308

DROP

CASH

RED

OFFICE
CASH

 (1052 CF)
OPU STORAGE

6
'C

1
2

36
' X36
'C

1
2

6'C

12

3

6'

X
3

6'C

12

24x36x84

R
 
(S
)

3
6
-7

2

96

96 (F)

R
 
(S
)

3
6
-7

22A-6I

FLEX

REGISTRY
GIFT

C
A

R
T

C
A

S
H

W
F
2
3
9
5

SAFE
OF0179

ROOM
CONTROL 

PC

WKSTN 

OF8001 OF8001

OF8001OF8001

PC

WKSTN 

PC

WKSTN 

PC

WKSTN 

OF8001

PC

WKSTN 

PC

WKSTN 

5
'-

5
"

1
8
x
3
0
/
2

D

8
4

(1
)S

H
E

L
F

M
S
0
0
8
4

M
S
0
0
8
4

A
S
0
3
0
0

AS0332

AS0331

A
S
0
0
0
2

1
4

A
S
0
3
0
0

5'-0"
24x42

OF8110

24x42

OF8110

24x42

OF8110

24x42

OF8110

24x42

OF8110

3
6
x
3
6

O
F
8
0
6
0

R

3
6
x
3
6

O
F
8
0
6
0

R

42x30 42x3042x3042x30

4
2
x
3
0

4
2
x
3
6

4
2
x
3
6

OF8213

O
F
8
0
5
2

1
8
x
7
2

O
F
8
0
0
6

L

O
F
8
0
0
5

S

O
F
8
0
0
4

R

O
F
8
0
5
2

1
8
x
7
2

O
F
8
0
0
6

L

O
F
8
0
0
5

S

O
F
8
0
0
4

R

O
F
8
0
5
2

1
8
x
7
2

O
F
8
0
0
6

L

O
F
8
0
0
5

S

O
F
8
0
0
4

R

O
F
8
0
5
2

1
8
x
7
2

O
F
8
0
0
6

L

O
F
8
0
0
5

S

O
F
8
0
0
4

R

3
'-

0
"

4'-5" 4'-2"

M
F
3
3
5
7

H
I
G

H
 

T
O

P
 

T
A

B
L

E
 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E
 

L
O

U
N

G
E
 

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

O
F
8
0
0
8

(5
)S

H
E

L
V

E
S

8
4

(5
)S

H
E

L
V

E
S

8
4

1
8
x
3
0
/
2

D

(5
)S

H
E

L
V

E
S

8
4

3'-5" 2
3
'-

0
"

8
'-

2
"

OFFICE
AP 

2
4
x
6
0

O
F
8
1
0
8

O
F
8
2
7
6

1
4
x
6
0

ROOM

STOCK 

8
'-

1
1
"

3'-10"

ELECTRICAL PANELS

 
W

A
S

H
E

Y
E

8
4

(1
)S

H
E

L
F

M
S
0
0
8
4

M
S
0
0
8
4

A
S
0
3
0
1

AS0332

AS0331

A
S
0
0
2
6

1
4

(1
)S

H
E

L
F

M
S
0
0
8
4

A
S
0
3
0
1

AS0332

AS0331

A
S
0
0
2
6

1
4

A
S
0
3
0
1

AS0332

AS0331

A
S
0
3
0
1

AS0332

AS0331

7'-1"
 EXCHANGE

RETURNS &

24x36x84

2
4
x
3
0

24x36x84

8' -11" 

24

6'C

6'

X

8
f
t
 
F

L
E

X
 

B
-
2

6'

24

10'C

10'

X
X

4
f
t
 
F

L
E

X
 

B
-
2

3'-10"

3
'-

7
"

1
81
0
'C

3

1
0
' X X

6ft FLEX B-2

33333333

1
81
0
'C

3333333

29x46

4
'-

1
0
"

AP2082

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 1O
F

0
0

4

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 1O

F
0

0
5

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 1O

F
0

0
6

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 1O

F
0

0

7

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 1O

F
0

0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 1O

F
0

0
9

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 1O

F

0

10

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

1O
F

0
11

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

1O
F

0
0

1

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 1O

F

0

0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 1O

F
0

0
3

24

8'C

8'

X

2
4

6
'C

6
'

X

6
'

6
'

X

OPENING

4FT MIN

4
'-

0
"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

3
'-

6
"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

3
'-

6
"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

3
'-

6
"

6'-3"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

867T

18"

WB-2

48"

FS1184
T-72F-HC-FGD01

12

12

A A

11

11

10

10

9

9

8

8

7

7

6

6

5

5

4

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

K K

B B

C C

D D

E E

F F

G G

H H

J J

Alcohol Display Area
30 ft

25 ft 24 ft
48 ft

Data Table:
Total Building Floor Area:  105,904 sq. ft.
Retail Sales Floor Area:  67,592 sq. ft.

Sheet #3: Floor Plan    
(Rev. 10/28/22)

Z072455
Rectangle

Z072455
Rectangle

Z072455
Rectangle

Z072455
Rectangle

Z072455
Rectangle

Z072455
Rectangle



Sheet #4: Building Photographs 
(Rev. 10/28/22)



 
SUBJECT: Occupancy Agreement between the City of Hollister and Prakash 

Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP. The applicant, Prakash 
Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP is requesting approval of an 
Occupancy Permit Agreement for the approved Holiday Inn Hotel 
located at 391 Gateway Drive in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning 
District to receive a Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Hollister 
despite not having completed all required Conditions of Approval for 
Site & Architectural Review 2019-17. 

     
STAFF PLANNER:  Liz Gagliardi, Associate Planner 
    Cristian Builes, Associate Engineer   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution approving the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 

 and Execution of the Occupancy Permit Agreement by and 
 between the City of Hollister and Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
 (Holiday Inn Hotel) located at 391 Gateway Drive, APN No. 053-
 041-007 

    2. Exhibit A - Occupancy Agreement between the City of Hollister  
     and Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
    3. Resolution No. PC 2019-49, Approving S&A 2019-17 
    4.  Resolution No. PC 2019-50, Approving CUP 2019-6  
    5. October 24, 2019 Planning Commission Staff Report  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the Resolution approving the execution of an Occupancy Permit 

Agreement by and between the City of Hollister and Hollister Gateway 
Hotel, LP and delegate the authority to the City Manager to execute the 
agreement. 

             
              
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On October 24, 2019, the Planning Commission approved Site & Architectural Review (S&A) 2019-17 and 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 2019-6, approving the construction of a four-story, 93-room Holiday Inn 
hotel on a 1.561-acre site located at 391 Gateway Drive (APN: 053-041-007) in the General Commercial 
(GC) Zoning District. CUP 2019-6 approved a variation in the minimum parking requirements for this 
project, which was approved with 92 parking spaces provided on the site.  
 
The owner, Prakash Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP has constructed the hotel consistent with the 

 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

February 9, 2023 
New Business Item 1 



PC Staff Report 
Occupancy Agreement – Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 2 of 5 

 
approved design for S&A 2019 and CUP 2019-6. A Temporary Certificate of Occupancy was granted by 
the City of Hollister Building Department on November 30, 2022. The owner is now seeking a Certificate 
of Occupancy, but has not fulfilled all applicable Conditions of Approval. In order to move forward with 
obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy to allow the Holiday Inn Hotel to open, the applicant is requesting 
to enter into an Occupancy Permit Agreement with the City of Hollister. 
 
For more information on the past approvals, please refer to the attached documents:  

 

 Resolution No. PC 2019-49, Approving S&A 2019-17 (included as Attachment 3) 

 Resolution No. PC 2019-50, Approving CUP 2019-6 (included as Attachment 4) 

 October 24, 2019 Planning Commission Staff Report (included as Attachment 5) 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
  
Prakash Patel, Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP is the owner of the Holiday Inn Hotel located at 391 Gateway 
Drive in the General Commercial Zoning District. The owner has constructed a Hotel pursuant to Site and 
Architectural Review 2019-17 and is requesting approval of an Occupancy Permit Agreement to receive 
a Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Hollister despite not having completed all required 
Conditions of Approval. 
 
The following aerial image depicts the location of the project site and the surrounding area. 
 

Figure 1: 

  
 

Project Site 



PC Staff Report 
Occupancy Agreement – Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 3 of 5 

 
DISCUSSION:   
  
The Owner is seeking to receive a Certificate of Occupancy for the Holiday Inn Hotel. However, the 
project does not yet satisfy Condition of Approval No. 16, which states: 

 
“The property owner/developer shall replace any street or sidewalk improvements or utility services that 
are removed or damaged during the construction of the project as determined by the City Engineer. This 
could include, but is not limited to, permeable paving, PCC curbs, gutters, sidewalks, street lighting, 
signing and striping, all underground utilities including, but not limited to, sanitary sewers, gas, electrical, 
telephone, and water and fire services lines, and all other improvements to bring the right-of-way into full 
conformance with applicable City standards. All construction in the right-of-way shall be completed prior 
to final building approval.” 
 
Per this condition, the property owner/developer is required to complete all public improvements 
including but not limited to any removed or damage improvements that occurred during construction 
prior to receiving a Certificate of Occupancy. Currently, the sidewalks that have been damaged during 
construction have not yet been replaced, and the developer will need to remove existing striping and 
Slurry Seal the entire frontage improvements, as well as restripe the frontage improvements as indicated 
by the City Public Works Inspector. However, despite these outstanding items, the City is willing to issue a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the Project based on the terms and conditions set forth in the attached 
Agreement.  
 
The Owner will construct, install and complete the outstanding items and unfinished work as required 
by the conditions and/or as described in the Agreement. This agreement requires that the owner pay a 
Security Deposit to be held by the City to ensure the outstanding conditions are met within six (6) 
months of the effective date of the Agreement. Upon the City’s verification that the owner has satisfied 
and completed the outstanding items, the City will return the Security Deposit to the owner. Should the 
Owner fail to satisfy the conditions, the City will be authorized to use the security deposit to complete 
the outstanding work. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA):    
   
The proposed Occupancy Agreement is exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to CEQA 
guidelines because the proposed Agreement will not result in any direct physical change to the City. 
 
The associated project approval for S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 was determined to be categorically 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15332, Class 32, Infill Development.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The proposed Occupancy Agreement will allow the property owner/developer to move forward with 
opening the Holiday Inn Hotel despite not having repaired the sidewalk, slurry sealed entire frontage 
improvements, and restriped the frontage improvements to meet Condition of Approval No. 16 from 
the original approval of S&A 2019-17. By entering into this Agreement and providing the required 
security deposit, the City can ensure that the necessary improvements required by the Conditions of 
Approval are executed after the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.    



PC Staff Report 
Occupancy Agreement – Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 4 of 5 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS:  
 
The Planning Commission can choose one of the following options: 
 

1. Adopt a Resolution approving the execution of an Occupancy Permit Agreement by and 
between the City of Hollister and Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP and delegate the authority 
to the City Manager to execute the agreement (Attachment 1) 

 
2. Deny the Proposed Project; or 
 
3. Continue the Public Hearing and direct Staff to provide additional information or 

clarification  
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission select Option 1 for this Item.  
 
 
 



PC Staff Report 
Occupancy Agreement – Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 5 of 5 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
APPLICANT:   Prakash Patel, Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
    P.O. Box 41160 
    San Jose, California 95160 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Same as above 
 
LOCATION:   391 Gateway Drive (APN 053-041-007) 
 
GENERAL PLAN 
DESIGNATION:   General Commercial 
 
ZONING DISTRICT:  General Commercial (GC) 
 
SURROUNDING USES: 
 

Location Zoning Designation General Plan Land Use Current use of 
Property 

Project Site GC General Commercial Holiday Inn Hotel 
(under construction) 

North GC General Commercial Vacant / Hotel 

South N/A (San Benito 
County Island) 

N/A (San Benito County 
Island 

Commercial 

East GC General Commercial Childcare Facility 

West GC General Commercial Vacant 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF HOLLISTER APPROVING THE 
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY AND EXECUTION OF THE OCCUPANCY PERMIT 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF HOLLISTER AND HOLLISTER GATEWAY HOTEL, 
LP/HOLIDAY INN HOTEL LOCATED AT 391 GATEWAY DRIVE APN NO. 053-041-007 

 
  WHEREAS, Prakash Patel/Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP (“Owner”) is requesting approval of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the project (Holiday Inn Hotel) located at 391 Gateway Drive in the General 
Commercial Zoning District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner has constructed the hotel consistent with the approved plan set for Site and 
Architectural Review (“S&A”) 2019-17, Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) 2019-6 and related approvals 
(“Project”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner seeks a Certificate of Occupancy for the Project from the City, but 
acknowledges that the Project has not yet satisfied all of the conditions required by Planning Commission 
Resolution No. PC 2019-49 and PC 2019-50 approving the Project; and, 

 
  WHEREAS, The City is willing to issue a Certificate of Occupancy for the Project on the terms and 
conditions as set forth in the Agreement attached herein as Exhibit A; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, during the regular meeting of the Planning Commission on February 9, 2023, the Planning 
Commission considered the Owner’s request, reviewed the City staff report, and received written and oral 
testimony for and against the proposal; and, 
 

WHEREAS, during the regular meeting of the Planning Commission on February 9, 2023, the Planning 
Commission deliberated and determined to grant the Owner’s request in accordance with the terms and 
conditions as set forth in the Agreement; and, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED, that the City of Hollister Planning Commission authorizes the City 
Manager to execute the Agreement with Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP and makes the following findings:  
 
1. The proposed Agreement does not change the findings made by Resolution No. PC 2019-49 

(Approving S&A 2019-17) and Resolution No. PC 2019-50 (Approving CUP 2019-17). Consistent with 
the findings outlined in PC Resolutions 2019-49 and 2019-50, the following findings remain 
unchanged: 
a. Approval of the project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 

quality, or water quality and the site can be served adequately by required utilities and public 
services.  

b. The project is consistent with the City of Hollister General Plan. 
c. The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of persons 

residing or working in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City. 
d. The reduction of parking is necessary for the efficient operation of the subject use and will 

not result in a parking deficiency.  
 
 



PC Resolution 2023- 
Occupancy Permit – Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED, at a regular meeting of the City of Hollister Planning Commission held on 
this 9th day of February 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
 
              
       Chairperson of the Planning Commission 
       of the City of Hollister 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Christy Hopper, Secretary 
 

Please Note 
 

It is the sole responsibility of the project applicant to comply with the conditions as approved, modified, or 
added by the Planning Commission. It is recommended that the applicant review these conditions carefully 
and if any questions arise as to compliance with the conditions, please do not hesitate to contact the staff 
planner. Also, if you do not agree with the proposed conditions, you have an opportunity to present your 
case to the City Council at their meeting. In addition, the City provides for a 15-day appeal period. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF HOLLISTER 
OCCUPANCY PERMIT AGREEMENT 

This Occupancy Permit Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of 
Hollister, a political subdivision of California (“City”) and Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP (“Owner”) 
(collectively referred to as “Parties”) and is effective on February 9, 2023 (“Effective Date”), with respect 
to the following recitals, which are a substantive part of this Agreement.  

RECITALS  

A. Owner owns property at 391 Gateway Drive in Hollister, California, on which Owner has 
constructed a hotel (“Project”), pursuant to Site and Architectural Review 2019-17 and related approvals 
(“S&A 2019-17”). 

B. Owner seeks a Certificate of Occupancy for the Project from City but acknowledges that 
the Project does not yet satisfy all of the conditions required by S&A 2019-17, Planning Commission 
Resolution Nos. PC 2019-49 and PC 2019-50 (collectively referred to as “PC 2019-49”), as further described 
herein. 

C. City is willing to issue a Certificate of Occupancy for the Project on the terms and 
conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual agreements herein, City and 
Owner agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT  

1. Cash Security Deposit; Payment to City. Owner shall deposit the sum of One Hundred and 
Five Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Four Dollars and Thirty-Six Cents ($105,644.36) (“Security Deposit”) with 
the City by authorizing a wire transfer in the total amount of $105,644.36 (“Wired Funds”) to the City, to 
be received by the City no later than February 24, 2023.  The Security Deposit shall be held by the City to 
secure Owner’s performance of those outstanding items and unfinished work described in Exhibit 1 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and shall be held by and available for City use as 
regular funds upon Owner’s default under this Agreement, or until Reconciliation as described in Section 
6 herein, whichever occurs first. The Security Deposit shall not earn or accrue interest. Owner represents 
and warrants that sufficient funds will be available to pay the Wired Funds to the City, and that the City’s 
reliance on such representation is a material inducement to the City’s agreement to issue the Certificate 
of Occupancy as described in Section 2 of this Agreement.  If the Wired Funds are not received by the City 
on or before February 24, 2023, this Agreement shall immediately terminate, and the Certificate of 
Occupancy will not be issued pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement. 

2. Certificate of Occupancy. Upon the City’s verification that all outstanding Project work and 
conditions of approval for issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy have been satisfied, except the 
outstanding work/items specified in Exhibit 1 attached hereto, the City will issue a Certificate of Occupancy 
to Owner for the Project after the Wired Funds are received by the City as provided in Section 1 of this 
Agreement. Provided the aforementioned conditions are met, the Certificate of Occupancy shall be valid 
on the Effective Date of this Agreement but not earlier than when Wired Funds are received by the City.  

3. Satisfaction of Permit Conditions. Owner must fully satisfy and complete all conditions of 



City of Hollister Occupancy Agreement 
Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

approval specified in PC 2019-49, including the outstanding work/items specified in Exhibit 1 attached 
hereto within six (6) months from the Effective Date, and failure to do so shall constitute a default under 
this Agreement.  

 
4. Failure to Satisfy Conditions. Owner’s default under this Agreement, including but not 

limited to failure to satisfy the conditions/items described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto shall constitute a 
violation of PC 2019-49 and will be grounds for City to: (1) use the Security Deposit to complete the 
outstanding work/items described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto; (2) modify or revoke PC 2019-49 in 
accordance with applicable provisions of the Hollister Municipal Code; and/or (3) pursue any other legal 
or equitable remedies, including any and all remedies available under the Hollister Municipal Code. 

5. Completion by City. Upon Owner’s default under this Agreement, City shall be entitled to 
use any or all of the Security Deposit, as necessary, to complete any of the outstanding work/items 
described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto or cause any such work to be completed. The City shall not begin 
performing any work until after giving Owner not less than three (3) calendar days’ notice that such work 
will be performed. Owner hereby grants City and City’s contractors and/or agents the right to enter upon 
the premises of the Project, as reasonably necessary, to perform the work necessary to complete the work 
and satisfy the items listed in Exhibit 1 hereto.   

6. Reconciliation.  Upon Owner’s satisfactory completion of all outstanding work/items 
described in Exhibit 1 hereto prior to six (6) months after the Effective Date, the City shall return the 
Security Deposit to Owner upon satisfaction of the conditions of this Agreement, including completion of 
the Project pursuant conditions set forth in PC 2019-49 and resolution of the existing outstanding 
work/items in Exhibit 1. If Owner defaults under this Agreement, and City uses any portion of the Security 
Deposit to complete any outstanding work/items described in Exhibit 1, upon City’s completion of all such 
work/items the City shall reconcile the Security Deposit and work/items completed and shall return any 
unused portion of the Security Deposit to Owner along with a detailed record of monies used by City as 
authorized by this Agreement.  

7. Conflict Between Certificate of Occupancy and This Agreement. If there is any conflict 
between this Agreement and the Certificate of Occupancy, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 

8. Entire Agreement; Authority. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the 
parties with respect to the subject matters expressed herein. The parties represent that they have read 
and understand this Agreement and have had the opportunity to consult with professionals of their own 
choosing, including legal counsel if desired, prior to executing this Agreement. The parties further 
represent that they have the authority to sign this Agreement and bind the respective parties hereto.  

9. Construction of Agreement.  This Agreement is the product of negotiation and 
preparation by and among each of the Parties hereto and their representatives, and the Parties agree that 
this Agreement shall not be deemed to have been prepared or drafted by any one party.  Accordingly, the 
normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party 
shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

10. Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement may not be modified, amended, changed, 
or terminated, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, in whole or in part, except by an agreement 
in writing duly authorized and executed by both Parties. 

11. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 



City of Hollister Occupancy Agreement 
Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

each party and their respective authorized successors and assigns. 

12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures 
may appear on separate signature pages. A copy or an original, with all signatures appended together, 
shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 

 
OWNER:  
 
HOLLISTER GATEWAY HOTEL, LP,  
a California limited partnership 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Prakash Patel 
 

CITY:  
 
CITY OF HOLLISTER 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Brett Miller, City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



City of Hollister Occupancy Agreement 
Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

EXHIBIT 1  
 

Conditions of Approval  
 

(COA. 16) 

The property owner/developer shall replace any street or sidewalk improvements or utility 

services that are removed or damaged during the construction of the project as determined by 

the City Engineer. This could include, but is not limited to, permeable paving, PCC curbs, 

gutters, sidewalks; street lighting; signing and striping; all underground utilities including, 

but not limited to, sanitary sewer, gas, electrical, telephone, and water and fire services lines; 

and all other improvements to bring the right-of-way into full conformance with applicable City 

standards. All construction in the right-of-way shall be completed prior to final building approval. 

 
 

Description of Work 
 

1. Remove & Replace damage sidewalk as indicated in the field by the City Public Work Inspector. 
2. Remove existing striping and Slurry Seal (Type II) entire frontage improvements as indicated by 

the City Public Works Inspector (cul-de-sac to easterly terminus). 
3. Restripe frontage improvements as indicated by the City Public Works Inspector. 

 

 
 

 

 



































DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

City of Hollister 
Planning Division 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

  
            
             
 
MEETING DATE:  October 24, 2019 
 
APPLICATION No.: Site and Architectural Application No. 2019-17 
 Conditional Use Permit No. 2019-6 
 
APPLICANT:  Hollister Gateway Hotel, LP 
 
OWNER:    Prakash Patel & Paresh Patel 
 
REQUEST: The applicant is requesting Site & Architectural Review and 

Conditional Use Permit for the construction of a 93-room, 
four-story hotel on a 1.561 acre (68,032 SF) site located at 
391 Gateway Drive in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning 
District. The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow for 
variation in parking requirements. 

 
LOCATION:  391 Gateway Drive 
 APN: 053-041-007  
 
STAFF PLANNER:  Eva Kelly, Assistant Planner  (831) 636-4360 

Ambur Cameron, Assistant Planner    
M. Abraham Prado, Planning Manager 

            
             
 
PROJECT    
DESCRIPTION: The applicant is requesting approval for the construction of a 

93-room, four-story hotel on a 1.561 (68,032 SF) site located 
at 391 Gateway Drive. In addition to the guestrooms, the hotel 
will have a pool, gym, and meeting room available, as well as 
will provide a continental breakfast service. The project is 
located at 391 Gateway Drive in the General Commercial 
(GC) Zoning District (APN: 053-041-007). 

 
 
 



PC Staff Report 
S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 / Hollister Gateway Hotel 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 Elevations 
 The front (north) elevation of the hotel will be divided 

architecturally into four vertical sections. The leftmost body 
of the hotel will have a light beige stucco façade on the first 
two floors, darker taupe brown stucco on the third and fourth 
floors, and will be topped with a mid-tone beige stucco 
parapet. The trim at the top of the parapet and between the 
different sections will be white. The main entrance to the 
hotel will be in the center-left section of the building, defined 
by a tower that will be framed in aluminum panels on the top 
two –thirds, and the bottom will be stone. The tower will be 
stucco on the third and fourth floors and on the parapet in 
between the aluminum panel framing. There will be a location 
for the business signage at the top of the parapet. The main 
entrance will have a brown awning with columns in the 
matching aluminum panels which will cover the loading and 
unloading zone. The center-right section of the building will 
be similar to the left main body of the hotel, with the first 
floor being light beige stucco, the second to fourth floors 
being painted darker taupe, and the parapet remaining the 
same mid-tone beige. Finally, the right portion of the building 
will have another “tower” where the parapet is slightly taller 
than the main building, which will have the same light beige 
stucco for the first three floors, but will have a terra cotta 
brown stucco coloring for the fourth floor and parapet. The 
windows of the entire building will be trimmed in either light 
or dark brown depending on the wall coloring behind them, 
and the fourth floor and some of the first floor windows will 
have an arched decorative trim. 

 
 The rear (south) elevation will be almost an exact reflection of 

the front elevation, with the exception of the main entrance 
which will instead have an outdoor patio that can be used by 
the guests. There will be a rear entrance/exit which leads to 
the elevators inside, and there will also be an exit from the 
indoor pool area which leads to an outdoor patio as well. 

 
The west elevation will have a tiered parapet and fourth floor 
painted in the terra cotta brown of the front elevation, with the 
light beige stucco wrapping around the first three floors of the 
building. There will be one guestroom window at the center of 
each floor. There will be an exit door in the center of the 
building which leads into the hallway of the first floor, as well 
as an exterior doorway for the stairs. The aluminum paneling 
of the main entrance tower and its reflection on the back of 
the building project past the main building and can be seen 
from the side. 



PC Staff Report 
S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 / Hollister Gateway Hotel 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 
The east elevation will have light beige stucco on the first and 
second floors, taupe stucco on the third and fourth floors, and 
mid-tone beige stucco for the parapet. The metal paneling of 
the projecting main towers is also visible from this side. There 
will be a location for signage on the third and fourth floors 
which faces toward San Felipe Road and the entering cars 
driving on Gateway Drive. There will be an exit/entrance door 
to both the central main hallway of the hotel as well as an 
exterior doorway into the stairs on the east side of the hotel as 
well. 

 
Landscaping 
Along the northern frontage on Gateway Drive, there is 
proposed to be a bio-retention landscape area which will be 
landscaped with trees, groundcover, and shrubs, including 
Chinese Flame Tree (Koelreuteria bipnnata), Crape Myrtle 
(Lagerstroemia indica Tuscarora), India Hawthorne 
(Rhaphiolepis Clara), California Gray Rush (Juncus patens 
Elk Blue), and Small Cape Rush (Chondropetalum tectorum), 
among others. 
 
The east boundary of the site will be landscaped for 
bioretention as well, and the rear (south) of the property will 
be landscaped with a few new trees and groundcover. Many 
existing trees, including a large existing black walnut tree will 
be preserved in the landscape area along the back property 
line which forms a boundary to the parking lot. There is a 
trash enclosure located in the southeast corner of the parking 
lot as well.  
 
Throughout the parking lot, there will be several landscaped 
islands with trees and shrubs. The entrance to the hotel as well 
as the rear areas between the walkways and patios will be 
landscaped with shrubs and ground cover as well. 
 
Freestanding Sign 
The applicant is proposing the install a freestanding 
monument sign at the eastern driveway entrance to the 
parking lot of the hotel. Details of the monument sign are 
provided on Sheet A2.1 of the plan set. The sign base is 
proposed to be eight feet in overall height with a round 
structure 4 foot in diameter. It will be painted mostly in white 
with blue accents and a metal base. The tenant signage will be 
approximately 19.3 SF and will project about 1 foot from 
either side of the base, and will sit approximately 1 foot from 
the top. The sign will be visible to entering vehicles from 



PC Staff Report 
S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 / Hollister Gateway Hotel 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Gateway Drive. It will be located in the landscaped area along 
the project frontage and will be lit by an overhead light post 
which also lights the parking lot and entrance. 

 
Parking 
The applicant is providing 92 parking spaces. Per Section 
17.18.060 Table 17.18-1 Off-Street Parking and Bicycle 
Spaces Required by Land Use Type, the project would require 
one parking space per guest room and one per each employee.  
The project proposes 93 guestrooms and 10-15 employees, 
which would require 108 parking spaces. The project does not 
meet the minimum parking requirement.  
 
The applicant is requesting conditional use permit approval to 
allow for a reduction in the required parking spaces for the 
following reasons: 
 
1. The applicant is proposing 92 parking spaces, which is 

only one space short of supplying the minimum of one 
parking space per guestroom. 

2. The applicant, who also owns and operates the existing 
Fairfield Inn and Suites which is located across the street 
from the proposed project, indicated that there are very 
few days of the year, if any, where the hotel will be at 
maximum occupancy. 

3. While the hotel may have up to 15 employees during the 
day shifts, there will only be one to two employees during 
the night. However, guests are often away during the day, 
and therefore the parking lot will not be fully loaded 
during the day when employees will need to park. 

4. On the rare day when the hotel is at maximum occupancy, 
if a few additional parking spaces are needed, there is 
available street parking along Gateway Drive where 
employees or guests may need to park. 

 
There was a previous plan which had 93 parking spaces, but 
the applicant was required to change the plan to accommodate 
a second driveway access for life & safety requirements of the 
Fire Department, which resulted in the loss of one additional 
parking space. 

 
In addition to a request to allow for a reduction in the 
minimum parking requirement, the applicant is also 
requesting approval to deviate from Section 17.18.110(I)(4)(a) 
which states as follows: 
 



PC Staff Report 
S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 / Hollister Gateway Hotel 
Page 5 of 6 
 

“Parking areas with multiple parking aisles shall be 
designed to provide a continuous planter island 
between each aisle. The planter island shall be six feet 
wide, with six foot by 18-foot projecting islands every 
ten parking spaces.” 

 
The southern boundary of the site is proposed to be a long 
row of parking. It is broken up by only one island with 13 
parking spaces on either side. The reasoning for this was to 
preserve the existing large black walnut tree, which is very 
old and provides a significant amount of shade. Staff 
requested that the applicant try to preserve the tree if possible, 
and this requires a slight deviation from the “every ten 
parking space” projecting island requirements of the 
municipal code. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review the 

applicant’s request; receive all written and oral testimony 
regarding the proposal, and make the following motions: 

 
1. Adopt a resolution approving Site and Architectural 

Review Application No. 2019-17, subject to the findings 
and conditions contained in the draft resolution. 
 

2. Adopt a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No. 
2019-6, subject to the findings and conditions contained in 
the draft resolution. 

 
DISCUSSION: General Plan Consistency 
   The City of Hollister 2005-2023 General Plan Designates the 

project site as General Commercial. The property is zoned 
General Commercial and the proposed hotel use is consistent 
with the zoning designation and the General Plan. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SITE INFORMATION 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION: The proposed project will be located at 391 Gateway Drive 

(APN: 053-041-007). The property is outside of the Alquist 
Priolo Special Study Seismic Zone and outside of the FEMA 
flood plain. 

 
ZONING:   GC General Commercial Zoning District  
 
GENERAL PLAN:   General Commercial 
 
LAND USE: Vacant 



PC Staff Report 
S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6 / Hollister Gateway Hotel 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
SURROUNDING USES: (North) General Commercial (Vacant/Hotel) 
     (South) Commercial (San Benito County) 

(East)   General Commercial (Childcare Facility) 
(West)  General Commercial (Vacant) 

 
CEQA: The project is exempt from DEQA, Section 15332, Class 32, 

Infill Development; the project is consistent with the 2005-
2023 City of Hollister General Plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies. The project is located within 
the city limits of Hollister on property with urban services that 
is less than 5 acres in size. The project site has no value as 
habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species. Approval 
of the project would not result in any significant effects 
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality, and the 
site can be adequately serviced by all utilities and public 
services. 

________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

NOTICE 
Appeal Notice: Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Commission may 
appeal the decision within fifteen (15) calendar days to the City Council. The notice of 
appeal must be in writing and shall set forth specifically wherein the Planning 
Commission's decision was inappropriate or unjustified. Appeal forms are available at 
the City Planning Department and the City Clerk's office and may be obtained at the 
Planning Commission meeting. Appeals to the City Council shall be submitted to the 
City Clerk as prescribed by Ordinance No. 843. 
 
 
 



 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Overhaul – City of Hollister – A discussion of project 

review in the City of Hollister (part of Phase IIB of the Overhaul). 
 
STAFF PLANNER: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager (831) 636-4360 

   Erica Fraser, AICP, Consulting Planner  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Permit Streamlining Act Flow Chart. 
 2. Planning Process Flowchart. 
 
             
              
 
PURPOSE OF THE STUDY SESSION 
 
In order to assist the Planning Commission with a future discussion of proposed amendments to Chapter 
17.24, Administration and Enforcement, Staff will outline and discuss the project review process for major 
(requires Planning Commission review) and minor requests (Administrative review) during the Study 
Session. Staff will also discuss how the City conducts a review of each project that is submitted to the 
Planning Division. 
 
In order to assist in the discussion during the Study Session and provide some information prior to the 
Study Session, the following background information is provided regarding the permit review process. 
 
CITY REVIEW PROCESS 
 
The following information is provided regarding the processing of development applications (non-
legislative projects).  A flow chart summarizing the complete review process for applications is included 
as Attachment 2. 
 
Permit Streamlining Act 
 
Projects which involve legislative review (i.e. a Rezone or General Plan Amendment) are not subject to the 
Permit Streamlining Act. All other projects are subject to the provisions of the Permit Streamlining Act. 
The Permit Streamlining Act (PSA) establishes project review time limits to expedite the processing of 
development applications (Government Code Section 65920).  A flowchart summarizing the processing 
time lines required pursuant to the PSA is included as Attachment 1. 
 
 
Project Submittal 

 

Planning Commission 
Study Session Staff Report 

February 9, 2023 
Study Session Item 1 



Staff Report 
Permit Review Discussion 
Page 2 of 4 
  
 
Prior to the submittal of a formal Application, all Applicants and/or Property Owners are invited to submit 
their project for Preliminary Review. A Preliminary Review allows an Applicant to receive comments 
regarding the proposed project prior to submitting formal plans for review. 
 
Once an Applicant is ready to submit their project for review and approval, the Applicant must submit a 
completed Application, Application Fee and required submittal materials (the City’s submittal list can be 
found at https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/General-Development-Application-
Packet.pdf ).  
 
Initial Review 
 
Once the submittal is accepted by the Planning Division, the initial review period of 30 days (required by 
the Permit Streamlining Act) begins.  The project is assigned to a Planner and the Planner routes the 
project plans and all information submitted by the Applicant to the City’s Development Review Committee 
(DRC) for review. Each Department reviews the proposed project for compliance with City requirements 
and submits their comments or information that is required to complete their review of the project. 
 
Notice of Completeness 
 
The assigned Planner then compiles all comments (including comments from the Planning Division) and 
sends a letter, noting the items that are required to be submitted in order to deem an application 
complete, to the Applicant. 
 
The project is then on hold until the Applicant resubmits their plans. The time between the notice of 
incompleteness and the resubmittal of the required plans is determined by the Applicant. Some projects 
are resubmitted within two months and some projects are not resubmitted for a significant period of time. 
Once the project is resubmitted, Staff routes the project to the DRC for a second review, and the process 
begins again. A project may be resubmitted several times before the application is deemed complete. 
Staff is available for questions and assistance during this period.  
 
During the completeness review of a project, Planning will also include project comments in the letter to 
the Applicant (for example noncompliance with setbacks, proposed parking does not meet the 
requirements of the Code, wrong street tree selected, architecture comments, etc).  Staff  attempts to 
resolve these comments prior to public hearing. If Staff is unable to resolve these issues (i.e. the 
development provides parking which is less than what is required by the Zoning Ordinance).  In some 
cases, the Applicant is unwilling to revise the project plans to address Staff’s comments. When this occurs 
Staff must bring the matter before the Planning Commission to review the areas in which the project does 
not meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, Municipal Code, Specific Plan or adopted Design 
Guidelines.   
 
Application Completeness  
 
Once an Application is deemed complete, Staff must determine if environmental review is required 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act. If no further review is required, Staff will then 
schedule the project for review by the appropriate reviewing body. Administrative Permit Reviews are 

https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/General-Development-Application-Packet.pdf
https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/General-Development-Application-Packet.pdf


Staff Report 
Permit Review Discussion 
Page 3 of 4 
  
reviewed and approved by the Director of Development Services and Site and Architectural Reviews 
require review and approval by the Planning Commission. 
 
Additionally, upon determination that the project is complete, Staff obtains recommended Conditions of 
Approval from each member of the DRC. These Conditions of Approval are all included in the Planning 
Commission Resolution. 
 
California Environment Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
Pursuant to CEQA, Staff is not required to determine if a project requires review pursuant to CEQA until 
the project is deemed complete. However, Staff does begin an initial assessment once plans are received 
to determine if review pursuant to CEQA is required. If review is required, Staff begins the process as soon 
as possible. 
 
For some projects, Staff is unable to determine if review pursuant to CEQA is required until the project is 
deemed complete. This situation typically arises when a project does not comply with the Municipal Code 
or General Plan and the applicant does not wish to modify the design. This can result in a project which 
no longer qualifies for an exemption. Following the completeness determination, Staff will determine if 
CEQA review is required within 30 days as required by the PSA. 
 
Project Review by Reviewing Body 
 
For requests for an Administrative Permit Review, these projects are typically acted upon within one week 
of determining that the Application is complete. An Action Letter with Conditions of Approval is sent to 
the Applicant once approved or denied. 
 
For Site and Architectural Review, these projects require review by the Planning Commission during a 
public hearing. The project must be noticed and must be printed in the newspaper 10 days prior to the 
hearing (to meet printing deadlines, this notice must be received by the newspaper three weeks prior to 
the meeting), notices must be mailed to property owners within a 300 foot radius of the project site, and 
the agenda for the hearing must be posted 72 hours prior to the hearing. Staff determines which meeting 
the project can be agendized for, based on noticing requirements. 
 
The length of time it takes from initial submittal to approval is dependent on the Applicant. Staff is 
required to review and comment within 30 days of the receipt of a resubmittal. Following the first letter, 
Staff cannot ask for any additional items to be submitted, unless the revised plans are still incomplete 
based on the City’s submittal checklist. Once an Application is deemed complete, Staff is required to bring 
the project before the reviewing body within 60 days (unless CEQA review is required). 
 
Sample Project Review 
 
The following is a timeline for Approval by the Planning Commission for 2300 Bert Drive (industrial 
building) which was recently approved by the Planning Commission.  
 
 

Table 1: Sample Project Review Time-line 



Staff Report 
Permit Review Discussion 
Page 4 of 4 
  
 

Date Action Time Period Between Previous 
Action 

2/22/22 Project Submitted  
3/22/22 Comments Sent to Applicant 30 days 
5/25/22 Project Resubmitted by 

Applicant 
64 days 

6/24/22 Comments Sent to Applicant 
(Letter #2) 

30 days 

7/12/22 Project Resubmitted by 
Applicant 

18 days 

7/26/22 Project Deemed Complete 14 days 
8/5/22 Notice Sent to Newspaper 10 days 

8/15/22 Notices Mailed 10 days 
8/25/22 Planning Commission Approved 

Project 
10 days 

 
During the Study Session, Staff will walk the Planning Commission through a project review of a project 
submittal to demonstrate how the Planning Division reviews applications during the Study Session. 
 
Project Review Summary 
 
In summary, once a project is submitted, the plans are routed to the City’s DRC for review and comment. 
Within 30 days of the acceptance of a development application, the City must provide a list of the items 
that are necessary to be included in the project plans in order to deem the application complete. 
Subsequent submittals and review by the DRC are required until the project is deemed complete and all 
DRC comments are addressed. Once the project is deemed complete and all DRC comments are 
addressed, Staff schedules the project for review by the appropriate reviewing body. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION QUESTIONS: 
  
Staff does not have any direct questions for the Planning Commission for this item. Rather, Staff will 
present an overview of project reviews, will demonstrate how the Planning Divisions reviews a 
development proposal, and invites the Planning Commission to ask questions throughout Staff’s 
presentation. 



Permit Streamlining Act and California Environment Quality Act 

Required Time-line for Review 

Project Submittal 
City Review of Application to Determine Completeness 

Once an Application is submitted, the project is reviewed for consistency with the General Plan and Municipal Code and to 
determine if all items listed on the City’s submittal checklist have been submitted. All items which are missing and are 
required to be submitted in order to deem the Application complete must be included in the Notice of Completeness. The 
Notice of Completeness must be sent to the Applicant within 30 days following the City’s acceptance of an Application. 

Project Resubmittal 

Upon receipt of a formal resubmittal (i.e. full plans sets are submitted to the Planning Division), a completeness review is 
conducted. A determination on whether or not the Application is complete must be made (or comments sent) within 30 
days of a project resubmittal. This phase will continue until the Application is deemed complete. 

Project Deemed Complete 

Within 30 days of a project submittal, or resubmittal, a project is deemed complete unless a letter noting the missing items 
is sent to the Applicant.  

CEQA Determination 

Within 30 days of deeming an Application complete, the City must determine if further review pursuant to CEQA is 
required. 

Further CEQA Review 

If a Negative or Mitigated Negative Declaration is required to review the potential environmental impacts related to a 
project, the Negative or Mitigated Negative Declaration must be completed 180 days following the completeness 
determination. 

If an Environmental Impact Report is required, the Environmental Impact Report must be completed within one year of 
determining the project complete. 

Action 

The City must take a final action on a project within the following timeframes (Government Code Section 65950): 

- 60 days from the determination that the project is exempt from CEQA 
- 60 days from the adoption of a Negative Declaration for the project 
- 60 -180 days, from the certification of an Environmental Impact Report depending on certain project criteria. 



 

Submittal of Project 
 

(Requires and appointment, plans, application, and application fee) 

Project Routing 
 

Project is assigned to a Planner (within 3 days) and routed to DRC for Comments. DRC reviews the project and determines if the project 
is complete, if any additional information is necessary for review (Completeness Items), and if the project meets the requirements of the 
General Plan and Municipal Code (Design Comments). 

Outstanding Completeness 
Items? 

Yes No 

Project deemed 
“Incomplete” 

Project deemed “Complete” 

Yes 

No 

Written Comments 
 
Completeness Determination 
Letter sent to Applicant with list 
of any outstanding Design 
Comments 

CEQA Determination 
 

Review of project to determine if the project requires environmental 
review (CEQA) within 30 days of determining project is complete. 

CEQA required? 

No 

Yes 

Project Resubmittal 
 
Applicant resubmits and project 
routed to DRC if necessary. 

Written Comments 
 
Completeness Determination 
Letter sent to Applicant with list 
of outstanding Completeness 
Items and any Design Comments 

Begin preparation of the 
environmental document. 

Complete environmental review 
and provide notice of completion. 

Notice Project for Public Hearing 

Project Decision 

Outstanding Design 
Comments? 

Project Resubmittal 
 
Applicant resubmits and project 
routed to DRC if necessary. 



 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Overhaul – City of Hollister – A discussion of potential 

amendments to the Zoning Ordinance related to Planned Developments. 
 
STAFF PLANNER: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager (831) 636-4360 

   Erica Fraser, AICP, Consulting Planner  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Section 17.24.200, Planned Development 
 2. Planned Development Requirements in Other Jurisdictions 
 3. Example of a Planned Development Ordinance – Salinas 
 4. Example of a Planned Development Ordinance – Morgan Hill 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide Staff with Direction 
             
              
 
PURPOSE OF THE STUDY SESSION: 
 
Tonight’s discussion with the Planning Commission is intended to aid Staff in the preparation of a new 
Chapter in the Zoning Ordinance related to Planned Development. As part of Phase IIB of the Zoning 
Ordinance Overhaul, Staff will completely overhaul Chapter 17.24, Administration and Enforcement, 
which includes Section 17.24.240, Planned Developments. 
 
Phase IIB of the Zoning Ordinance Overhaul includes a rewrite of each permit type and section to clearly 
identifying what types of projects require review, modifications for clarity, and to make this Section more 
user friendly for residents as well as developers. Amendments to Zoning Ordinances are common. Cities 
regularly amend and update their Zoning Ordinance for clarification, for consistency with State Law, to 
address changing conditions within the City, for consistency with best practices for Planning, and to 
change the permit types and projects that require permits prior to Building Permit. 
 
A brief discussion of Planned Developments and questions to the Planning Commission are provided in 
this Staff Report. All questions are also included at the end of the Staff Report to guide discussion during 
the Study Session. 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 
 
The purpose of a Planned Unit Development is to allow greater flexibility than would otherwise be allowed 
by the Zoning Ordinance, in exchange for innovative or interesting designs or layout, the preservation of 
open space or other amenity.  
 

 

Planning Commission 
Study Session Staff Report 

February 9, 2023 
Study Session Item 2 



Staff Report 
Planned Developments 
Page 2 of 5 
  
The City’s regulations for Planned Developments can be found in Section 17.24.240 (Attachment 1) of the 
Zoning Ordinance. The regulations for Planned Developments must be completely rewritten as part of the 
Overhaul. The existing regulations are confusing, vague, are technically only allowed for very specific 
projects (Section 17.24.240 (B)), and contains errors (for example it requires conformance with the Zoning 
Ordinance and the purpose of a Planned Development is to allow something that would otherwise not be 
allowed due to the inherit rigidity of a Zoning Ordinance). Additionally, this Section conflicts with the 
provisions of Section 17.14.120, Residential Performance Overlay Zoning District. As written, the Planned 
Development section of the Zoning Ordinance is difficult for Staff to understand and enforce in a 
consistent manner. 
 
Conditional Use Permit 
 
In the City of Hollister, a Planned Development is approved by means of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
A Conditional Use Permit is intended to provide relief from a strict application of the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance in order to provide flexibility in the permitted (by right) uses within a City. Typically, a 
City will provide a list of permitted uses in each Zoning District as well as uses which are not permitted by 
right, but where a Conditional Use Permit may be obtained in order to operate the use (or business) For 
example, in the General Commercial (GC) Zoning District, a convenience store is a permitted use, but a 
convenience store with gas pumps is a conditional use. Section 17.24.200(A) of the Hollister Zoning 
Ordinance states: 
 

“Purpose. Conditional Use Permits are intended to allow for activities and uses that are unique 
and whose effect on the surrounding environment cannot be determined prior to being proposed 
for a particular location. At the time of Application, a review of the location, design, configuration, 
and potential impacts of the proposed use shall be conducted by comparing it to established 
development standards.” 

 
By requiring a Conditional Use Permit, the City can review the layout, parking, design, operational 
characteristics, and impacts to surrounding uses. The City can then include Conditions of Approval as part 
of the project approval to ensure that the use operates as proposed and to minimize impacts on 
surrounding uses. Should the use fail to operate in a manner consistent with the approval, the City can 
revoke or modify the Conditional Use Permit (Section 17.24.130(H)).  
 
The City of Hollister requires a Conditional Use Permit for Planned Developments. Planned Developments 
in Hollister are currently only allowed on properties which are designated for residential uses and allows: 
 

• Flexibility in development standards (i.e. setbacks); 
 

• Encourages the development of affordable housing; 
 

• Modifications to density (although the density proposed must comply with the General Plan); 
 
Planned Development requests in the City of Hollister are typically only allowed for relief from setbacks 
or open space due to the wording of the existing Ordinance. 
 



Staff Report 
Planned Developments 
Page 3 of 5 
  
The use of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a reduction in development standards is not consistent 
with the stated purpose of Conditional Use Permits (Section 17.24.200(A)) and is not consistent with best 
practices in the State of California (see Section below for more information). As part of the overhaul, Staff 
is recommending that Planned Developments be established through a different method. 
 
Question 1: Is a Conditional Use Permit appropriate for Planned Development requests? 
 
Rezoning or Other Permits 
 
Staff conducted a review of 22 jurisdictions in the surrounding area to determine how each jurisdiction 
reviews Planned Developments (Attachment 1). Of the 22 jurisdictions surveyed, only 1 processes Planned 
Developments as a Conditional Use Permit. The remaining require the development be rezoned to 
Planned Development. The designation of the property once rezoned varies with some jurisdictions 
rezoning the site to a combining district (i.e. PD/R1) and some simply rezoning to PD. 
 
Planned Development is typically a type of zoning classification. As a zoning mechanism, Planned 
Developments typically apply to the development of a specific area (there can be more than one parcel) 
where it is beneficial to the City to permit zoning regulations in a more flexible manner than those 
established under the base zoning district, and to grant diversification in the location and number of 
structures and other site qualities.  
 
There are advantages in requiring a rezone for Planned Developments. With a rezone, the City can allow 
for greater flexibility in design and use (see following discussion topic for more information) than can be 
allowed currently. 
 
Additionally, if a property is rezoned to Planned Development, the City’s Zoning Map is updated 
accordingly. The map would then show the site has been rezoned to a Planned Development. This is a 
signal that different development standards or uses apply to the property.  
 
By noting the Planned Development zoning and Planned Development number, the City can provide 
better identification of the exact regulations for a particular property. Without a rezone, the map just 
notes the zoning district for the property (i.e. R1, Low Density Residential). For example, the KB Cluster 
Lots which were just approved with a Planned Development is shown as RWF on the Zoning Map. No 
indication is given on the map that there are different development standards for this property. A 
homeowner or designer would not be aware that development standards exist, separate from the 
standards in the West Fairview Road Specific Plan. 
 
Staff suggests that Planned Developments are approved in conjunction with a Rezone that will rezone an 
entire development to Planned Development (PD 2023-1 for example). This would provide clarity, 
empower property owners and designers to easily determine the regulations that apply to their property, 
and assist Staff in future information requests (Staff can answer questions regarding development 
standards more accurately and more quickly if the property is rezoned). Additionally, by requiring a 
rezone, the City of Hollister will be consistent with the method by which Planned Developments are 
approved in the surrounding areas. Developers who currently work in the City of Hollister also develop 
projects in neighboring cities where a rezone is required, so the process would be familiar.   
 



Staff Report 
Planned Developments 
Page 4 of 5 
  
The disadvantage of requiring a rezone for a Planned Development is that the process will take longer 
than it does currently. In order to rezone a property to Planned Development, the Planning Commission 
would have to make a recommendation to the City Council, the City Council would then make a decision 
on approving or denying the request.  Staff anticipates that this will add approximately one month onto 
the total timeline for project approval if the project includes a Planned Development request.  
 
Staff has included two sample Ordinances showing how these cities regulate Planned Developments. 
These two examples are included as Attachments 3 and 4.  
 
Question 2: Should the Planned Development Section of the Zoning Ordinance be revised so that a 
Planned Development is approved through a rezone? 
 
Commercial and Industrial Uses 
 
Currently, Planned Developments are only allowed for residential uses. As shown in the attached 
spreadsheet (Attachment 1), some cities allow a Planned Development rezone for residential and non-
residential uses. A Zoning Ordinance is inherently inflexible by nature. By allowing a Planned Development 
on non-residential properties as well as residential properties, the City can allow for greater flexibility in 
uses (as long as the City determines that the proposed use is consistent with the General Plan). This would 
allow a project to come forward in which the proposed use is not clearly allowed by the Zoning Ordinance 
(for example a training facility and residential dwellings on one site). 
 
Staff would like to allow Planned Development zoning and allow for greater flexibility for residential and 
non-residential uses. Staff believes that this would be beneficial to the community and would allow for 
greater flexibility in design and allow for uses which might not otherwise be allowed by the City, but is a 
use that the City determines is appropriate for the site. 
 
This change would also allow development proposals to consider mixed-uses in areas where they might 
otherwise not be allowed (such as allowing for neighbor-hood scale commercial development in an 
standard residential zone, for example). All Planned Developments would be subject to discretionary 
approval so proposals can be regulated and appropriately tailored to the unique situation, but this would 
open opportunities to advance other City and State policies, such as encouraging complete streets and 
neighborhoods, improving walkability and access to services in development, among other ideas.  
 
Question  3: Should the City allow for greater flexibility in the “uses” allowed? 
 
Question 4: Should the City allow Planned Developments on land designated for Commercial? 
Industrial?  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION QUESTIONS: 
  
Staff has prepared the following questions to guide the discussion of modifications to the Planned 
Development Section of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Question 1: Is a Conditional Use Permit appropriate for Planned Development requests? 
 



Staff Report 
Planned Developments 
Page 5 of 5 
  
 
 
 
Question 2: Should the Planned Development Section of the Zoning Ordinance be revised so that a 
Planned Development is approved through a rezone? 
 
 
 
 
Question 3: Should the City allow for greater flexibility in the “uses” allowed? 
 
 
 
 
Question 4: Should the City allow Planned Developments on land designated for Commercial? Industrial?  
 
 
 
 
Question 5: Are there any additional modifications the Planning Commission would like included in the 
draft Planned Development Ordinance? 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-02-01 18:12:05 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

17.24.240 Planned Development Permits. 

A. Purpose. The following provisions are intended to: afford maximum flexibility in site planning/property 
development, design, and density/intensity, while protecting the integrity and character of the residential 
areas of the City; encourage innovation and the development of affordable housing; and ensure consistency 
with the General Plan. At the time of application submittal a review of the configuration, design, location and 
impact of the proposed land use shall be conducted by comparing the use to established development/site 
standards. This review shall determine whether the permit should be approved by weighing the public need 
for and the benefit(s) to be derived from the proposed use, against the potential negative impacts it may 
cause.  

B. Applicability. A Planned Development Permit shall be required for all applicable structures and uses 
permitted by this Zoning Ordinance; however, none shall be required for alterations to an existing single-
family dwelling. Specifically, a permit shall be required under the following circumstances:  

1. For a new structure or use listed as subject to a "Planned Development Permit" (PD) in the applicable 
zoning district;  

2. For the change, enlargement, expansion or exterior alteration of an existing structure or use for which 
a Planned Development Permit has not been issued, excluding an existing single-family dwelling used 
as a residence; and  

3. For the movement or relocation of any structure, including factory-built and manufactured housing, to 
any parcel within the City.  

C. Application Requirements. An application for a Planned Development Permit shall be filed in compliance with 
Section 17.24.070 (Application Filing).  

D. Project Review. Each Planned Development Permit application shall be analyzed to ensure that the 
application is consistent with the purpose/intent of this Zoning Ordinance and the City's CEQA Guidelines. To 
ensure effective implementation of General Plan policies relating to design, each application for a Planned 
Development Permit shall be reviewed in compliance with subsection E of this section prior to determination 
by the review authority. Additionally, any application which may result in grading shall require the submittal 
of preliminary grading plans for review and recommendation by the City Engineer and approval by the 
review authority.  

E. Design Review Procedures. The review of projects for architectural and site plan design is an integral part of 
the development approval process. Each Planned Development Permit application (including all associated 
plans and elevations) shall be reviewed to ensure that the application is consistent with: the purpose/intent 
of this section; all applicable development standards/regulations of this Zoning Ordinance; and any adopted 
design guidelines/policies that may apply. In addition, applications for Conditional Use Permits and variances 
are also subject to design review whenever any physical alteration/construction is proposed.  

1. Department Action. Site plan/design review is initiated when the Department receives a complete 
application package including all required attachments, plans, specifications, elevations, sample 
materials, etc. as specified in the application form and any additional information required by the 
Director in order to conduct a thorough review of the proposed project.  

Upon receipt of a complete application, Department staff shall conduct a review of the location, 
design, site plan configuration and impact of the proposed development by comparing the project 
plans to established development standards/regulations and any adopted design guidelines/policies. In 
general, development proposals will be reviewed considering criteria including, but not limited to, the 
following:  

a. Compliance with this Zoning Ordinance and all other applicable city ordinances;  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-02-01 18:12:05 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

b. Desirable site layout and design;  

c. Compatibility with neighboring property/development;  

d. Efficiency and safety of public access and parking;  

e. Appropriate open space and use of water efficient landscaping;  

f. Consistency with the General Plan; and  

g. Consistency with any adopted design guidelines and design review policies.  

2. Reference to Design Guidelines/Policies. In reviewing development/ improvements subject to design 
review, the Director shall refer to any design guidelines/policies that have been adopted by the 
Council/Commission in order to provide guidance to applicants seeking to comply with the 
requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. The Council/Commission may amend the design 
guidelines/policies whenever it deems it appropriate in order to carry out the purpose/intent of this 
Zoning Ordinance. Copies of the design guidelines/policies shall be available to the public at the 
Department.  

The adopted design guidelines are to be used by property owners, developers, architects, landscape 
architects, and designers in the planning and design of projects in the City. The design guidelines 
communicate the desired qualities and characteristics of development, and are intended to promote 
quality design that is compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and implement the General Plan. 
The design guidelines/policies are used by city staff, the Commission, and the Council as adopted 
criteria for the review of development proposals subject to design review.  

3. Department Recommendation. Following completion of its review of a proposed project, Department 
staff shall provide a written statement of findings/recommendations to the review authority for its 
consideration simultaneously with a Conditional Use Permit. Department staff may recommend 
approval, approval with conditions, or disapproval of a project. The report containing findings, 
recommendations and conditions, shall also be forwarded to the applicant prior to consideration by 
the review authority.  

Where the findings/recommendations of the staff may substantially alter a proposed development, the 
applicant may be requested to submit revised plans at the discretion of the Director.  

4. Preliminary Design Concept Review. The Director may require that a project applicant submit design 
concept plans for preliminary design review prior to submittal of a formal application for a project 
deemed significant by the Director. The purpose of the preliminary consultation is to advise the project 
applicant of applicable design guidelines, design review policies, and other specific design criteria that 
may affect the design of the project.  

F. Hearings and Notice. Upon receipt of a Planned Development Permit application in proper form, a public 
hearing before the Planning Commission shall be set and notice of the hearing given in compliance with 
Section 17.24.120 (Public Hearings) of this chapter.  

G. Decision and Findings. Following a hearing, if required, the Planning Commission, as outlined in Table 17.24-
1, shall record the decision in writing and shall recite the findings upon which the decision is based. The 
Planning Commission may approve or modify a Planned Development Permit in whole or in part, and shall 
impose specific development conditions. These conditions shall relate to both on- and off-site improvements 
that are necessary to accommodate flexibility in site planning/property development, mitigate project-
related adverse impacts, and to carry out the purpose/intent and requirements of the respective zoning 
district. The Planning Commission may approve a Planned Development Permit, only if all of the following 
findings are made:  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-02-01 18:12:05 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

1. The proposed development is one allowed within the subject zoning district and complies with all of 
the applicable provisions of this Zoning Ordinance, including prescribed development/site 
standards/guidelines and any adopted design guidelines;  

2. The proposed development is consistent with the General Plan;  

3. The approval of the Planned Development Permit for the proposed use is in compliance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA);  

4. The proposed development would be harmonious and compatible with existing and future 
developments within the zoning district and general area, as well as with the land uses presently on the 
subject property;  

5. The subject site is physically suitable for the type and density/intensity of use being proposed;  

6. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities and services to 
ensure that the proposed development would not be detrimental to public health and safety; and  

7. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed development would not be 
detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or welfare of the City.  

H. Expiration. A Planned Unit Development Permit shall be exercised within two years from the date of approval 
or the Permit shall become void except when:  

1. An extension is approved by the Planning Commission in compliance with procedure for extending a 
permit found in this Zoning Code; or  

2. An extension is required to allow the expiration date of the Planned Unit Development Permit to be 
consistent with the expiration date of the Tentative Subdivision Map for the same development 
project.  

I. Revocation. The Planning Commission may revoke or modify a Planned Development Permit in compliance 
with Section 17.24.130(H) (Revocations) and Article III (Enforcement).  

J. Performance Guarantee. The applicant/owner may be required to provide adequate performance security 
for the faithful performance of any condition of approval imposed by the review authority.  

(Ord. 1038, § 2, 2008; Ord. 1071, § 19, 2011) 

 



Jurisdicition Permit Type Notes

Dublin Rezone Stage 1/Stage 2 (Stage 1 annexation only)
Livermore Rezone
Morgan Hill Rezone Also allows for a master plan.  Combining District
Gilroy Rezone
Fresno CUP Director Decision

Clovis Rezone
Not allowed for properties that are zoned industrial. Uses must be the same as 
underlying district.

Brentwood Rezone All PD and regs listed in Zoning Ordinance for each PD. PD1, PD72 in order
Santa Maria Rezone Side and Rear Yard Setbacks Only. Plus Freeway signs

San Jose Rezone
Combined with base district (R1/PD). Administrative PD Permit for modifications 
to established PD Districts.

San Juan Bautista Rezone
Greenfield Rezone No Specific Regulations in ZO other than the CC reviews and approves.
Watsonville Rezone Combining PD/R1
Salinas Rezone
Gonzales Rezone
San Benito County Rezone Residential only. Combined with base district
Los Banos Rezone No Specific Chapter in MC but is a rezone to Planned Development.
King City Rezone Requires a Specific Plan prior to approval
Pleasanton Rezone
San Jose Rezone Combining District. Requires a Community Meeting, then PC and CC
Santa Clara Rezone Planned Development - Master Community  required.

Paso Robles Rezone

Only allowed for properties which are 25% affordable, protect a natuaral 
feature with a minimum open space area of 1/4 acre, or provide a substantial 
public amenity such as a significant public plaza, open space, or park and 
includes a guarantee that the City is not required to maingtain it.

Fremont Rezone Residential only. Zoned P



A.

B.

C.

1.

2.

D.

1.

2.

E.

1.

2.

F.

1.

2.

18.30.050 - Planned development combining district.

Purpose of the Planned Development Combining District. The purpose of the Planned

Development (PD) combining district is to allow for high quality development that deviates

from standards and regulations applicable to base zoning districts in Morgan Hill. The PD

combining district is intended to promote creativity in building design, flexibility in permitted

land uses, and innovation in development concepts. The PD combining district provides land

owners with enhanced flexibility to take advantage of unique site characteristics and develop

projects that will provide public benefits for residents, employees, and visitors.

Where Allowed. The PD combining district may be applied to any property in Morgan Hill with

an area of 1 acre or more.

Permitted Land Uses.

Permitted land uses in each PD combining district shall conform to the PD master plan that

applies to the property.

Permitted land uses may deviate from the land use regulations of the applicable base

zoning district provided the PD combining district allows only those land uses permitted in

the applicable general plan land use designation.

Development Standards.

Development standards (e.g., height, setbacks, building coverage) for each PD combining

district shall be established in the applicable PD master plan.

Development standards may deviate from development standards in the applicable base

zoning district except that the maximum permitted floor area ratio and residential density

may not exceed maximums established in the general plan for the applicable land use

designation.

Required Approvals.

PD Master Plan and Zoning Map Amendment. Establishment of a PD combining district

requires approval of a PD master plan and a zoning map amendment.

Design Review. A proposed development must receive a design permit as required by

Section 18.108.040 (Design Permits). All development and land uses within a PD combining

district shall be consistent with the approved PD master plan.

Preliminary Review.

When Required. Prior to submittal of an application for a PD rezoning and PD master plan,

an applicant must receive preliminary input from the planning commission on the

proposed planned development project.

Application. A preliminary review application for a proposed planned development project

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

1 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


a.

b.

3.

4.

a.

b.

G.

1.

2.

3.

H.

1.

2.

shall be submitted with the development services department in accordance with Chapter

18.104 (Common Permit Requirements). The application shall include, at a minimum, the

following information and materials:

A statement describing the proposed project and how it complies with the findings

required for the approval of a planned development project in Section 18.30.050.H.7

(Findings).

Project plans, diagrams, and graphics as needed to illustrate the overall development

concept, including proposed land uses, buildings, circulation, open space, and any

other significant elements in the project.

Public Hearing. The planning commission shall consider the preliminary review application

and a public hearing noticed in accordance with Section 18.104.090 (Notice of Hearing).

Preliminary Input.

The planning commission shall provide preliminary input on project compliance with

findings required for the approval of a Planned Development project in Section

18.30.050.H.7 (Findings).

Planning commission input shall not be construed as a recommendation for approval

or denial of the project. Any recommendation to the applicant is advisory only and

shall not be binding on either the applicant or the city.

Planned Development Rezoning.

General Procedures and Requirements. Establishing a PD combining district requires city

council approval of a zoning map amendment in accordance with Chapter 18.114 (Zoning

Code Amendments). All requirements for zoning map amendments in Chapter 18.114

apply to the establishment of a PD combining district.

Timing. The city council shall act on the zoning map amendment concurrently with the PD

master plan. A PD combining district may be established only with concurrent approval of

a PD master plan.

Reference to PD Master Plan. The ordinance adopted by the city council establishing a PD

combining district shall reference the PD master plan approved concurrently with the

zoning map amendment.

PD Master Plans.

Review Authority. The city council takes action on PD master plan applications following

recommendation from the planning commission.

Timing. A PD master plan application shall be submitted within one year of preliminary

review for the proposed project. If an application is not submitted within one year of

preliminary review, the applicant shall compete a second Preliminary Review process prior

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

2 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


3.

a.

b.

c.

4.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

to submitting the PD master plan application.

Application Submittal and Review.

PD master plan applications shall be filed and reviewed in compliance with Chapter

18.104 (Common Permit Requirements). The application shall include the information

and materials required by the development services department and the information

required by Paragraph 4 (Application Materials) below.

If the property is not under a single ownership, all owners must join the application,

and a map showing the extent of ownership shall be submitted with the application.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to provide evidence in support of the findings

required by Paragraph 7 (Findings) below.

Application Materials. Applications for approval of a PD master plan shall include the

following information and materials:

Project Description. A written description of the project proposed within the PD

combining district. The project description shall include a narrative statement of the

project objectives and a statement of how the proposed project will comply with

general plan goals and policies for the applicable land use designation. An overview of

the proposed land use, densities, open space, and parking should be included in the

project description.

Community Benefits. A description of how the proposed development is superior to

development that could occur under the standards in the existing zoning districts, and

how it will achieve a substantial public benefits as defined in Paragraph 8 below.

Site Map. Maps depicting the existing topography, on-site structures and natural

features, mature trees, and other significant vegetation and drainage patterns. The

map shall show the proposed PD combining district boundaries and all properties

within five hundred feet of the site boundary.

Concept Plan. An overall diagram of the project concept. This diagram shall illustrate

the overall development concept, including proposed land uses, buildings, circulation,

open space, and any other significant elements in the proposed project. Phases shall

be clearly indicated if multiple phases are proposed.

Land Use. A map showing the location of each land use proposed within the site,

including open space and common areas. The land use map shall be accompanied by a

narrative description of permitted land uses, allowable accessory uses, and uses

allowed by-right or with a conditional use permit.

Subdivision Map. If the project involves the subdivision of land, a tentative parcel map

or tentative map required by Title 17 (Subdivisions) of the Morgan Hill Municipal Code.

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

3 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


g.

h.

i.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

5.

a.

b.

6.

7.

a.

b.

Circulation. A map and descriptions of the major circulation features within the site

including vehicular, bicycle, pedestrian facilities; traffic flow of internal traffic; and

existing and proposed public streets and sidewalk improvements.

Public Facilities and Open Space. The amount (in square feet or acres) and percentage

of site area that will be dedicated for all types of open space, including proposed

recreational facilities and amenities; and any public facilities, including public utility

easements, public buildings and public land uses.

Development Standards. All development standards that apply within the project,

including:

Density and/or intensity;

Minimum lot size and dimensions;

Maximum building coverage;

Minimum setbacks;

Maximum building heights;

Signs;

Landscaping;

On-site parking; and

Other items as deemed appropriate by the planning commission and city council.

Planning Commission Review and Recommendation.

The planning commission shall hold a public hearing on the PD master plan application

as required by Chapter 18.104 (Common Permit Requirements).

The planning commission shall recommend to the city council the approval, approval

with modification, or denial of the PD master plan application. The recommendation

shall be based on the findings in Paragraph 7 (Findings) below.

City Council Review and Decision. Upon receipt of the planning commission's

recommendation, the city council shall conduct a public hearing and either approve,

approve in modified form, or deny the PD master plan. The city council may approve the

application only if all of the findings in Paragraph 7 (Findings) below can be made.

Findings. The city council may approve an application for a PD master plan if all of the

following findings can be made:

The proposed development is consistent with the general plan, zoning code and any

applicable specific plan or area plan adopted by the city council.

The proposed development is superior to the development that could occur under the

standards applicable in the existing zoning districts.

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

4 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

8.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

The proposed project will provide a substantial public benefits as defined in Paragraph

8 (Substantial Public Benefit Defined) below. The public benefit provided shall be of

sufficient value as determined by the planning commission to justify deviation from the

standards of the zoning district that currently applies to the property.

The site for the proposed development is adequate in size and shape to accommodate

proposed land uses.

Adequate transportation facilities, infrastructure, and public services exist or will be

provided to serve the proposed development.

The proposed development will not have a substantial adverse effect on surrounding

property and will be compatible with the existing and planned land use character of

the surrounding area.

Findings required for the concurrent approval of a zoning map amendment can be

made.

Substantial Public Benefit Defined. When used in this section, "substantial public benefit"

means a project feature not otherwise required by the zoning code or any other provision

of local, state, or federal law that substantially exceeds the city's minimum development

standards and significantly advances goals of the general plan. A project must include one

or more substantial public benefits to be rezoned as a planned development. The public

benefit provided shall be of sufficient value as determined by city council to justify

deviation from the standards of the zoning district that currently apply to the property.

Examples of substantial public benefits include but are not limited to:

Housing that is affordable to lower-income households.

Public plazas, courtyards, open space, and other public gathering places that provide

opportunities for people to informally meet and gather.

New or improved pedestrian and bicycle pathways that enhance circulation within the

property and connectivity to the surrounding neighborhood.

Green building and sustainable development features that substantially exceed the

city's minimum requirements.

Preservation, restoration, or rehabilitation of a historic resource.

Increased transportation options for residents and visitors to walk, bike, and take

public transit to destinations and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Publicly accessible parks and open space beyond the minimum required by the city or

other public agency.

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

5 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM



9.

I.

1.

2.

Habitat restoration and or protection of natural resources beyond the minimum required by the city or

other public agency.

Conditions of Approval. The city council may attach conditions of approval to a PD master

plan to achieve consistency with the general plan, zoning code, and any applicable specific

plan or area plan adopted by the city council.

Effect of PD Master Plan. All future development and land uses within a PD combining district

shall comply with the approved PD master plan.

Land Uses. New land uses may be added in a PD combining district provided the PD

master plan identifies the use as a permitted or conditionally permitted land use.

Establishing a land use not specifically permitted by the PD master plan would require an

amendment to the PD combining district.

Structures. New structures may be added in a PD combining district provided the

structures comply with development standards established in the PD master plan (e.g.,

height, setback, floor area ratio). Design review consistent with Section 18.108.040 (Design

Permits) is required for all new development that was not approved with the PD master

plan. Development that exceeds development standards in the PD master plan is allowed

only with an amendment to the PD combining district.

(Ord. No. 2277 N.S., § 5(Exh. A), 6-6-2018)

Morgan Hill, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

6 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:46 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

Division 13. - Planned Unit Development Permits.

Sec. 37-60.960. - Purpose.

The purpose of this division is to:

Provide a process for the development of land in order to reduce design rigidity that

otherwise would result from strict application of zoning standards and procedures

designed primarily for small parcels;

Ensure orderly and thorough planning and review procedures that will result in quality

urban design;

Encourage variety and avoid monotony in developments by allowing greater freedom in

selecting the means to provide access, light, open space, and amenities;

Encourage the assembly of properties that might otherwise be developed in unrelated

increments to the detriment of surrounding neighborhoods and commercial and industrial

areas; and

Allow freedom of design in order to obtain developments which will be a community asset

or environmentally superior by equaling or surpassing the quality required by strict

application of the zoning regulations. Figure 37-60.90 illustrates the planned unit

development permit process.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.970. - Relationship to other permits and subdivisions.

Any use authorized by the underlying zoning district may be included in an approved planned

unit development permit consistent with the general plan.

A planned unit development permit may be granted in combination with any permit

authorized by this Zoning Code or subdivision approved in accordance with Chapter 31:

Subdivisions of the Salinas Municipal Code.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.980. - Development regulations.

Development regulations shall be as prescribed by the planned unit development permit.

The total number of dwelling units in a planned unit development shall not exceed the

maximum number permitted by the underlying zoning district.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

1 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


Sec. 37-60.990. - Application.

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

2 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://mcclibrary.blob.core.usgovcloudapi.net/codecontent/16597/416338/37-60-980.png
https://mcclibrary.blob.core.usgovcloudapi.net/codecontent/16597/416338/37-60-980.png


(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(2)

An application for a planned unit development permit shall be initiated by submitting an application

to community planning and development in accordance with Division 2: Application Procedures of this

article.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1000. - City planner duties.

The city planner shall set the time, date, and location of public hearings.

The city planner shall undertake environmental review in regard to the proposal, and, upon

completion of such review and a review of the required findings ( Section 37-60.1030: Required

findings of this division), transmit the application, together with a staff report containing a

recommendation to the planning commission and city council, as applicable.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1010. - Planning commission duties.

Public Hearing Required. Following acceptance of an application, the planning commission

shall conduct a public hearing for consideration of the application.

Notice. Notice of a hearing shall be given in accordance with Division 7: Public Hearing Notice

of this article.

Public Hearing. The planning commission shall conduct the public hearing and hear testimony

for and against the application. A public hearing may be continued without additional public

notice.

Decision.

Following the conclusion of a public hearing, the planning commission shall make a written

recommendation to the city council to approve, approve with conditions or modifications,

or deny the application as submitted or in modified form and shall make written findings

supporting the reason for the recommendation in accordance with Section 37-60.1030:

Required findings of this division.

In the event that the planning commission is unable to make a recommendation to the city

council on the application because a motion on the application fails to receive a majority

vote resulting in no action being taken by the planning commission, the application shall

be forwarded directly to the city council with a record of the planning commission's vote

and the proceedings thereon.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

3 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sec. 37-60.1020. - City council duties.

Public Hearing Required. After the planning commission provides a recommendation on the

application for a planned unit development permit, the city council shall hold a public hearing

on the application.

Notice. Notice of a hearing shall be given in accordance with Division 7: Public Hearing Notice

of this article.

Public Hearing. At the time and place set for the public hearing, the city council shall consider

the recommendations of the planning commission and shall hear evidence presented for and

against the proposed planned unit development permit. The city council may continue a public

hearing without additional public notice.

Decision. Following the conclusion of the public hearing, the city council shall approve, modify,

or reject the planning commission's recommendation, provided that a substantial modification

not previously considered by the planning commission shall be referred to the planning

commission for a written recommendation prior to consideration of an amendment (such a

modification may require additional environmental review in accordance with CEQA if

determined applicable by the city planner). Prior to the adoption of the planned unit

development, the city council written findings supporting the reason for the decision in

accordance with Section 37-60.1030: Required findings of this division.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1030. - Required �ndings.

The planning commission, prior to making written recommendations to the city council, and the city

council prior to approving or approving with conditions or modifications a planned unit development

permit shall, on the basis of the application and testimony submitted, make all of the following findings:

The location of the planned unit development is in accord with the objectives of this

Zoning Code and the purposes of the district in which the site is located;

The planned unit development and the proposed conditions under which it would be

developed or maintained are consistent with the Salinas general plan, applicable specific

plan, and other plans and policies adopted by the Salinas city council and will not be

detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in or

adjacent to the planned unit development, nor detrimental to properties or improvements

in the vicinity or to the general welfare of the city; and

The planned unit development does not represent an exception to the standards of this

Zoning Code but rather an alternative resulting in an equal or superior design in

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

4 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

comparison to development, which strictly complies with base district property

development regulations.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1040. - E�ective date—Appeals.

A planned unit development permit, which has been signed by the permittee(s), returned to the city

planner within ninety days from the date of approval, and filed for recordation within the Monterey

County recorder's office, shall become effective at the end of the appeal period unless appealed in

accordance with Division 17: Appeals of this article.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1050. - Expiration—Transferability—Recordation—Rescission—Revocation.

Expiration of Approval. A planned unit development permit shall expire one year after its

effective date, or at an alternative time as specified in the approval, unless any one of the

following occurs first:

A building permit has been issued and construction diligently pursued;

A certificate of occupancy has been issued;

The city planner determines that other substantial action has been commenced to carry

out the terms and intent of the planned unit development permit; or

The project is one hundred percent very-low or low income or otherwise qualifying

pursuant to Civil Code Section 51.3.

Transferability. A planned unit development permit shall not be affected by changes in

ownership.

Recordation. The city planner shall file a planned unit development permit for recordation

with the Monterey County recorder's office.

Rescission. The city planner may rescind a planned unit development permit in accordance

with Section 37-60.1340: Rescission of permits when the city planner determines the following:

The project as approved in the planned unit development permit is built-out;

The structures and improvements will generally conform to and will not be in conflict with

the development regulations of the base zoning district;

The use is not a conditional or nonconforming use;

There is no mitigation monitoring plan, mitigation measures, or conditions of approval that

require on-going monitoring or review that if rescinded would adversely impact the public

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

5 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


(5)

(e)

health, safety, and welfare; and

The rescission will not have an adverse impact on surrounding land uses.

Revocation. A revocation of a planned unit development permit shall be in accordance with

Section 37-60.1330: Revocation of permits.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Sec. 37-60.1060. - Modi�ed plans.

A request for modification of an approved planned unit development permit shall be subject to the

requirements of Division 16: Modification of Approved Plans of this article.

(Ord. No. 2463 (NCS).)

Salinas, CA Code of Ordinances about:blank

6 of 6 2/2/2023, 6:43 PM

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/

	00 February 9, 2023_PC Agenda
	11 Staff Report_Ext. TM 2021-1 CUP 2021-6 SA 2021-14
	Planning Commission
	Staff Report
	February 9th, 2023
	Item 1

	12 Resolution_TM 2021-1 Ext._1620 Buena Vista
	13 Original City Submittal Package - 1620 Buena Vista PUD-1
	21 Staff Report_CUP 2022-4_Target
	Planning Commission
	Staff Report
	February 9, 2023
	Item 2

	22 Resolution_CUP 2022-4_Target
	23 Resolution_CUP 2022-4_Target_PCN
	24 Police Memo - CUP 2022-4, Target
	25 ABC 245 Form
	26 alcohol sales display example
	27 Applicant Statement of Justification
	28 CUP 2022-4 Plan Set
	FLOOR PLAN HOLLISTER - Rev. 09.26.22.pdf
	References
	ADD, T-0941-ADD_01.dgn
	CHK, T-0941-CHK_01.dgn
	HRD, T-0941-HRD_01.dgn
	PHM, T-0941-PHM_01.dgn
	SFT, T-0941-SFT_01.dgn
	SBC, T-0941-SBC_01.dgn
	STK, T-0941_STK_01.dgn
	OFC, T-0941_OFC_01.dgn
	BLD, T-0941_BLD_01.dgn



	31 Staff Report - Occupancy Agreement for Hollister Gateway Hotel
	32 PC Resolution Approving Occupancy Permit Agreement_Hollister Gateway Hotel
	33 Occupancy Agreement for Hollister Gateway Hotel
	34 Resolution 2019-49_S&A 2019-17_Hollister Gateway Hotel
	35 Resolution 2019-50_CUP 2019-6_S&A 2019-17_Hollister Gateway Hotel
	36 Staff Report_S&A 2019-17, CUP 2019-6_Prakash Patel
	SITE INFORMATION
	NOTICE

	41 Staff Report_Project Review Procedures
	Planning Commission
	Study Session Staff Report
	February 9, 2023
	Study Session Item 1

	42  PSA Flowchart
	43 Planning Process Flowchart
	51  Staff Report_Planned Development
	Planning Commission
	Study Session Staff Report
	February 9, 2023
	Study Session Item 2

	52 Section 17.24.240 Planned Development Permits
	17.24.240 Planned Development Permits.

	53 PUD in other cities for Staff Report
	Sheet1

	54 Attachment 3 - Morgan Hill
	55 Attachment 4 - Salinas Ordinance

